M TELNINS

07051843

O’CHARLEY’S INC.

O’Charley’s » Stoney River Legendary Steaks * Ninety Nine Restaurant

A Passion to Serve™

I VAN

/

by

L

R WL

Ry

0 .

ATIN U
é:\‘—:,mt—\gf
i ‘/

!

1
-

2006 Annual Report




Fiscal Years

(Fnr thousands, excepl per share deta) 2006 2005 Chcnge

For the Year

Revenues $989,524 3$930,188 0.4%
Income from operasions $ 40,485 $ 28,446 42.3%
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 18890 § 12029 57.0%
Nel earnings $ 18890 % 11,878 590.0%
Diluted earnings per share $ 080 §$ 051 56.9%
Weighled overage shares outstanding—diluted 23,588 23,096 3.32%
At Year End

Total assets $686,512 $687.610 10.2%)
Long-erm debt ond capilalized lease obligasions, net $154,357 $185,083 [16.9%]
Total shareholders” equity $380,826 $349,588 B.9%
QOur Vision:

We are a relationship-based company with “A Passion to Serve™” our guests and each other.

We will be the "Best of Class™ in food and service in our segments of the restaurant indusiry.

Qur Mission:

Together, we will achieve our vision by focusing on:

Guests Compete dedication to every guest who walks through the door to ensure that they are highly satisfied with their
enlire experience,

Each Other Commitment io living "A Possion to Serve™” daily. Providing the 1ools, education and opportunities for each team
member’s personal success.

Stakeholders Relentless pursuit of growth opportunities to maximize scles end profits,

Community  Active involvement in building community relationships and making o positive difference.

Locations as of April 1, 2007

. , 2
¢ O'Charley’s (inchides company-owned, @ @
franchised and joint venture iocations) 0

* Ninety Nine Restaurant o @

e Stoney River Legendary Steaks




About Us
O’Charley’s

O'Chailey's is one of the leading casual-dining resicurant concepis in the Southeas
and Midwest. The menw, with its emphasis on tresh preparation and compelling new
flavor combinations, offers guests savory new fare that stands cbove and apart from
thet offered by O'Charley's competitors, as well as comforoed laveorites. New
items such as Cedar-Planked Salmon, Whiskey Steak Sandwich, and Californic
Chicken Salad, have become so popular, they top the list of O'Charley's best sellers
clongside such long-fime favorites as hand-cut and oged louisiana Sirloin, Chicken
O'Tenders, and Pecan Tender Salad. The fresh food, varied menu and neighborhood
feel of O'Charley’s restaurcnts make it not only a greal choice for any occasion, but
also, the favarite loca! ploce for one million guests o week.

Stoney River Legendary Steaks

Stiiking an inviling balonce between upscale casval and fine-dining, Stoney River
occupies its own niche. |t charms guests with o casually elegant dining experience,
complete with aged, premium centercut steaks, fine wines and exemplary service in
a relaxing lodge-like setiing. The concept grew to 10 restaurants last year, opening
in both new {S1. Llouis] and existing {Nashville and Allanta) markets. lis reputation
for attentive service that's polished withoui being pretentious and inventive menu
selections, including the Coffee-Cured Filei and Whiskey Shrimp on Country Toasi,
appecls io a broad crosssection of guests, ranging from business groups seeking
comfortable, private-dining accommaodations to couples celebrating anniversaries,
oll at less than special occasion prices.

Ninety Nine Restaurant

Serving more than 20 million guests o veas, the Ninefy Nine Restourant is New
England’s leading ¢osual-dining concepl. Last year's expansion into New Jersey
and Pennsylvanic introduced the Ninety Ning's unparalleled levels of service and
quality to a new and enthusiastic audience. Recent additions to the menu, including
the Filet Mignon with Grilled Asparagus and Rosemary and Parmesan-Dusted French
Fries, Sweet Scuthemn Fried Chicken with Peach Chutney and Vegetable Pot Stickers
represent the concept's desire o set new casualdining standards by providing guests
with flavorsome, appetizing menu options ihat reflect new culinary trends, while
conlinuing to offer the resistible raditional ilems, like Broiled Sirloin Tips and Boneless
Buflalo Wings, on which Ninety Nine's reputction was built. Regerdless of your taste
preference, just as Ninety Nine's founder promised in 1952, you'll abways come
back for more.

Concept Highlights (at veor End

e
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LOCATIONS SALES AVERAGE CHECK
O'Charley’s 227 $633.4 Million $12.04
Stoney River 10 $ 33.5 Million $41.72
Ninety Nine 114 $311.9 Million $14.08




To Qur Shareholders, Team Members, Guests and Business Partners,

We made O'Charley's Inc. @ stronger and better company in fiscal 2006 and,
while we faced o challenging macro-econemic environment lasi yeas, we made
significant progress in our turnaround plans as evidenced by the improvement in

our financial results:

e For fiscal 20006, revenue rose 6.4 percent to $989.5 million. The 2006 fiscal
year had 53 weeks, compered to 52 weeks in the prior fiscal year. The extra
week occurred in the fourth quarter, and contributed $21.2 million to fourth-

quarter and fiscal 2006 revenue.

+ Income fiom operations was $40.5 million, or 4.1 percent of revenue, compared

with $28.4 million, or 3.1 percent of revenue, in the prior fiscal year.

» For the 20006 fiscal year, same-store sales declined 0.8 percent at O'Charley’s
company-operaied restaurants, and increased 0.7 percent ot Ninety Nine
Restourant and 4.0 percent at Stoney River legendary Steaks. Average check

per guest increased at all of our reslaurant concepts.

*  We reported fullyear earnings of $18.9 million, or $0.80 per diluted share,
compared with earnings of $12.0 million, or $0.52 per diluted share, in the
prior year.

in our annuc! report for fiscal 2005, we outlined o clear siraiegy in which we set
aboul 1o fransform cur company, improve our operaling performance and enhance
shareholder value. The balance of this letter will be devoted to bringing you up fo
date on the considerable progress we made in ecch of these areas over the course

of the past fiscal year.

New Members Join Our “Winning Team”

Building a “winning team” by strengthening the managemeni ai all levels of cur
company is a key element of our strategy 1o transform O'Cherley's Inc. During the poss
yeor, we added o number of highly experienced and successhul members 1o our team,
Jeff Warne became president of our flogshin O'Cherley’s concept. He joined us from
the Carlson Companies where he wos president of Pick Up Stix and previously the
chief operciing officer of TGI Friday's International. leon de Wet came on board as
chief information officer. He joined us from Brinker International Inc. Larry Taylor,
formerly of the Cerlson Companies, was nemed fo the newly-created position of chief
supply chain officer. Dr. Steve McMillen wos named vice president of human resources
develcpment and wos previcusly with Hillenbrand Industiies. Colin Daly was named to
the posilicn of senior corporale counsel, alse a newlycreated position of the company,
and jeined us from ARAMARK Corporation. Rolend Ornelas, formerly of the Carlson
Companies, was added as vice president of sirategic sourcing. At Ninety Nine,
Bob Hoffmeister was appointed regional vice president of operations and joined the
company from Au Bon Pain. We also nomed Melissa Thompson vice president of

corporate communicotions and she joined us from Interstate Hotels & Resorts, Inc.




With the addition of these highly capable executives, our entire management team

has been virivally revamped as a result of a process that began nearly twe years ago.

We are pleased 1o report that there is o winning atiitude spreading throughout the
company. Cleady, our company has benefited greatly from new ideas ond strolegies
that our new team members hove brought 1o Q'Charley's Inc, These ideas have
been embroced with enthusiosm by all of our team members and are positively
impacting every aspect of our business, including our core lecdership development,
brand management and restaurant operations, as well as our support processes

and systems.

In addition, we have instituted a new process o enhance screening, fraining
and motivating cur feam members to achieve operational excellence and improve
long-term perormance. To truly build a winning ream, we need 1o optimize the
performance of every member of the team, and we are daing just that for it is

our long-erm vision and mission to become a bestof-class restaurant company.

Improving the “Box Economics”

We hove been focused on improving whal we call the "box economics.” We
define that os the relctionship between the invesiment in our restaurants and the sales
and reloled opercling margin that these sales should produce. Duiing the past fiscal
year, we confinued to see positive resulis from our efforts. Income from operations

as a percentage of revenue increcsed versus the prior year. This was a result of the

higher average check ot all three brands, the continued efficiencies gained from cur

“Building a ‘winning team’
by strengthening the
management at all levels
of our company is a key
element of our strategy to

transform O’Charley’s Inc”




“Achieving high guest

satisfaction is another

high priority strategic focus.

A Passion to Serve™ is
our corporate operating
philosophy and a critical
element in transforming
O’Charley’s Inc. into a

best-of-class company.”

thecretical food cost system, os well as reductions in employee benefit costs ond
confinued improvements in labor management. We expect further cost savings through
odditione! operational efficiencies and other inffiatives we plan to putin ploce. In fact,
to underscore the importance of this initiative, the cornerstone of our management
fecm’s incentive plans for 2007 is bosed on improvements in sales, operaling morgins

and guest satisfaction.

One aspect of improving the box economics is increasing the profitability of every
guest we serve. At O'Charley’s, average check increased last year; however, gues!
counts declined. The decline in guest counts was not unexpected, and much of it
reflects our decision to begin the gradual phase out of the Kids Eat Free offering and
the significant scale back in the level of coupon and price promotions compared to
prior years, While we lost some of our more price-sensitive customers at O'Charley’s,
the resulting increase in averoge check contributed to our improved margins and
demonsirated that the core O'Charey’s guest places censiderable value on great
food with unique flavor profiles and @ higher level of service. Qur decision io reduce
the aveilahility of Kids fot Free was not one that we 1ook lightly and was researched
carefully. We reached the conclusion that Kids fat Free wos no longer consistent
with the brand imege for O"Charley’s, and our geal is to ctract new customers
through our unique menu offerings, attentive service ard our brand promise to be our
guests’ favorite locel place. We expect to complete the phase out of Kids Eat free
by mid-2008.

While the consumer and compesitive environment in New England continues to
be challenging, Ninety Nine achieved positive same-slore sales growth for the
full fiscal yeor, which we believe is a testament to the strength of the concept and
its manogement team. Much like we have done at O'Charley’s, we significantly
reduced the level of couponing and price promotions at Ninety Nine compared to
the prior year, which contribuled to the increase in cveroge check and the decline

in guest counis.

We conlinue to be very pleased with Stoney River's performance in terms of
seme-store soles ond operational improvement and believe that that concept has
estoblished a unique position in the upscale steakhouse segment. Lost year, we opened
our new Sioney River in the Cumberland Mall crea of Atlanto; this marks our first
opening in a mallbased setling. The opening in the Cumberland Mall represents
our third Stoney River in the Allania merket and follows the opening of our successful
St. Lovis restousant. Both of these restaurants hove o new design and fleor plan, and
we are very pleased with their performance. We clso opened o new Stoney River
in the West End area of Nashville, the first Stoney River restaurant to serve lunch and

we believe this offers o potential growth opportunity for the concept.




During ihe post year, we made considerable progress in our rebranding effots,

which consists of a two-pronged approoch—the rebranding of our existing stores
under Froject RevO'lution and Project Dressed io the Nines inilictives and, secondly,
the use of new prototype designs in our restaurant development efforts. Ve have
now completed 11 Froject RevO'lution rebrandings al O'Charley’s ond 15 Dressed
lo the Nines rebrandings ot Ninety Nire. We have infroduced new concept
elements, including new unitorms, plateware, meny designs, curbside to-go service,
kitchen display systems and new service standards, We have decided to proceed
with 30 Project Dressed fo the Nines rebrandings ot Ninety Nine for 2007, We
continue fo be pleased with the performance of our rebranded O'Charley’s
restauranis, the first of which opened in September of lost yeor; however, we

continue to fine tune and test the model.

Towards the end of last year, we cpened the first company-operated O'Charley’s
using our new protolype design in Mi. Juliet, Tennessee, a suburb of Nashville.
The new prototype features new color schemes inside and out, new exterior signage
and a number of interior changes designed to enhance the guest experience and
improve operational efficiencies in both the dining room and kichen. Prior to opening
the Mt. Juliet restaurant, we opened this new prototype in our franchise restaurant in
Niles, Ohio and later in our joint venture resiavrant in Appleton, Wisconsin, Guest
recction at all three locations has been very positive. We recently opened additional
O'Charley's sestourants featuring the new prototype in Carrollten, Georgio end
Columbia, Tennessee. All of the planned new O'Charley’s restaurants for 2007 will
feature this new prototype design.

The first new Ninety Nine prototype restaurant is under construction and will

open in eary 2007. This new prototype is a culmination of considerable resecich

and highlights the brand elements that attroct new guests, stimulate repeat visits end

“We have been focused on
improving what we call the
‘box economics. We define
that as the relationship
between the investment in
our restaurants and the
sales and related operating
margin that those sales

should produce.”




“Our primary goal is to
build a truly great company
positioned to deliver
outstanding shareholder

rlue”

complement our focus on quality food and service. Many of the elemenis that will be

featured in the new prciotype came from our Project Dressed fo the Nines initiative.

During the past year, we made the decision to stow the pace of our expansion
efforts in crder to concentrate on improving the profitobility and performance of our
exisling restauranis. While we are pleased with our efforts 1o date, we are toking a
cautious approach with our expansion progiom. For 2007, we plan to open four to
six campany-owned O'Charey’s, three fo five Ninety Nine restaurants and one or
two Stoney River restaurants. In terms of our franchising activities, we anticipate the

opening of two or three O'Charley’s during 2007,

Supporling our three restouront concepis is our Quelity Product Center, which
acquires, manufactures and distributes high-quality products for our restaurants. We
continue to study various oplions for this operation, including a strategic restructuring,
and | have been warking very closely with larry Taylor, our chief supply chain

officer, to determine how this operation fits into our company’s future.

A Passion to Serve™

Achieving high guest satisfaction is another high-priority strategic focus. A Passion o
Serve™ is our corporate operating phjlosophy and o eritical element in transforming
QO'Chailey's Inc. into a bestaf-class company. [n this very competitive markelploce,
building guest loyaly by stimulating the intent to refurn has never been more imporiant.

Guest satisfaction is a eritical index that we measure and s a key facior in our

incentive bonus plan.




We continue to firmly believe that the best maikeiing tokes place within the four
walls. We remain focused on improving guest satisfaction through A Passion to
Serve™ Project RevC'lution, Froject Dressed 1o the Nines, os well as through refinements
in our training ond development programs. We are enhancing the quality of our ‘
food cnd beverages in our establishments, the quelity of the restauranis and the efforis

that our peaple make in providing our guests with @ high-quclity experience.

We clso believe that we offer the consumer some of the best values in the
marketplace. In addition 1o great values, we are constantly working on tuly great
menu items that are unique 10 our concepts. Our product development leams al all
three concepts continue to deliver great tosling menu offerings that differentiale our
restausants from our competitors. For example, O'Charley’s offers Louisiana Sirloin,
Cedar-Planked Salmon and California Chicken Salad. At Ninety Nine, we launched
Filet Mignen with Rosemary and Parmesan-Dusted Fries and Sweet Southern Fried
Chicken with Peach Chutney and Garlic Red-Skin Mashed Potatoes.

Commitment to Delivering Shareholder Value

Qur primary goal is to build a truly great company pesitioned to deliver
outsicnding shaseholder value. Achieving this goal will require operational excellence,
the delivery of unique food with exceptional service and strict attention to

customer satisfaction.

Today, dll of cur concepis—O'Charley’s, Ninely Nine, Stoney River—have clear
and distinctive brand positions, unique menu offeings that distinguish our restourants
from the competition and improving controls of our preduct and labor costs, which
are enhancing profitability.

While | om pleased with the progress we have made in the past year, the job is
not done and our senior menagement tleam and operators confinue to have a high

sense of urgency and cre focused on improving every aspect of our business.

We begin fiscal 2007 a stronger company and we are guided by o clecr stategy,
a stategy that is driven by a shared vision of becoming best-of-closs. We are
committed to both innovation and improvemeni. We are guided by o conservative
fiscal policy ond possess o vaoluoble asset base. And, most importently, we have

the teom in place to succeed.

We want to thank our employees, shareholders, and board of directors for
their support and dedicotion this past year and for their continued cantributions

in the future.

Sincerely,

Gregory L. Burns

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
O'Charley’s Inc.
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(’CHARLEY’S INC,

PART I
Item 1.  Business.

We are a leading casual dining restaurant company headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee. We own and operate three restaurant concepts
which operate under the “O’Charley’s,” “Ninety Nine Restaurants” and “Stoney River Legendary Steaks” trade names. As of December 31,
2006, we operated 227 O'Charley’s restaurants in 16 states in the Southeast and Midwest regions, 114 Ninety Nine restaurants in nine
Northeastern states, and ten Stoney River restaurants in the Southeast and Midwest. As of December 31, 2006, we had six franchised O'Charley’s
restaurants including five franchised O’ Charley’s restaurants in Michigan and one franchised O'Charley's restaurant in Ohio. As of December 31,
2006, we had three joint venture O’Charley’s restaurants in Louisiana, and one joint venture O'Charley’s restaurant in Wisconsin, in all of which
we have an ownership interest.

Our Restaurant Concepts
O'Charley's

We acquired the original O’Charley’s restaurant in Nashville, Tennessee in May 1984. O'Charley’s is a casual dining restaurant concept
whose strategy is to differcntiate its restaurants by serving high-quatity, freshly prepared food a1 maderate prices and with attentive guest service.
(’Charley's restaurants are intended to appeal to a broad spectrum of guests from a diverse income base, including mainstream casual dining
guests, as well as upscale casual dining and value oriented guests. The O'Charley's menu is mainstream, but innovative and distinctive in taste.
The O'Charley’s menu features a variety of items including USDA Choice hand-cut and aged steaks, baby-back ribs basted with our own tangy
BBQ sauce, fresh salmon, a variety of seafood, salads with special recipe salad dressings and O'Charley’s signature caramel pie. All entrees are
cooked to order and feature a selection of side items in addition to our hot, freshly baked yeast rolls. We believe the large number of freshly
prepared items on the O°Charley’s menu helps differentiate our O'Charley’s concept from other casual dining restaurants.

O'Charley’s restaurants are open seven days a week and serve lunch, dinner and Sunday brunch and offer full bar service. Specialty menu
items include “limited time only” promotions, O'Charley's Lunch Club and 2 special kids menu with a “kids eat free” program in selected
markets. We are continually developing new menu items for our O'Charley’s restaurants to respond to changing guest tastes and preferences.
Lunch entrees range in price from $6.99 to $9.99, with dinner entrees ranging from $7.29 to $17.99. The average check per guest, including
beverages, was $12.04 in 2006, $11.52 in 2005, and $11.52 in 2004,

We seek to create a casual, neighborhood atmosphere in our ("Charley's restaurants through an open layout and exposed kitchen and by
tailoring the decor of our restaurants to the local community. The exterior typically features bright red and green neon borders, multi-colored
awnings and attractive landscaping. The interior typically is open, casual and well lighted and features warm woods, exposed brick, color prints
and hand-painted murals depicting local history, people, places and events. The prototypical O'Charley’s restaurant is a free-standing building
ranging in size from approximately 4,900 to 6,800 square feet with seating for approximately 163 to 275 guests, including approximately 60 bar
seats, We periodically update the interior and exterior of our restaurants 1o reflect refinements in the concept and respond to changes in guest
tastes and preferences.

Historically, we have grown the Q"Charley’s concept through cpening new restaurants. As part of the strategic planning process and our
focus on improving results in existing restaurants, we decided to open fewer restaurants in 2006. We opened three new company-owned
restaurants and closed one company-owned restaurant in 2006. In 2007, we plan on developing between four and six new company-owned
restaurants and four new franchised or joint venture O"Charley’s restaurants. We also plan on rebranding approximately 20 to 30 restaurants in
2007 as part of our 'Project Rev'Olution’ initiative. This initiative is focusing the concept on our overall brand design to enhance the gues
experience as well as improve our profitability.

Ninety Nine Restaurants

In January 2003, we acquired Ninety Nine restaurants, (“Ninety Nine™) a Wobum, Massachusetts based casual dining concept that began in
1952 with its initial location at 99 State Street in downtown Boston. Ninety Nine restaurants are casual dining restaurants that we believe have
earned a reputation as friendly, comfortable places to gather and enjoy great American food and drink at a terrific price. Ninety Nine restaurants
are intended to appeal to mainstream casual dining and value oriented guests, The Ninety Nine menu features approximately 75 items. including a
wide selection of appetizers, soups, salads, sandwiches, burgers, beef, chicken and seafood entrees and desserts. Ninety Nine restaurants offer full
bar service, including a wide selection of imported and domestic beers, wines and specialty drinks.

Ninety Nine restaurants are open seven days a week and serve lunch and dinner, Lunch entrees range in price from $6.49 to $8.99 with
dinner entrees ranging from $6.79 to $15.99. The average check per guest, including beverages, was $14.08 in 2006, §13.69 in 2005, and $13.86
in 2004.

Ninety Nine restaurants seck to provide a warm and friendly neighborhood pub atmosphere, Signature elements of the prototypical Ninety
Nine restaurant include an open view kitchen, booth seating and a centrally located rectangular bar. The prototypical Ninety Nine restaurant is a
free-standing building of approximately 5,800 square feet in size with scating for approximately 190 guests, including approximately 30 bar seats.
Ninety Nine has grown through remodeling traditional and non-traditional restaurant locations as well as through developing new restaurants in
the style of our prototype restaurant. During 2007, we plan to open between three and five new Ninety Nine restaurants. We also plan on
rebranding approximately 30 restaurants in 2007 as part of our ‘Dressed to the Nines ' initiative.




Stoney River Legendary Steaks

We acquired Stoney River in May 2000, Stoney River restauranis are upscale steakhouses that are intended to appeal to beth upscale casual
dining and fine dining guests by offering the high-quality food and attentive guest service typical of high-end steakhouses at more moderate
prices. Stontey River restaurants have an upscale “mountain lodge™ design with a large stone fireplace, plush sofas and rich woods that is intended
to make the interior of the restaurant inviting and comfortable. The Stoniey River menu features several offerings of premium Midwestern beef,
fresh seafood and a variety of other gourmet entrees. An extensive assortment of freshly prepared salads and side dishes are available a la carte.
The menu also includes several specialty appetizers and desserts. Stoney River restaurants offer full bar service, including an extensive setection
of wines. The price range of entrees is $16.99 to $32.99. The average check per guest, including beverages, was $41.72 in 2006, $40.56 in 2005
and $39.53 in 2004,

We established a “managing partner program™ for the general managers of our Stoney River restaurants pursuant {o which each general
manager had the opportunity to acquire a six percent interest in the limited liability company that owns the restaurant that the general manager
manages in exchange for a capital contribution o that subsidiary. The general managers at four Stoney River restaurants each acquired a six
percent interest in their restaurant for a capital contribution of $25,000. Upon the fifth anniversary of the managing partner’s capital contribution
(o the subsidiary, we have the option, but not the obligation, to purchase the managing partner’s six percent interest for fair market value. Under
the terms of the agreements between us and each managing partner, fair market value would be determined by negotiations between the parties. If
such negotiations did not result in an agreement on value, a third-party appraisal process would be used to determine fair market value. During
2006, we purchased two of our managing partner’s six percent interest. In addition, during 2006 we implemented a new “managing partner
program™ which is a five year operating agreement between us and the general manager that allows the general manager to receive five percent of
their restaurant’s profit each quarter and one percent of the profit in all the restaurants participating under this new program. We also acerue an
additional five percent of the restaurant’s profit and one percent of the participating restaurant’s profit in the program each quarter 1o be paid
upon the fifth annjversary of the agreement in exchange for a $25,000 cash investment by the general manager. The cash investments made
under the new managing partner program are recorded and shown in the consolidated balance sheet as an other liability. At December 31, 2006,
we had two managing partners under our original “managing pariner program” and five general managers under our new “managing partner
program”. In 2007, we plan on opening one or two new Stoney River restaurants.

Support Operations

Quality Product Cenier (formerly known as our Commissary Operation). We operate an approximately 220,000 square foot quality product
center in Nashville, Tennessee through which we manufacture, purchase and distribute a substantial majority of the food products and supplies
for our O"Charley’s, Ninety Nine and Stoney River restaurants. To a lesser extent, the quality product center sells manufactured items to other
customers, including retail grocery chains, mass merchandisers and wholesale clubs. In addition, our Nashville quality product center operates a
USDA-approved and inspected facility where we process beef and chicken products for O*Charley’s, Ninety Nine and steaks for Stoney River
restaurants. Additionally we operate a production facility where the signature yeast rolls and salad dressings served in our O’Charley’s restaurants
are produced. We believe our Nashviile quality product center has sufficient capacity to meet a substantial majority of the distribution needs of
our existing and planned O’Charley’s and Stoney River restaurants for the next several years. We also operate a 20,000 square foot production
facility located in Wobumn, Massachusetts which is a USDA-approved and inspected facility where we cut beef tips, wrkey tips, selected steaks,
marinate chicken, and produce soups served in our Ninety Nine restaurants. We also operatc a 79,000 square foot distribution facility in
Bellingham, Massachusetts to supply our Ninety Nine concept. During 2006, we hired Larry Taylor, as our Chief Supply Chain Officer, and
Roland Ornelas, as our Vice President of Sirategic Sourcing. Larry and his team are aggressively pursuing cost saving opportunities, exploring
ways 10 improve the quality of our products, and benchmarking all operations currently performed by the quality product center. Resulis of the
benchmarking will be used to evaluate all optiens required to optimize O’Charley’s’ supply chain, including potential divestiture of our quality
product center.

Human Resources. We maintain a human resources department that supports restaurant operations, the restaurant support center, the financial
services center and quality product center through the design and implementation of policies, programs, procedures and benefits for our team
members. The human resources department is responsible for the oversight of team member relations and enforces the allemnative dispute
resolution process, However, all team members are encouraged to first address any employment related issues or concerns through our open door
pelicies or a toll free 800 number. This department also maintains our code of conduct and addresses possible compliance issues. The human
resources area also administers the Team Member Survey and is responsible for idemifying issues and developing action plans to resolve any
issues that are identified. During 2006, we hired Dr. Steve McMillen as our Vice President of Human Resource Development. He has initiated a
process designed to improve the quality of employees we hire, evaluate the strengths of our team, ensure we optimize the performance of our
team members at al] [evels across the enterprise and ultimately improve the overall operating execution and performance of our restaurants.

Guest Relations. Our guests’ expectations and experiences are measured through the Guest Satisfaction Index (GSI). GSI is a survey-based
tool designed to measure guest satisfaction levels at each O"Charley's and Ninety Nine restaurant, providing immediate feedback to all levels of
the organization. Guests are issued an invitation on a random basis through our point-of-sale system to take a telephone survey. Primary focus is
placed on identification and improvement of top box predictors of a highly satisfied guest experience. Our ability to continuously monitor service
levels and satisfaction at the restaurant level, while providing guests with a convenient, brief, unbiased, and user-frtendly way to share their
comments, allows us to focus on converting satisfied guests to highly satisfied or loyal guests. In addition to measuring and communicating guest
satisfaction results, our guest relations team receives direct calls and written correspondence from our (F'Charley’s and Ninety Ninc guests,
ensuring timely and accurate response to all communications.

Advertising and Marketing. We have an ongoing advertising and marketing plan for cach of our restaurant concepts that utilize television,
radio and print advertising. We also support our restaurants with point of purchasc materials, menus and local restaurant marketing programs.
We focus our marketing efforts on limited time promotional products, the quality and freshness of our products, the types of guests that typically
visit us and the restaurant setting,. We conduct or subsctibe to studies of food trends, changes in guest tastes and preferences and are continnally




evaluating the quality of our menu offerings. In addition to advertising, we encourage restaurant level team members to become active in their
communities through local charities and other organizations and sponsorships.

Restaurant Reporting. Our use of technology and management information systems is essential for the management oversight needed to
improve our operating results, During 2006, we completed the implementation of a theoretical food cost system in our O'Charley’s restaurants
through which we more closely monitor waste during the food preparation and execution stages of our operations. We maintain operational and
financial controls in each restaurant, including management information systems that monitor sales, inventory, and labor and that provide reports
and data to our restaurant support center. The management accounting system polls data from our restaurants and generates daily reports of sales,
sales mix, guest counts, check average, cash, labor and food cost. Management utilizes this data to monitor the effectiveness of controls and to
prepare periodic financial and management reports. We also utilize these systems for financial and budgetary analysis, including analysis of sales
by restaurant, product mix and labor utilization. Our internal audit department audits a sample of our restaurants to measure compliance within
our operational systems, procedures and controls. The Financial Services Center (FSC) is located in Brentwood, Tennessee and has been designed
1o consolidate and integrate our accounting functions. We believe that consolidating the accounting function of our three concepts provides a
structure that creates consistency and provides more ceniraiized control over our accouniing and financial reporting function while also
promoting continuous process improvement and savings.

Real Estate and Construction. We maintain an in-house real estate and construction department to assist in the site selection process, secure
real estate, develop architectural and engineering plans, oversee new construction and remodel existing restaurants. We maintain a broad database
of possible sites which we analyze against our site criteria in order to target the best possible locations. Once a site is selected, our real estate
department oversees the acquisition process, while our construction department obtains zoning and all other required governmental approvals,
develops detailed building plans and specifications and constructs and equips the restaurants.

Restaurant Locations

The following table sets forth the markets in which our company-owned (*Charley’s, Ninety Nine and Stoney River restaurants were located
at December 31, 2006, including the number of restaurants in each market.

O’Charley’s Restaurants

Alabama (20) Kentucky (20) Ohio (19)
Birmingham (5} Ashland Cincinnati {7)
Decatur Bowling Green Cleveland
Dothan Cold Spring Cotumbus (7)
Florence Danville Dayton (3)
Guntersville Elizabethtown Harrison
Huntsville (2) Florence
Mobile (4) Frankfon South Carelina (12)
Montgemery (2) Hopkinsville Aiken
Opelika Lexington (4) Anderson
Oxford Louisville (5) Charleston (2}
Tuscaloosa Owensboro Columbia (3)
Paducah Greenville
Arkansas (3) Richmond Greenwood
Fayetteville Rock Hill
Jonesboro Louisiana (1) Simpsonville
Rogers Monroe Spartanburg




Florida (6)
Destin
Jacksonville (3)
Panama City
Pensacola

Georgia (26)
Atlanta (17)
Augusta
Canton
Columbus
Dalton

Ft. Oglethorpe
Gainesville
Griffin

Macon (2)

Illinois (5)
Champaign
Marion
O'Fallen
Springfield (2)

Indiana (20)
Bloomington
Clarksviile
Corydon
Evansville (2)
Fort Wayne (2)
Indianapolis (11)
Lafayette
Richmond

Mississippi (8)
Hattiesburg
Meridian

Olive Branch
Pearl
Ridgeland
Southhaven
Tupelo
Gulfport

Missouri (11)
Cape Girardeau
Kansas City (3}
St. Louis (7)

North Carolina (25)

Asheville
Burlington
Charlotte (9)
Fayetteville
Cireensboro
Greenville
Hendersonville
Hickory
Jacksonville
Raleigh (3)
Wilmington (2)
Winston-Salem (2}
Wake Forest

Tennessee (37)
Chattanooga (2)
Clarksville (2)
Cleveland
Cookeville
Hendersonville
Jackson
Johnson City
Kingsport
Knoxville (5)
Manchester
Memphis (3)
Morristown

Mt. Juliet
Murfreesboro (2)
Nashville {12)
Pigeon Forge
Springfield

Virginia (12)
Bristol
Fredericksburg
Harrisonburg
Lynchburg
Roancke (2)
Richmond {6)

West Virginia (2)
Charleston (2)




Nineiy Nine Restaurants

Connecticut (15)
Enfield

Groton

Hartford (8)
Manchester

New Haven (2)
Norwich
Torrington

Maine (5)
Augusta
Bangor
Portland (3)

Massachusetts (61)
Aubumn

Boston (37)
Centerville
Chicopee
Fairhaven

Fall River
Fitchburg
Holyoke
Mashpee

North Attleboro
North Dartmouth
Plymouth
Pittsfield
Seekonk
Springfield (4)
Tewksbury

West Yarmouth
Worcester (4)
Marlboro

Stoney River Restaurants

Georgia (3}
Atlanta (3)

Iltinois (2)
Chicago (2)

New Hampshire (14)
Concord
Dover
Hooksett
Keene
Littleton
Londonderry
Manchester
Nashua

North Conway
Portsmouth
Salem
Seabrook
Tilton

West Lebanon

New York (9}
Albany (2)
Clifton Park
Kingston
Plattsburgh
Queensbury
Rotterdam
Saratoga Springs
Utica

Kentucky (1)
Louisville

Tennessee (2)
Nashville (2}

Pennsylvania (3)
Trevose (Bensalem)
Audubon
Philadelphia

Rhaode [sland (3)
Cranston
Newport
Warwick

Vermont (3)
Rutland
Williston
Brattleboro

New Jersey (1)
Deptford

Ohio (1)
Columbus

Missouri (1}
St. Louis

In addition to the above company-owned locations, as of December 31, 2006, we had six franchised O’Charley’s restaurants including five
franchised O'Charley's restaurants in Michigan and one franchised O'Charley's restaurant in Ohio. Alse at December 31, 2006 we had three joint
venture O’Charley’s testaurants in Louisiana, and one joint venture O'Charley's restaurant in Wisconsin, in all of which we have an ownership
interest. The locations of these restaurants are set forth below,

Franchised Restaurants Joint Venture Restaurants

Michigan (5) Louisiana (3)

Belleville Baton Rouge

Chesterfield Lafayette

Grand Rapids Lake Charles

Holland

Livonia Wisconsin (1}
Appleton

Ohio (1)

Niles




Franchising

We seek franchising relationships with successful restaurant operators for the development of O'Charley's restaurants in areas that are
outside of our current growth plans for company-owned restaurants, We have entered into and continue to look to enter into, exclusive multi-unit
development agreements with third party franchisees and joint venture partners to open and operate O’Charley’s restaurants. Franchisees and
joint venture partners are required to comply with our specifications as to restaurant space, design and décor, menu items, principal food
ingredients, team member training and day-to-day operations. The following table illustrates the various agreements that we have executed with
our joint venture partners and franchisees along with the contracted markets, the current number of restaurants operated by each joint venture and
franchisee and the number of restaurants that they are contractually required to develop and open:

Total
Franchise / Joint Restaurants
Venture Current Contracted for
Program Entity Restaurants Development Markets

Joint Venture:

JFC Enterprises, LLC Southern Louisiana and Beaumont,
Texas

Wi-Tenn Restaurants, LLC Wisconsin
Franchisee:

Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC lowa, Nebraska, Topeka, Kansas and
Eastern South Dakota

Q'Candall Group, Inc. Tampa and Orlando Florida, Western
Pennsylvania, Northwest West Virginia
and Northern Ohio

Meritage Hospitality Group, Inc. Michigan
Service Marks

The name “O’Charley’s” and its logo, the name “Stoney River Legendary Steaks,” and the Ninety Nine restaurants logo are registered
service marks with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We also have other service marks that are registered in the states in which we
operate. We are aware of names and marks similar to our service marks used by third parties in certain limited geographical areas. Use of our
service marks by third parties may prevent us from licensing the use of our service marks for restaurants in those areas. We intend to protect our
service marks by appropriate legal action whenever necessary.

Government Regulation

We are subject to various federal, state and local laws affecting our business. Our quality product centers are licensed and subject to
regulation by the USDA. In addition, each of our restaurants is subject to licensing and regulation by a number of governmentai authorities,
which may include alcoholic beverage control, health, safety, sanitation, building and fire agencies in the state or municipality in which the
restaurant is Jocated. Most municipalities in which our restaurants are located require local business licenses, Difficulties in obtaining or failures
to obtain the required licenses or approvals could delay or prevent the development of a new restaurant in a particular area. We are also subject to
federal and state environmental regulations, but those regulations have not had a material effect on our operations to date.

Approximately 12 percent of restaurant sales in 2006 were attributable to the sale of alcoholic beverages. Each restaurant, where permitted
by local law, has appropriate licenses from regulatory authorities allowing it to sell liquor, beer and wine, and in some states or localities, to
provide service for extended hours and on Sunday. Each restaurant has food service licenses from local health authorities, Similar licenses would
be required for each new restaurant. The failure of a restaurant 1o obtain or tetain liquor or food service licenses could adversely affect its
operations or, in an extreme case, cause us to close the restaurant. We have established standardized procedures for our restaurants designed to
assure compliance with applicable codes and regulations.

We are subject, in most states in which we operate restaurants, to “dram-shop™ statutes or judicial interpretations, which generally provide a
person injured by an intoxicated person the right to recover damages from an establishment that wrongfully served alcoholic beverages to the
intoxicated person.

Many of our markets are seeing changes in laws regarding smoking inside of buildings. These laws can negatively affect our bar business,
with ancillary ¢ffects on our dining room business.

The federal Americans with Disabilities Act prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in public accommodations and employment.
We design our restaurants to be accessible to the disabled and believe that we are in substantial compliance with all current applicable regulations
relating to restavrant accommodations for the disabled.

The development and construction of additional restaurants will be subject to compliance with applicable zoning, land use and environmenta]
regulations. Our restaurant operations are also subject to federal and state minimum wage laws and other laws governing matters such as working




conditions, citizenship requirements, overtime and tip credits. In the event a proposal is adopted that materially increases the applicable minimum
wage, the wage increase would likely result in an increase in payroll and benefits expense.

Team Members

As of December 31, 2006, we employed approximately 25,000 team members, approximately 22,500 of which represented our hourly
workforce within our restaurants. None of our teamn members are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We have an alternative dispute
resolution program in which all team members are required to participate as a condition of employment. We consider our team member relations
to be good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers are elected by the board of directors and serve at the pleasure of the board of directors, The following table sets forth
certain information regarding our executive officers.

Name Age Position

Gregory L. Burns 52 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Lawrence E. Hyatt 52  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Randall C. Harris 56 Chief Human Resources Officer

Lawrence D. Taylor 49 Chief Supply Chain Officer

Leon De Wet 45  Chief Information Officer

Jeff D, Warne 46 Concept President - O’Charley’s

John R. Grady 54 Concept President-Ninety Nine Restauranis
Anthony J. Halligan 111 48 Concept President-Stoney River Legendary Steaks
R. Jeffrey Williams 40 Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller
James K. Quackenbush 48 Corporate Vice-President of Development

The following is a brief summary of the business experience of each of our executive officers.

Gregory L. Burns has served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board since February 1994, Mr. Bumns, a director since 1990,
served as President from September 1996 to May 1999 and from May 1993 to February 1994, as Chief Financial Officer from October 1983 to
Septetuber 1996, and as Executive Vice President and Secretary from October 1983 to May 1993.

Lawrence E. Hyatt has served as Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer since November 2004. Prior to joining our company, he
was Exccutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cole National Corporation from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Hyatt was with PSINet, Inc. as
Chief Financial and Restructuring Officer from 2000 to 2002; with HMS Host Corporation as Chief Financial Officer from 1999 to 2000; and
with Sodexho Marriott Services, Inc. and its predecessor company as Chief Financial Officer from 1989 to 1999

Randall €. Harris has served as Chief Human Resources Officer since October 2005. Prior to joining our company, he was Senior Vice
President of Human Resources for Nextel Communications from 1999 to 2005. Mr. Harris was with Sodexho Marriott Services as Chief Human
Resources Officer from 1997 to 1999, Mr. Harris® earlier experience includes general management and human resource positions with Dun &
Bradstreet, First Data Corporation, and American Express.

Lawrence D. Tavlor has served as Chief Supply Chain Officer since May 2006. Prior to joining our company, he was the Chief Procurement
Officer for Catlson Companies, Inc. from 2003 to 2006. Mr. Taylor was Vice President, Supply Chain Management for Carlson Restaurants
from 2001 to 2003. Mr. Taylor’s earlier experience included senior procurement and supply chain management positions with Taco Bell
Corporation, Burger King, Inc., and Perseco. Mr. Taylor was also an owner-operator of a franchised McDonald's restaurant.

Leon De Wet has served as Chief Information Officer since September 2006. Prior to joining our company he was with Brinker
International from 1992 to 2006 and most recently served as the Vice President, Business Intelligence and Strategic Systems, from 2002 to 2006,
His previous roles at Brinker International include Senior Member of Technical Staff, Director of Store Systems and as a Development Manager.
Mr. De Wet’s earlier experiences included management and analyst roles in charge of retail systems at various companies including Michael’s
Stores Inc.

Jeff D. Warne has served as Concept President-O’Charley’s since February 2006. Prior to joining our company he was with Carlson
Companies, [ne. During his tenure at Carlson Companies, Inc. he served as the President and Chief Operating Officer of PickUp Stix from 2005
to 2006 and the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of TGI Friday’s International from 2002 to 2004, Mr. Warne's earlier
experience at Carlson includes serving as Chief Financial Officer of Carlson Restaurants Worldwide from 1998 to 2002, Vice President of
Business Planning from 1994 to 1998, and Director of Corporate Audit from 1990 10 1994,

John R. Grady has served as Concept President-Ninety Nine restaurants since April 2004. Mr. Grady joined Ninety Nine restaurants in
March 1975, Prior to being named President, Mr. Grady was Executive Vice President and has also served in various capacities in the Operations,
Training and Real Estate Departments over the years.




Anthony J. Halligan IfI was named Concept President - Stoney River Legendary Steaks in February 2006. Prior to being named President,
Mr. Halligan served in the capacity of Vice-President from 2000 until 2006. Prior to his tenure with Stoney River, Mr. Halligan served in various
capacities for companies in the restaurant and retail industries.

R. Jeffrey Williams has served as Chief Accounting Officer since February 2006 and as Corporate Controller since February 2003. Mr.
Williams served as ControHer for the O’Charley’s Concept from July 2001 to February 2003. Mr. Williams served as Controller of The Krystal
Company from July 2000 to July 2001, Mr, Williams served as Director of Financial Planning and Analysis for Cracker Barrel Old Country Store
from July 1999 to July 2000 and as Accounting Manager for Cracker Barrel Old Country Store from November 1996 to July 1999. Mr. Williams
is a certified public accountant,

James K. Quackenbush has served as Corporate Vice-President of Development since December 2005, Mr. Quackenbush served as
Executive Vice-President of Strategic Development for the Ninety Nine concept from May 2002 1o November 2005. Prior to joining Ninety Nine
he served in various management positions at McDonald’s Corporation for over fiftcen years.

Avaiilable Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and
cutrent reports on Form 8-K., The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F
Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. We are an electronic filer and the SEC maintains an Internet site at hitp://www.sec.gov that contains the reports, proxy and
information statements, and other informatien filed electronically. Our website address is www.echarleysinc.com. Please note that our website
address is provided as an inactive textual reference only. We make available free of charge through our website the annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or fumnished to the SEC. The information provided on our website is not part of this report, and is therefore
not incorporated by reference unless such information is specifically referenced elsewhere in this report.

We have posted our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and Business Ethics Policy for directors, offtcers and team
members, and the charters of our Audit, Compensation and Human Resources and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees of the
board of directors on our website at www.ocharleysine.com. Copies of our corporate governance materials are available free of charge upon
request by any shareholder to our Corporate Secretary, O'Charley’s Inc., 3038 Sidco Drive, Nashville, Tennessee 37204.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors.
Risk Factors

Some of the statements we make in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-locking. Forward-looking statements are generally
identifiable by the use of the words “anticipate,” “will,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “seck” or similar expressions, These
forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical statements of fact and those regarding our intent, belief, plans eor
expectations including, but not limited to, the discussions of our operating and growth strategy, projections of revenue, income or loss,
information regarding future restaurant openings and capital expenditures, potential increases in food and other operating costs, and ovr
development, expansion, franchising and joint venture plans and future operations. Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown
risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results in future periods to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking
statements. Those risks and uncertainties include, among others, the risks and uncertainties discussed below. Although we believe that the
assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate,
and, therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K will prove to be
accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, you should not regard the inclusion
of such information as a representation by us or any other person that cur objectives and plans will be achieved. We do not undertake any
obligation to publicly release any revisions to any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect events and circumstances occurring after
the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Our success depends on our ability te execute our turnareund strategy, including eur rebranding initiatives.

We are implementing strategic initiatives to improve our management and employee team, improve our restaurant level economics and
enhance guest loyalty. As part of these initiatives, since the end of 2004, we have hired a new Chief Financial Officer, Chief Human Resources
Officer, Concept President — O'Charley's, Chief Supply Chain Officer, Chief Information Officer and other senior executives. Qur successful
implementation of our turnaround efforts will depend, in large part, upon the services of our senior management team, 1f we are unable to
assimilate these new executives, if they fail to perform effectively or if we are unable to retain them, our tumarcund efforts could be adversely
impacted which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and result of operations.

Our turnaround efforts involve a number of initiatives intended to improve our restaurant level economics and enhance guest loyalty,
including the development of new prototype restaurants and the rebranding of many of our existing O'Charley's and Ninety Nine restaurants.
These rebranding efforts inctude substantial remodels. As of March 8, 2007, we have completed 11 rebrandings at O'Charley’s restaurants and 14
rebrandings at Ninety Nine Restaurant restaurants. We are not yet able to determine whether these rebranding initiatives will meet our intended
goals. We plan on rebranding an additional 20 to 3¢ O’Charley’s restaurants and 30 Ninety Nine restaurants in fiscal 2007, A failure to realize
the benefits anticipated from these rebrandings could adversely affect our turnaround efforts,
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Changing consumer preferences and discretionary spending patterns could force us to modify our concepts and menus and could result
in a reduction in our revenues.

Our O’Charley’s and Ninety Nine restaurants are casual dining restaurants that feature menus intended to appeal to a broad spectrum of
guests. Our Stoney River restaurants are upscale steakhouses that feature steaks, fresh seafood and other gourmet entrees. Our continued success
depends, in par, upon the popularity of these foods and these styles of dining. Shifts in consumer preferences away from this cuisine or dining
style could materially adversely affect our future operating results. The restaurant industry is characterized by the continual introduction of new
concepts and is subject to rapidly changing consumer preferences, tastes and eating and purchasing habits. Our success will depend in part on our
ability to anticipate and respond to changing consumer preferences, tastes and eating and purchasing habits, as well as other factors affecting the
restaurant industry, including new market entrarts and demographic changes. We may be forced to make changes in our concepts and menus in
order 1o respond to changes in consumer tastes or dining patterns. f we change a restaurant concept or menu, we may lose guests who do not
prefer the new concept or menu, and may not be able to attract a sufficient new guest base to produce the revenue needed to make the restaurant
profitable. In addition, consumer preferences could be affected by health concerns about the consumption of beef, the primary item on our Stoney
River menu, or by specific events such as E. coli food poisoning or outbreaks of bovine spongiform encephalopathy (mad cow disease}) or other
diseases.

Our success is also dependent to a significant extent on numerous factors affecting discretionary consumer spending, including economic
conditions, disposable consumer income and consumer confidence. Adverse changes in these factors could reduce guest traffic or impose
practical limits on pricing, either of which could harm our results of operations.

We may experience higher operating costs, which would adversely affect our operating results, if we cannot increase menu prices to
cover them.

Our operating results are significantly dependent on our ability to anticipate and react to increases in food, labor, team member benefits,
energy and other costs. Various factors beyond our control, including adverse weather conditions (including humcanes), governmental
regulation, production, availability, recalls of food products and seasonality may affect our food costs or cause a disruption in our supply chain.
We cannot predict whether we will be able to anticipate and react to changing food costs by adjusting our purchasing practices and menu prices,
and a failure to do so could adversely affect our operating results. In addition, because the pricing strategy at our O’Charley’s and Ninety Nine
restaurants is intended to provide an attractive price-to-value relationship, we may not be able to pass along price increases to our guests without
adversely impacting our guest counts.

We compete with other restaurants for experienced management personnel and hourly team members. Each of our concepis offers medical
benefits to hourly team members. Increases in health care costs, changes in state or federal minimum wage laws, or changes in legal
requirements relating to employee benefits would likely cause an increase in our labor costs. We cannot assure you that we will be able to offset
increased wage and benefit costs through our purchasing and hiring practices or menu price increases, particularly over the short term. As a
result, increases in wages and benefits could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our continued growth depends on our ability to open new restaurants and operate our new restaurants profitably, which in turn
depends upon our continued access to capital.

A significant portion of our historical growth has been due to opening new restaurants. We have substantially reduced our new restaurant
growth pending the implementation of our strategic initiatives in our tumaround plan, but still opened three new company-owned O’Charley’s
restaurants, five new Ninety Nine restaurants and three new Stoney River restaurants in 2006. We currently plan to open between four and six
new company-owned O'Charley’s restaurants, between three and five new Ninety Nine restaurants, and one or two new Stoney River restaurants
in 2007. Our ability to open new restaurants successfully depends on a number of factors, such as:

« the selection and availability of quality restaurant sites;

= our ability to negotiate acceptable lease or purchase terms;

= our ability to hire, train and retain the skilled management and other personnel necessary to open, manage and operate new restaurants;
»  our ability to secure the governmental permits and approvals required to open new restaurants;

«  our ability to manage the amount of time and money required to build and open new restaurants, including the possibility that adverse
weather conditions may delay construction and the opening of new restaurants; and

+ the availability of adequate financing,

Many of these factors are beyend our control. In addition, we have historically generated insufficient cash flow from operations to fund our
working capital and capital expenditures and, accordingly, our ability to open new restaurants and our ability to grow, as well as our ability to
meet other anticipated capital needs, may be dependent on our continued access to external financing, including borrowings under our credit
facility and financing obtained in the capital markets. Qur ability to make borrowings under our credit facility will require, among other things,
that we comply with certain financial and other covenants, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to do so. Accordingly, we cannot assure
you that we will be successful in opening new restaurants in accordance with our current plans or otherwise. Furthermore, we cannot assure you
that our new restaurants will generate revenues or profit margins consistent with those of our existing restaurants, or that the new restaurants will
be operated profitably.
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Our growth may strain our management and infrastructure, which could slow our development of new restaurants and adversely affect
our ability to manage existing restaurants.

Our growth has placed significant demands upon cur management. We also face the risk that our existing systems and procedures, restaurant
management systems, financial controls and information systems will be inadequate to support our planned growth. We cannot predict whether
we will be able to respond on a timely basis to alfl of the changing demands that our tumnaround effort and planned growth will impose on
management and these sysiems and controls. If our managemen: is unable to meet these demands or if we fail to continue to improve our
information systems and financial controls or to manage other factors necessary for us to achieve our growth objectives, our operating results or
cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Unanticipated expenses and market acceptance could affect the results of restaurants we open in new and existing markets.

As part of our growth plans, we may open new restaurants in areas in which we have little or no operating experience and in which poteatial
guests may not be familiar with our restaurants. As a result, we have incurred and may continue to incur costs related to the opening, operation,
supervision and promotion of those new restaurants that are substantially greater than those incurred in other areas. Even though we may incur
substantial additional costs with these new restaurants, they may attract fewer guests than our more established restaurants in existing markets, As
a result, the results of operations at new restaurants may be inferior to those of our existing restaurants. The new restaurants may even operate at a
loss.

Our primary growth plan is to open restaurants in or near markets in which we have existing restaurants. We may be unable to attract enough
guests to the new restaurants for them to meet our objectives. Even if we are able to attract enough guests to the new restaurants to meet our
objectives for that restaurant, those guests may be former guests of one of our existing restaurants in that market and the opening of a new
restaurant in the existing market could reduce the revenue of our existing restaurants in that market,

We could Face labor shortages that could adversely affect our results of operations.

Qur success depends in part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a sufficient aumber of qualified team members, including
restaurant managers, kitchen staff and servers, necessary 1o continue our operations and to keep pace with our growth. Qualified individuals of
the requisite caliber and quantity needed to fill these positions are in short supply. Given the low unemployment rates in certain areas in which we
operate, we may have difficulty hiring and retaining qualified management and other personnel. Any inability to recruit and retain sufficient
qualified individuals may adversely affect operating results at existing restaurants and delay the planned openings of new restaurants. Any delays
in opening new restaurants or any material increases in team member turnover rates in existing restaurants could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, operating resuits or cash flows. Additionally, we have increased wages and benefits to attract a sufficient
number of competent team members, resulting in higher labor costs.

Our restaurants are coneentrated geographically; if any one of the regions in which our restaurants are located experiences an econemic
downturn, adverse weather or other material change, our business results may suffer.

Our O’Charley’s restaurants are located predominately in the Southeastern and Midwestern United States. Our Ninety Nine restaurants are
located primarily in the Northeastern United States, As of December 31, 2006, we operated 37 of our 227 O"Charley’s restaurants in Tennessee
and 61 of our 114 Ninety Nine restaurants in Massachusetts. As a result, our business and our financial or operating results may be materially
adversely affected by adverse cconomic, weather or business conditions in these markets, as well as in other geographic regions in which we
locate restaurants.

Our restaurants may not be able to compete successfully with other restaurants, which could adversely affect our resulis of operations.

The restaurant industry is intensely competitive with respect to price, service, location, nutritional and dietary trends and food quality, and
there are many well-established competitors with substantially greater financial and other resources than us, including a large number of national
and regional restaurant chains. Some of our competitors have been in existence for a substantially longer period than us and may be better
established in the markets where our restaurants are or may be located. Additionally, we face increasing competition from the convergence of
restaurant, deli and grocery services, as supermarkets and grocery stores offer “convenient meals™ in the form of improved entrees and side dishes
in their deli sections. If our restaurants are unable to compete successfully in new and existing markets, our results of operations will be
adversely affected.

To the extent that we open restaurants in larger cities and metropolitan areas, we expect competition to be more intense in those markets, We
also compete with other restaurants for experienced management personnel and hourly team members and with other restaurants and retail
establishments for quality sites.

Any disruption in our manufacturing and distribution operations could adversely affect our ability to operate our restaurants.

We operate a quality product center in Nashviile, Tennessee through which we manufaciure, purchase and distribute a substantial majority of
the food products and supplies for our O’Charley’s and Stoney River restaurants. We also operate similar type facilities in Wobum and
Bellingham, Massachusetts, through which we manufacture, purchase and distribute a portion of the food products and supplies for our Ninety
Nine restaurants. [f the operations of our quality preduct centers are disrupted, we may not be able to deliver food and supplies to our restaurants.
If our quality product centers are unable 10 deliver the food products and supplies required to run our restaurants, we may not be able to find other
sources of food or supplies, or, if alternative sources of food or supplies are located, our operating costs may increase. Accordingly, any
disruption in our manufacturing and distribution operations could adversely affect our ability to operate our restaurants and would adversely
affect our results of operations.




We may incur costs or liabilities and lose revenue as the result of government regulation.

Our restaurants are subject (o extensive federal, state and local government regulation, including regulations related to the preparation and
sale of food (such as regulations regarding labeling, allergens content, trans fat content and other menu information regarding nutrition), the sale
of alcoholic beverages, zoning and building codes and other health, sanitation and safety matters. All of these regulations impact not only our
current restaurant operations but alse our ability to open new restaurants. We will be required to comply with applicable state and local
regulations in new locations into which we expand. Any difficulties, delays or failures in obtaining licenses, permits or approvals in such new
locations could detay or prevent the apening of a restaurant in a particular area or reduce operations at an existing location, either of which would
materially and adversely affect our growth and results of operations. In addition, our quality product centers are licensed and subject to regulation
by the United States Department of Agriculture and are subject to further regulation by state and local agencies. Our failure to obtain or retain
federal, state or local licenses for our quality product centers or to comply with applicable regulations could adverscly affect our quality product
centers operations and disrupt delivery of food and other products to our restaurants. If one or more of our restaurants were unable to serve
alcohol or food for even a short time period, we could experience a reduction in our overall revenue.

The costs of operating our restaurants may increase if there are changes in laws governing minimum hourly wages, workers’ compensation
insurance rates, unemployment tax rates, sales taxes or other laws and regulations, such as the federal Amenicans with Disabilities Act, which
governs access for the disabled. If any of the above costs increase, we cannot assure you that we will be able to offset the increase by increasing
our menu prices or by other means, which would adversely affect our results of operations.

We may incur costs or liabilities as a result of litigation and publicity concerning foed quality, health and other issues that can also cause
guests (o avoid our restaarants.

We are subject to complaints or litigation from time to time from guests alleging illness, injury or other food quality or health concerns.
Litigation or adverse publicity resulting from these allegations may materially adversely affect us or our restaurants, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are liable. We were subject to numerous tawsuits arising out of the exposure in September 2003 of our guests
and employees at one of our O'Charley’s restaurants located in Knoxville, Tennessee to the Hepatitis A virus, See “tem 3-Legal Proceedings.” In
addition, we are subject to litigation under “dram shop™* laws that allow a person to sue us based on any injury or death caused by an intoxicated
person who was wrongfully served alcoholic beverages at one of our restaurants. While we maintain insurance for lawsuits under a dram shop
law or alleging illness or injury from food, we have significant deductibles under such insurance and any such litigation may result in a verdict in
excess of our liability insurance pelicy limits, which could result in substantial liability for us and may have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations.

In addition, we are a defendant from time to time in various legal proceedings, including claims relating to workplace and employment
matters, discrimination and similar matters; claims resulting from “slip and fall” accidents; claims with respect to insurance recoveries; claims
relating to lease obligations and claims from guests or employees alleging illness, injury or other food quality, health or operational concerns. In
recent years, a number of restaurant companies have been subject 1o lawsuits, including class action lawsuits, alleging violations of federal and
state law regarding workplace and employment matters, discimination and similar matters. A oumber of these lawsuits have resulted in the
payment of substantial damages by the defendants. We do not belicve that any of the legal proceedings pending against us as of the date of this
report will have a material adverse effect on our liquidity or financial condition. We may incur or accrue expenses relating to legal proceedings,
however, which may adversely affect our results of operations in a particular period.

Compliance with and any failure to comply with current regulatory requirements will result in additional expenses and may adversely
affect us.

Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure,
including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Securities and Exchange Commission regulations and NASDAQ Stock Market rules, has required an
increased amount of management attention and external resources. We remain committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and public disclosure, As a result, we intend to invest all reasonably necessary resources to comply with evolving standards, and this investment
has resulted in and we expect will continue to result in increased general and administrative expenses as well as management’s time and attention
from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities.

We are dependent upon our senior management team to execute our business strategy.

Our operations and our ability to execute our business strategy are highly dependent on the efforts of our senior management team. Many of
the members of our senior management team do not have long tenures with us, including, in particular, our Chief Financial Officer who joined us
in November 2004, our Chief Human Resources Officer who joined us in October 2005, our Concept President-O’Charley's who joined us in
February 2006, our Chief Supply Chain Officer who joined us in May 2006, and our Chief [nformation Officer who joined us in September 2006.

Although certain of the members of our senior management team have employment agreements with us, these agreements may not provide

sufficient incentives for these officers to continue employment with us. The loss of one or more of the members of cur senior management team
could adversely affect our business. We do not maintain key man insurance on any of the members of our senior management team.
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Item IB.  Unresolved Staff Comments.
Neone,
[tem 2.  Properties.

As of December 31, 2006, we operated 227 O°Charley’s restaurants, 114 Ninety Nine restaurants and ten Stoney River Legendary Steak
restaurants. As of that date, we owned the land and building at 96 of our O'Charley’s restaurants, leased the land and building at 44 of our
O’Charley’s restaurants and leased the land only at 87 of our O'Charley's restaurants. We lease the land and building at 87 of our Ninety Nine
restaurants and lease the land only at 27 of our Ninety Nine restaurants. We own the land and building at four of our Stoney River restaurants,
lease the land only at two Stoney River restaurants and lease the land and building at four Stoney River Restaurants, See “Item 1-Business-
Restaurant Locations” above. Restaurant lease expirations range from 2007 to 2025, with the majority of the leases providing for an option to
renew for additional terms ranging from five to 20 years. All of our restaurant leases provide for a specified annual rental, and some leases call
for additional rental based on sales volume at the particular location over specified minimum levels. Generally, our restaurant leases are net
leases, which require us to pay the cost of insurance and taxes,

Our primary quality product center and our corporate office are iocated in Nashville, Tennessee in a total of approximately 290,000 square
feet of office, manufacturing and warehouse space. We own this facility. We also have administrative offices in Woburm, Massachusetts and a
quality product center located in approximately 20,000 square feet of space. We lease these facilities. We also lease a distribution facility with
approximately 79,000 square feet of space in Bellingham, Massachusetts for our Ninety Nine concept. We also lease approximately 16,000
square feet of office space in Brentwood, Tennessee which is used for the Financial Services Center (FSC).

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.

In September 2003, we became aware that guests and employees at one of our O’Charley’s restaurants located in Knoxville, Tennessee were
exposed to the Hepatitis A virus, which resulted in a number of our employees and guests becoming infected. As of the date of this filing, all of
these cases have been settled and dismissed. We have insurance that provides coverage, subject to limitations, for lost income at our restaurants
whose results of operations were adversely affected by the Hepatitis A incident. We submitted a claim pursuant to our insurance policy for this
type of loss, but our carvier disagreed with our ¢laim. On July 11, 2005, certain underwriters at Lloyd’s, our insurance carrier, filed suit against us
in the Circuit Count for Knox County, Tennessee seeking declaration by the court regarding certain limits in this policy which would effectively
limit our recovery under the policy to $100,000. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we entered into a release and settlement agreement with
Lloyd’s, which will be included in our results of operatiens for the first fiscal quarter of 2007. As the settlement will result in a gain, it was not
recognized until the settlement was certain, which was during the first fiscal quarter of 2007,

We have been involved in an arbitration in the matter of Ballantyne Village, LLC v. O"Charley’s Inc. filed in April 2005. Ballantyne Village,
LLC has alleged that we breached a lease for retail space for a proposed Stoney River Legendary Steaks restaurant in Charlotte, North Carolina.
During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we entered into a settlement and release agreement with the plaintiff. The amount of our settlement was
included in our results of operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

On May 19, 2006, Meritage Hospitality Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliated cntitics (“*Meritage™), which franchise five O’Charley's
restaurants in Michigan, filed suit against us in the United States District Court for the Western District of Michigan, The suit alleged that we
engaged in fraud and vielations of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law and Michigen Consumer Protection Act in connection with Meritage
becoming a franchisee of our O'Charley’s restaurant concept. The suit sought rescission of the development agreement and five franchise
agreements with us and related damages. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we entered into a general release with Meritage pursuant to
which Meritage agreed to dismiss the litigation filed against us and we agreed to make certain future financial and other accommodations to
Meritage under the terms of their developmemnt and franchise agreements.

In addition, we are defendants and plaintiffs from time to time in various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our
business, including claims relating to injury or wrongful death under “dram shop™ laws that allow a person to sue us based on any injury caused
by an intoxicated person whe was wrongfully served alcoholic beverages at one of our restaurants; claims relating to workplace and employment
matters, discrimination and similar matters; claims resulting from “slip and fall” accidents; claims with respect to insurance recoveries; claims
relating to lease obligations; and claims from our guests or employees alleging illness, injury or other food quality, health or operational concerns.

We do not believe that any of the legal proceedings pending against us as of the date of this report will have a material adverse effect on our

liquidity or financial condition. We may incur liabilities or accrue expenses relating to future legal proceedings in a particular fiscal quarter which
may adversely affect our results of operations.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Helders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of sharcholders during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2006.
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PART 1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “CHUX.” As of March 9, 2007, there were approximately
3,134 shareholders of record of our commen stock. The following table shows quarterly high and low bid prices for our common stock for the
periods indicated, as reported by the NASDAQ National Market.

High Low
Fiscal 2006
First Quarter $18.85 $15.07
Second Quarter 17.58 15.49
Third Quarter 19.57 14.97
Fourth Quarter 22.31 18.19
Fiscal 2005
First Quarter $22.89 $17.62
Second Quarter 22.56 16,32
Third Quarter 19.70 13.97
Fourth Quarter 15.77 12.69

We have never paid a cash dividend on our common stock. Our credit facility limits the payment of cash dividends on our common stock
without the consent of the participating banks.

On January 27, 2003, we issued 941,176 shares of common stock to the former owners of Ninety Nine as part of the purchase price of the
acquisition of Ninety Nine Restaurants, We issued an additional 390,586 shares in January 2004, 407,843 shares in January 2005, 407,843 shares
in January 2006, 94,118 in January 2007 and we are required to issue an additional 94,118 shares in January 2008, The issuance of the shares to
the former owners of Ninety Nine was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933,

Item 6.  Selected Financial Data.

The selected financial data presented below under the captions “Statement of Operations Data™ and “Balance Sheet Data” for, and as of the
end of, each of the fiscal years in the five-year period ended December 31, 2006, were derived from the consolidated financial statements of
O’Charley’s Inc. and subsidiaries. The selected data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2006 and December 23, 2005 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and the related notes thereto appearing
in this Form 10-K. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to confort to the current year presentatton.

When you read this financial data, it is important that you also read the consclidated financial statements and related notes included in this

Form 10-K, as well as the section of this report entitled Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future results.
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Fiscal Years

2006 2005 2004 2003(1}) 2002

(1o thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues:
Restaurant sales $078,751 $921,329 $R864,259  $753,740 $495,112
Commissary sales 10,345 8,498 7,035 5,271 4,800
Franchise revenue 428 361 92 — —

989,524 930,188 871,386 759,011 499,912
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of restaurant sales:

Cost of food and beverage 291,759 277.391 260,846 221,052 140,638
Payroll and benefits 328,809 318,513 291,098 252,415 154,311
Restaurant operating costs 185,938 172,417 157,732 139,205 86,006
Cost of commissary sales 9,065 7,716 6,646 4,970 4,438
Advertising and marketing expenses 27917 25470 25,656 24,300 16,973
General and administrative expenses 52,211 42,823 38,401 29473 19,986
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment 46,614 43 806 39,798 36,360 25,527
Asset impairment and disposals{2) 2,098 7,335 16 (180) (139)
Pre-opening costs 4,628 6,271 5,908 5,900 5,629
949,039 901,742 826,101 714,495 453,419
Income from QOperations 40,485 28,446 45,285 44,516 46,493
Other Expense / (Income):
Interest expense, net 14,401 14,374 12,604 12,850 6,295
Debt extinguishment charge — — — 1,800 —
Other, net (6) 42 — (584) —
14,395 14,416 12,604 14,066 6,295
Eamings Before Income Taxes and Cumuiative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle 26,090 14,030 32,681 30,450 40,198
Income Taxes 7,200 2,001 9.362 9,261 13,942
Eamings Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle 18,890 12,029 23,319 21,189 26,256
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax(3) — (s — — (6,123)
Net Earnings $ 18890 § 11,878 § 23319 § 21,18  § 20,133
Basic Eamings Per Common Share Before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle § 081 3% 053 % 105 § 098 § 141
Curulative effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax(3) — (0.01) — — (0.33)
Basic Eamings Per Common Share $ 08l § 052 § 105 § 098 § 1.08
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share Before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle $ 08 $ 052 § 103 S 09 § 133
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax(3) — (0.01) — — (0.31)
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share 3 080 § 0.51 $§ 103 $ 09 § 102
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):
Working capital (deficit) $(29,594) $(22,270) $(30,986) $(30,284) $(21,388)
Total assets 686,512 687,610 657,511 620,673 428,400
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 9,812 10,975 12,670 10,031 8,015
Long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations, including
current portion 154,357 185,683 191,139 209,629 132,102
Total sharcholders” equity 380,826 349,588 330,740 300,187 227,560




0

2

)

On January 27, 2003, we acquired Ninety Nine restaurants, a casual dining restaurant company based in Wobumn, Massachusetts. Qur fiscal
2003 eamings include the eamings of Ninety Nine for the period from January 27, 2003 through December 28, 2003.

During 2006 we took an impairment charge on three planned O'Charley’s restaurant closures, one O'Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety
Nine restaurants that are impaired but will remain open, an impairment of purchased software, and assets related to the Company’s
rebranding efforts. As a result, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $4.5 million to reflect the difference between the fair value and
net book value of the underlying assets. This impairment charge was partially offset by net gains on the disposal of assets of $2.4 million.
During 2005, we took an impairment charge on two O'Charley’s restaurants that remain open and decided to close six O’Charley’s
restaurants and sell a company aircraft. As a result, we recorded a non-cash impairment charge of $7.2 million to reflect the difference
between the fair value and net book value of the underlying assets. This impairment charge was in addition to losses of $0.1 million taken on
the disposal of assets during 2005.

In 2005, we incurred an afier-tax charge of $0.2 million, or $0.01 per diluted share, which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle for 2005 associated with the adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 47, “dccounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations - an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143" In 2002, we incurred an after-tax charge of $6.1
million, or $0.31 per diluted share, which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle as of the beginning of
fiscal 2002 associated with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.
The charge was related to the impairment of goodwill associated with the Stoney River acquisition in May 2000.




Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

We are a leading casual dining restaurant company headquartered in Nashville, Tennessec. We own and operate three restaurant concepts
under the “O'Charley’s,” “Ninety Nine” and “Stoney River Legendary Steaks” trade names. As of December 31, 2006, we operated 227
O’Charley’s restaurants in 16 states in the Southeast and Midwest regions, 114 Ninety Nine restaurants in nine Northeastern states, and ten
Stoney River restaurants in the Southeast and Midwest. As of December 31, 2006, we had six franchised O"Charley’s restaurants including five
franchised O’Charley’s restaurants in Michigan and one franchised O'Charley's restaurant in Ohio. As of December 31, 2006, we had three joint
venture O’Charley’s restaurants in Louisiana, and one joint venture O'Charley's restaurant in Wisconsin, in all of which we have an ownership
interesi.

On February 8, 2007, we reported our fiscal 2006 carnings in our unaudited press release. Subsequently, we concluded that we needed to
reclass share-based compensation expense associated with SFAS 123(R). Historically, we have classified all share-based compensation on our
consolidated statements of earnings in the “General and Administrative Expense” line, On March 29, 2005 the Securities Exchange Comumission
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 107 (SAB 107) to address the interaction of SFAS 123 (R) and certain Securities and Exchange Commission
rules and regulations. One of the items addressed in SAB 107 in item F was the classification of share-based compensation expense on the
income statement. liem F stated that companies should present the expense related to share-based payment arrangements in the same line or lines
as cash compensation paid to the same employees. We therefore concluded that our past practice was incorrect and have made reclasses in the
current and prior year presentations throughout this 10-K to reflect those reclasses. The following table sets forth the impact to each affected line
item as a result of the reclassification adjustments:

Year Ended
Drecember 31, December 25, December 26,
2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)

Payroil and benefits 3 730 $ 213 $ 584
Restaurant operating costs 274 32 241
Cost of commissary sales 40 6 15
Advertising and marketing expenses 50 2 35
General and administrative expenses (1,054) (2533) (875)
Net impact upon earnings 3 — 3 — $ —

We believe the improvement in our results for 2006 reflect our progress in our turnaround and transformation efforts. Our turnaround
strategy is focused on:

Strengthening the organization with a new core of tulent and building a winning team. During 2006, we continued to build our core of
executive talent as we hired a Concept President — O'Charley's, Chief Supply Chain Officer, Senior Corporate Counsel, Chief Information
Officer, Vice President of Human Resource Development, Vice President of Communications and Vice President of Strategic Sourcing. We now
believe that we have in place a management team that is substantially complete and that will be able to execute successfully our turmaround and
transformation efforts. We have already benefited from the new ideas and strategies that our new team members have brought to O'Chartey’s
which we believe is refiected in the improvement in our fiscal 2006 consclidated operating margin. We are now working to optimize the
performance of every member of our organization in order to achieve our long-term vision to be the Best of Class in food and service in our
segments of the restaurant industry.

Improving the box economics through the execution of product and fabor cost management and increasing same resiaurant sales through
new product offerings, new marketing, and a more analvtical approach to menu pricing. As a percentage of restaurant sales, cost of food and
beverage and payroll and benefits costs in 2006 were both lower than in the prior-year on a consolidated basis. This was the result of a higher
average check in all three of our concepts, the impact of our theoretical food cost system and our increased focus on team member and
management labor productivity as well as changes we made to our restaurant-level incentive plans. We have also made the decision to graduaily
phase out our Kids-Eat-Free program by mid-2008 which we believe will in the short term decrease the number of our guest visits but will
increase our average check and operating margin. Our intent is to increasc same restaurant sales through new product offerings, our limited time
or seasonal product offerings and increase in service levels.

Qur ‘Project RevQ 'lution' and 'Project Dress to the Nines ' 1eams continue to focus on box economics by, among other initiatives, developing
new team member selection and training tools, introducing new kitchen technology and engineering, capitalizing on dining room efficiencies and
applying these improvements along with our rebrandings of our O'Charley's and Ninety Nine restaurants. Another important aspect of our
rebranding is the intreduction of concept specific elements including new uniforms, plateware, menu designs, Curbside-To-Go service and new
service standards. We have now completed 11 ‘Project RevO'lution’ rebrandings at our Q"Charley’s restaurants, and 14 ‘Dressed to the Nines’
rebrandings at our Ninety Nine restaurants. We plan to complete an additional five rebrandings at O'Charley’s, and three rebrandings at Ninety
Nine during the first quarter of 2007. While we still consider the rebrandings completed to date a test, we continue to be pleased with the
increased sales volume following the reopening of these restaurants.
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We have also developed a new prototype restaurant which features new interior and exterior color schemes, new exterior signage and a
number of interior changes designed to enhance the guest experience and improve operational efficiencies in both the dining room and kitchen,
All of the planned new O°Charley's and Ninety Nine restaurants for 2007 will feature this new prototype design.

Enhancing guest satisfaction and intent 1o return by instiiling “A Passion to Serve” ™ 1n 2005, we adopted the vision statement: ‘A Passion
to Serve’ ™. This statement describes our commitment to our guests, each other, our stakeholders and our communities. Qur vision is to be the
Best of Class in food and service in our scgments of the restaurant industry. We are holding ourselves to higher standards as measured by our
Guest Satisfaction Index or “GSI”. Qur ‘Project Rev’Olution’ and *Project Dressed to the Nines® initiatives are designed to improve the guest
experience. Our senior management teams at Ninety Nine and O’Charley’s have followed this roll out with a combination of in-store and market
focus groups designed to solicit feedback about how we can continue to improve our delivery of great food and service. We believe that an
increase in the average check requires sustainable improvement in the guest experience. We betieve that we are taking the appropriate steps to
generate profitable and sustainable growth while enhancing shareholder value.

Fiscal years end on the last Sunday of the calendar year. Fiscal year 2006 consisted of a 53 week year while 2005 and 2004 each consisted of
52 weeks. We have one reportable segment.

Following is an explanation of certain items in our consolidated statements of operations:

Revenues consist of Company-operated and joint venture restaurant sales and, to a lesser extent, commissary sales and franchise revenue.
Restaurant sales inclede food and beverage sales and are net of applicable state and local sales taxes and discounts. Commissary sales represent
sales to outside parties consisting primarily of sales of O'Charley’s branded food items, primarily salad dressings, to retail grocery chains, mass
merchandisers, wholesale clubs and franchisees. Franchise revenue consists of development fees and royalties on sales of franchised units. Qur
development fees for franchisees in which we do not have an ownership interest are generally 550,000 for the first two restaurants and 525,000
for each additional restaurant opened by the franchisee. The development fees are recognized during the reporting period in which the developed
restaurant begins aperation. The royalties are recognized in revenue in the period corresponding to the franchisees’ sales.

Cost of Food and Beverage primarily consists of the costs of beef, poultry, seafood, produce and alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages net
of vendor discounts and rebates. The two most significant commodities that may affect our cost of food and beverage are beef and seafood, which
account for approximately 19 percent to 21 percent and eight percent to ten percent, respectively, of our overall cost of food and beverage.
Generally, temporary increases in these costs are not passed on to guests; however, in the past, we have adjusted menu prices to compensate for
increased costs of a more permanent nature.

Payroll and Benefits include payroll and related costs and expenses directly relating to restaurant level activities including restaurant
management salaries, bonuses, share-based compensation, hourly wages for restaurant level team members, payroll taxes, workers’
compensation, various health, life and dental insurance programs, vacation expense and sick pay. We have various incentive bonus plans that
compensate restaurant management for achieving certain restaurant level financial targets and performance goals.

Restaurant Operating Costs include occupancy and other expenses at the restaurant level, except property and equipment depreciation and
amortization. In addition to occupancy costs, supplies, straight-line rent, supervisory salaries, bonuses, share-based compensation and related
expenses, management training salaries, general liability and property insurance, property taxes, utilities, repairs and maintenance, outside
services and credit card fees account for the major expenses in this category.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses include all advertising and marketing-related expenses for the various programs that we utilize 1o
promote traffic and brand recognition for our three restaurant concepts. This category also includes the administrative costs of our marketing
departments.

General and Administrative Expenses include the costs of restavrant support center administrative functions that support the existing
restaurant base and provide the infrastructure for future growth. Executive management and support staff salaries, bonuses, share-based
compensation and related expenses, data processing, legal and accounting expenses, and office expenses account for the major expenses in this
category. This category also includes all recruiting, relocation and severance-related expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization Property and Equipment, primarily includes depreciation on property and equipment calculated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets ot the lease term plus one renewal term for leasehold improvements, if shorter.

Asset Impairment and Disposals includes costs associated with the impairment of land, buildings and equipment and certain other assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, Recoverability of assets 1o be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be
generated by the assets. Impairment costs also include the write-off of certain assels at existing restaurants for remodels related to ‘Project
Rev*Olution’ and ‘Dressed to the Nines’. Disposal costs inchude the costs incurred to prepare the asset or assets for sale including the following:
repair and maintenance, clean up costs, broker commissions, independent appraisals, insurance deductibles and proceeds. Gains and/or losses
associated with the sale of assets are also included in this category.

Pre-opening Cosis represent costs associated with our store opening teams, as well as other costs associated with opening a new restaurant
and are expensed as incurred. These costs also include straight-line rent related to leased properties from the period of time between when we
have waived any contingencies regarding use of the leased property and the date on which the restaurant opens. The amount of pre-opening costs
incurred in any one period includes costs incurred during the period for restaurants opened and under development. Qur pre-opening costs may
vary significantly from period to period primarily due to the timing of restaurant development and openings.
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Results of Operations

The following information should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data™ and our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes thereto included elsewhere herein. The following table reflects our operating results for fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004 as a
percentage of total revenues unless otherwise indicated. Fiscal year 2006 was comprised of 53 weeks and fiscal years 2005 and 2004 comprised

of 52 weeks.

Revenues:
Restaurand sales
Commissary sales
Franchise revenue

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of resiaurant sales: (1)
Cost of food and beverage
Payroll and benefits
Restaurant operating costs
Cost of commissary sales (2)
Advertising and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Deprectation and amertization, property and equipment
Asset impairment and disposals
Pre-opening costs
Income from Operations

Other Expense:

Interest expense, net

Other, net

Eamings Before income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle
Income Taxes

Eamings Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of 1ax

Net Earnings

(1) As a percentage of restaurant sales.

(2} Cost of commissary sales as a percentage of commissary sales was 87.6 percent, 90.8 percent, and 94.5 percent for fiscat years 2006, 2005,

and 2004, respectively,
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2006 2005 2004
98.9%  99.1% 99.2%
1.0 0.9 0.8
0.1 0.0 0.0
100.0% _100.0% 100.0%
298%  30.1% 30.2%
336 346 33.7
19.0 18.7 18.3
0.9 08 08
28 2.7 29
5.3 46 44
47 4.7 46
0.2 0.8 —
0.5 0.7 0.7
4.1 3.1 5.2
1.5 L5 1.4
26 1.5 38
0.7 0.2 L1
1.9 1.3 27

1.9% L3% 2.7%




The following information should be read in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data™ and our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes thereto included elsewhere herein. The following table reflects the margin performance of each of our concepts for fiscal years
2006, 2005, and 2004 as a percentage of restaurant sales for each respective concept. Fiscal year 2006 was comprised of 53 weeks and fiscal
years 2005 and 2004 comprised of 52 weeks.

2006 2005 2004
(% in millions)

(O’Charley’s Concept: (1}
Restaurant Sales: $ 6334 $ 6142 § 5889

Cost and expenses (2)

Cost of food and beverage 29.8% 30.0% 30.2%
Payroll and benefits 313.3% 34.9% 33.8%
Restaurant operating costs (3) 18.7% 18.6% 18.2%
Ninety Nine Concept:
Restaurant Sales; $ 3119 § 2822 § 2519

Cost and expenses (2}

Cost of food and beverage 29.0% 29.6% 29.6%
Payroll and benefits 35.0% 34.8% 33.9%
Restaurant operating costs(3) 19.7% 19.0% 18.0%

Stoney River Concept:

Restaurant Sales: $ 335 8 249 % 235
Cost and expenses(2}
Cost of food and beverage 38.6% 38.4% 35.6%
Payroll and benefits 26.8% 24.6% 25.2%
Restaurant operating costs(3) 18.4% 18.6% 21.6%

(1) Includes results from O°Charley’s joint venture operations but excludes revenue from franchised restaurants.

(2) Shown as a percentage of restaurant sales.

(3) Includes rent, where 100 percent of the Ninety Nine restaurant locations are leased as compared to 38 percent for O’Charley’s and 60
percent for Stoney River,
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The following tables set forth certain unaudited financial and other restaurant data relating to company-owned restaurants, unless otherwise

specified:

Number of Restaurants;
O’Charley’s Restaurants:
In operation, beginning of year
Restaurants opened
Restaurants closed

In operation, end of year

Ninety Nine Restaurants:
In operation, beginning of vear
Restaurants opened

In operation, end of year

Stoney River Restaurants;
In operation, beginning of year
Restaurants opened

In operation, end of year

Franchise / Joint Venture Restaurants (O’ Charley’s):

In operation, beginning of year
Restaurants opened
In operation, end of year

Average Weekly Sales per Restaurant:
O’Charley’s
Ninety Nine
Stoney River

[nerease (Decrease) in Same Restaurant Sales (1):

O’Charley’s
Ninety Nine
Stoney River

Increase (Decrease) in Same Restavrant Guest Visits (1):

O’Charley’s
Ninety Nine
Stoney River

Increase {Decreasc) in Same Restaurant Average Check per Guest (1):

O’Charley's
Ninety Nine
Stoney River

Average Check per Guest (2):
O’ Charley’s
Ninety Nine
Stoney River

(1} When computing same restaurant sales, guest visits and average check per guest, restaurants open for at least 78 weeks are compared from
period to period. The calculation of change in the same restaurant sales, guest visits and average check per guest for 2005 excludes the prior

2004

2006 2005
225 21 206
3 13 15
(1) (%) —
227 225 221
109 99 87
5 10 12
114 109 99
7 6 6
3 1 —
10 7 6
2
10 2
$ 52362 $ 52254 § 52,703
52,722 52,619 52,771
78,008 77,283 75,267
(0.8)% 0.0% 31%
0.7% 0.7% 1.3%
4.0% 3.7% 6.4%
(5.0)% 0.1% 3.9%
(2.2)% 1.4% .7% -
03)% 1.1% 1.1%
4.4% 0.0% 0.7%
3.0% (0.8)% 2.9%
4.4% 2.6% 5.3%
$ 1204 0§ 1152 0§ 1152
14.08 13.69 13.86
41.72 40.56 39.53

year sales and guest visits for O"Charley’s restaurants closed during or after Hurricane Katrina for the days they were closed.

(2) The average check per guest is computed using all restaurants open at the end of the year.
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Fiscal Year 2006 Compared with Fiscal Year 2005

Revenues

During 2006, total revenues increased $59.3 million, or 6.4 percent, to $989.5 million from $930.2 million in 2005. In 2006, we increased
average check at all of our concepts, partially offset by a decrease in guest visits at all of our concepts. The increase in check average and
decrease in guest counts was primarily atributable to the partial phase out of the Kids-Eat-Free program at our O’Charley’s concept, the
reduction of promotional coupons and a more analytical approach to menu pricing at all of our concepts in 2006. In 2006, we had 53 weeks as
compared to 52 weeks in fiscal 2005 and the estimated revenue increase associated with the 53" week was $21.2 million. We also had a net
addition of ten company-owned restaurants in 2006.

O'Charley’s company-operated restaurant sales increased $15.1 million, or 2.5 percent, to $626.3 million during 2006 as compared to $611.2
million in 2005, as a result of an increase in average check of 4.4 percent offset by a decrease in same restaurant guest visits of 5.0 percent.
During 2006 we added three new and closed one company-operated O’Charley’s restaurants.

Ninety Nine restaurant sales increased $29.7 million, or 10.5 percent, to $311.9 million during 2006 as compared to $282.2 million in 2005.
The year-over-year sales increase was primarily related to 2 same testaurant sales increase of 0.7 percent and the addition of five new restaurants
during 2006, The same restaurant sales increase was comprised of a 3.0 percent increase in average check partiaily offset by a decrease in guest
counts of 2.2 percent.

Stoney River restaurant sales increased $8.6 million, or 34.5 percent, to $33.5 million during 2006 as compared to $24.9 million in the same
prior year period, as a result of same restaurant sales increases of 4.0 percent and the addition of three restaurants. The same resiaurant sales
increase was comprised of a 4.4 increase in average check partialty offset by a decrease in guest visits of 0.3 percent.

Cost of Food and Beverage

During 2006, our cost of food and bei-erage was $291.8 million, or 29.8 percent of restauramt sales, compared with $277.4 million in the
same prior year period, or 30.1 percent of restaurant sales, in 2005. This 30 basis point improvement in food and beverage cost as a percentage of
sales in the year reflects the impaet of higher average checks and lower costs for poultry, cheese and cooking oils and by a further narrowing of
the gap between our theoretical and actual food costs at the O°Charley’s concept, partially offset by higher costs for beef and seafood, and higher
fuel-related distribution costs.

Fayroll and Benefits

During 2006, payroll and benefits were $328.8 million, or 33.6 percent of testaurant sales, compared 1o $318.5 million in the same prior year
period, or 34.6 percent of restaurant sales, in 2005 reflecting an improvement of 100 basis points. Payroll and benefits costs as a percentage of
restaurant sales were Jower at the O"Charley’s concept when compared to the prior year. Reductions in employee benefits expense, management
salaries, and restaurant-level bonus expense were partially offset by higher hourly wage expenses and share-based compensation. The reduction
in management salaries reflects reductions in the average number of managers per restaurant in the O'Charley’s concept, while the reductien in
bonus expense reflects the impact of our new performance focused bonus plans. The cost of our employee benefit plans was lower as a
percentage of restaurant sales in 2006 than in 2005, reflecting reductions negotiated with certain health care plans earlier in 2006, and the
implementation of our new benefit plans on September 1, 2006.

Resraurant Operating Costs

During 2006, restaurant operating costs were $185.9 million, or 19.0 percent of restaurant sales, compared to $172.4 million in the same
prior year petiod, or 18.7 percent of restaurant sales, in the same prior year period. This 30 basis point increase is primarily the result of an
increase in utility costs, and an increase in repair and maintenance.
Advertising and Marketing Expenses

During 2006, advertising and marketing expenditures increased 9.4 percent to $27.9 million from 325.5 million in 2005 and, as a percentage

of total revenues, increased to 2.8 percent from 2.7 percent in prior-year. The ten basis point increase as a percentage of sales is primarily
attributable to additional advertising and marketing expenditures to support our limited time menu offerings.
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General and Adminisirative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased 22.0 percent to $52.2 million in 2006 from $42.8 million in 2005, and as a percentage of total
revenues, increased to 5.3 percent from 4.6 percent in the prior-year. This 70 basis point increase in general and administrative expenses is
primarily the result of severance, recruiting and relocation expenses related to our recent management changes, an increase in incentive
compensation expense, an increase in share-based compensation expense and an increase in legal expenses, partially offset by decreases in other
areas. The increase in legal expense is primarily attributable to previously disclosed legal proceedings. See footnote 19 in the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements for a description of these legal proceedings. The increase in share-based compensation expense is primarily
attributable to restricted share expense and alse includes the expensing of stock options and the employee stock purchase plan discount as a result
of the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”,

Depreciation and Amortization

During 2006, depreciation and amortization expense was $46.6 million as compared to $43.8 million in 2005 and was flat as a percentage of
total revenues at 4.7 percent. The increase in deprecation and amortization is primarily attributable to the Company's capital expenditures in
2006 and 2005,

Asset Impairment and Disposals

Our results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 include net charges of $2.1 million for asset impairment and disposals. This
amount includes an asset impairment charge of approximately $1.6 million related to the three planned O'Charley’s restaurant closures, $1.9
million relating to one (’Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety Nine restaurants that are impaired but will remain open, and $1.0 million relating to
the impairment of purchased software and assets related to the Company’s rebranding efforts. The $4.5 million charge in 2006 was offset by a net
gain of $2.4 million on assets held for sale and other assets that were sold or settied. In 2005, the Company recorded impairment and disposal
charges of 37.3 million refated 10 six restaurant closures, a corporate aircraft, two restaurants that remained open and other non-operating assets.

Pre-opening Costs

During 2006, our pre-opening costs decreased approximately $1.7 million to $4.6 million, or 0.5 percent of total revenues, compared with
$6.3 million in the same prior year period, or 0.7 percent of total revenues, in 2005. The 27.0 percent decrease is due to 11 company-owned
restaurant openings in 2006 as compared to 24 company-owned restaurant openings in 2005.

Interest Expense

Our interest costs were 314.4 million in 2006 as compared to $14.4 million in 2005, Interest expense during 2006 reflects $125.0
million of senior subordinated notes at a fixed rate of 9.0 percent; approximately $7.0 million weighted average debt oustanding on our $125.0
million revolving credit facility; and other debt including capitalized lease obligations and prepaid financing costs. Approximately $100.0 million
of the 9.0 percent senior subordinated notes have been effectively converted through interest rate swap agreements into a variable interest rate
obligation based on the six-month LIBOR rate in arvears plus 3.9 percent. On October 18, 2006, we entered into a five-year $125 million secured
revolving credit facility, which amended and restated our $125 million secured revolving credit facility that was scheduled to mature on
Novemnber 4, 2007. This new facility is less costly to us than the facility that it replaced, and we believe that it provides us with greater financial
flexibility. At December 31, 2006, there were no amounts outstanding under the new credit facility.

Income Taxes
During 2006, our income tax expense increased $5.2 million to $7.2 million, or 0.7 percent of total revenues, compared with $2.0 million, or

0.2 percent of total revenues, in 2005. Our effective tax rate was 27.6 percent in 2006 compared to 14.3 percent in 2005. This increase was
primarily attributable to higher 2006 pretax earnings.
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Fiscal Year 2005 Compared with Fiscal Year 2004
Revenues

During 2003, total revenues increased $58.8 million, or 6.7 percent, to $930.2 million from $871.4 million in 2004. In 2005, we averaged
337 restaurants in operation per quarter as compared to 317 restaurants in operation per quarter in 2004.

O’Charley’s company-operated restaurant sales increased $22.8 million, or 3.9 percent, to $611.2 million during 2003, as a result of the net
addition of four new restaurants during 2005. Same restaurant sales were flat for the year.

Ninety Nine restaurant sales increased $30.3 million, or 12.0 percent, to $282.2 million during 2005. The year-over-year sales increase was
primarily related (o a same restaurant sales increase of 0.7 percent and the addition of ten new restaurants during 2005. The same restaurant sales
increase was comprised of a 1.4 percent increase in guest counts offset by a decrease in check average of 0.8 percent.

Stoney River restaurant sales increased $1.4 million, or 6.0 percent, to $24.9 million during 2005, as a result of same restaurant sales
increases of 3.7 percent. The 3.7 percent same restaurant sales increase was comprised of a 2.6 percent improvement in the average check and a
1.1 percent increase in guest counts.

Cost of Food and Beverage

While our cost of food and beverage in 2005 was lower than 2004 by 0.1 percent as a percentage of sales it was higher than we anticipated,
due in part to our traffic-building promotions, higher distribution costs and higher costs associated with the opening of the Bellingham
distribution center. Reductions in pouliry costs were offset by increases in produce costs resulting from weather related crop damage, and
increased seafood costs.

Payroll and Benefits

During 2005, payroll and benefits increased 90 basis points as a percenitage of restaurant sales compared to the same prior-year period.
Higher average wage and benefit rates and declines in preductivity contributed to the increase as well as an increase in the hourly health care
plans in 2005 as compared to 2004.

Restaurant Operating Costs

Restaurant operating costs as a percentage of restaurant sales increased 40 basis points during 2005. Increases in packaging costs, higher
energy costs and repairs and maintenance costs resulted in the year-over-year increase. The higher packaging costs were the result of an increase
in packaging material costs combined with increases in our to-go sales. The increase in energy costs were primarily associated with nawral gas
price increases. :

Advertising and Marketing Expenses
During 2005, our advertising and marketing costs decreased $0.2 million to $25.5 million, or 2.7 percent of total revenues, compared with
$25.7 million, or 2.9 percent of total revenues, in 2004. The decrease in advertising and marketing expenditures as a percentage of total revenues

is primarily due 1o the use of the same promotional calendar on s year-over-year basis, enabling us to utilize some print and television media
which were produced in the prior years.
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General and Administrative Expenses

During 2003, our general and administrative costs increased $4.4 million to $42.8 million, or 4.6 percent of total revenues, compared with
$38.4 million, or 4.4 percent of total revenues, in 2004. General and administrative expenses increased in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily
because of $1.5 million in severance and consulting expenses associated with the financial system conversion project. We also incurred
approximately $0.8 million in severance and recruiting expenses in 2005 associated with previously announced management changes. In 2004,
we incurred severance and related costs of approximately $1.2 million associated with the organizational changes that were implemented during
the third and fourth quarter of 2004,

Depreciation and Amertization

During 2005, our depreciation and amortization costs increased $4.0 million to $43.8 million, or 4.7 percent of total revenues, compared with
$39.8 million, or 4.6 percent of total revenues, in 2004. The 10.1percent increase is primarily attributable to additions of long-lived assets of
$68.8 million during 2005.

Asset Impairment and Disposals

During 2005, we recorded impairment and disposal charges of $7.3 million. The impairment and disposal charges consisted of a $4.9 million
charge related to the planned closure of six under-performing O'Charley’s restaurants, $0.9 million for two O°Charley’s restaurants that remain
open. $0.3 million for losses relating to the O"Charley’s store in Biloxi, Mississippi that was destroyed by Hurricane Katrina, and a $1.1 million
impairment charge to write down the value of a corporate aircraft, which we intend to sell, to reflect the difference between its current book value
and the estimated net sale proceeds. These charges also include net losses of approximately $0.1 million on asset sales.

Pre-apening Costs

During 2005, our pre-opening costs increased $0.4 million to $6.3 million, or 0.7 percent of tota] revenues, compared with $5.9 million, or
0.7 percent of total revenues, in 2004. The 6.1 percent increase is due to timing of restaurant openings and the increased costs incurred for
opening the first Stoney River restaurant since 2002.

Interest Expense

During 2005. our interest costs increased $1.8 millton to $14.4 million, or 1.5 percent of total revenues, compared with $12.6 miltion, or 1.4
percent of total revenucs, in 2004, The 14.0 percent increase is due to higher short-term interest rates on our variable rate debt. Interest expense
duning 2005 reflects $125.0 million of senior subordinated notes at a fixed rate of 9.0 percent; approximately $15.7 million weighted average debt
outstanding on our $125.0 miltion revolving credit facility at one-month LIBOR plus 1.25 percent; and other debt including capitalized lease
obligations and prepaid financing costs. Approximately $100.0 million of the 9.0 percent senior subordinated notes have been effectively
converted through interest rate swap agreements into a variable interest rate obligation based on the six-month LIBOR rate in arrears plus 3.9
percent.

Income Taxes
During 2005, our income tax expense decreased $7.4 million to $2.0 million, or 0.2 percent of total revenues, compared with $9.4 million, or

1.1 percent of total revenues, in 2004. Our effective tax rate of 28,6 percent in 2004 dropped to 14.3 percent in 2005. This decrease was primarily
attributable to higher 2005 tax credits and lower 2005 pre-tax earnings.
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Outlook

We expect to report net earnings per diluted share of between $0.27 and $0.32 for the 16-week period ending April 22, 2007, and net
eamings per diluted share of between $1.00 and $1.10 for the fiscal year ending December 30, 2007. Projected results for the quarter and the year
are based upon anticipated same restaurant sales increases of less than 2 percent for the 'Charley’s and Ninety Nine concepts, and continued
year-over-year improvement in restaurant-level margins. In 2007, we expect to open between four and six new O 'Charley s company-operated
restaurants, between three and five new Ninety Nine testaurants, and one or two new Stoney River restaurants. Although we have not yet decided
1o proceed with a full roll-out of these projects, we anticipate between 20 and 30 ‘Project RevO’lution’ rebrandings at O 'Charley’s. We also
expect to complete approximately 30 *Dressed to the Nines™ rebrandings at Ninety Nine. The training expenses and asset write-offs associated
with these rebrandings are expected to have a negative impact on net earnings in 2007. We have locked in our pricing for approximately 90¢
percent of our annual requirements for poultry and approximately 85 percent of our annual requirement for pork. Compared to 2006, our
contracted pricing for 2007 is approximately flat for poultry and more than 10 percent lower for pork. Given the current conditions in the beef
market we have only locked in pricing for most of the projected needs for the first quarter of 2007. Our guidance for the first quarter and full
year 2007 does not reflect any impact for charges or expenses arising from decisions we may make during 2007 as part of our turnaround efforts.

Qur earnings guidance for the 2007 fiscal year represents a reduction from the preliminary guidance that we offered on October 26, 2006 due
to a more challenging sales environment, and the subsequent passage of minimum wage increases in a number of states. Adjusting for the impact
of the 53" week, and the charges for asset impairments and disposals and severance and related costs in 2006, our full-year guidance for 2007
anticipates an increase in net earnings per diluted share of between 25 percent and 35 percent. We plan to continue to execute all elements of our
plan, including improving the overall guest experience in our restaurants, managing our margins, and instilling ‘A Passion to Serve’™ throughout
our organization.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Qur primary sources of capital have historically been cash provided by operations, borrowings under our credit facilities and capital leases.
Our principal capital needs have historically arisen from property and equipment additions, acquisitions, and payments on long-term debt and
capitalized lease obligations. In addition, we lease a substantial number of our restaurants under operating leases and have substantial operating
lease obligations. Like many restaurant companies, our working capital has historically had current liabilities in excess of current assets due to the
fact that most of our sales are received as cash or credit card charges, and we have reinvested our cash in new restaurant development. We do not
believe this indicates a lack of liquidity. To the extent operations generate cash in excess of working capital and development needs, we have
historically invested this cash in overnight repurchase agreements. As previously announced, we have slowed our restaurant development in
order to focus on improving the performance of our existing restaurants. We opened three Company-owned O'Charley’s restaurants, five Ninety
Nine restaurants and three Stoney River restaurant during 2006.

On October 18, 2006, we entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 18, 2006 (the “Credit
Agreement”). The Credit Agreement amended and restated our existing senior secured credit facility entered into on November 4, 2003. The
Credit Agreement provides for a five-year, $125.0 million revolving credit facility and permits us to request an increase in the principal amount
of the facility of up to $25 million. At December 31, 2006, we had no amounts outstanding on the revolving credit facility except for
approximately $9.3 million in letters of credit which reduced our available borrowings under the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement includes certain customary representations and warranties, negative covenants and events of default. It requires us to
comply with certain financial covenants, including adjusted debt to EBITDAR ratio, a senior secured leverage ratio, a fixed-charge coverage ratio
and capital expenditures ratio. We were in compliance with such covenants at December 31, 2006.

The interest rates per annum applicable to loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement will, at our option, be equal to either a base rate or a
LIBOR rate, in each case plus an applicable margin (0.0 percent to 0.5 percent in the case of base rate loans and 0.75 percent 10 1.25 percent in
the case of LIBOR mate lpans), depending on our senior secured leverage ratio. At December 31, 2006, our margin applicable to LIBOR ioans
was 0.75 percent. In addition to the interest payments required under the Credit Agreement, we are required to pay a commitment fee on the
aggregate average daily unused portion of the credit facility equal to 0.25 percent to 0.375 percent per annum, depending on our senior secured
leverage ratio.

Our obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets, including a pledge of the capital stock of
our material subsidiaries (but excluding real propenty acquired after November 3, 2003). Except as otherwise provided in the Credit Agreement,
the Credit Agreement will mature on October 8, 2011. From time to time, we have entered into interest rate swap agreements with certain
financial institutions. During the first quarter of 2004, we entered into interest rate swap agreements with a financial institution that effectively
convert a portion of the fixed-rate indebiedness related to the $125 million aggregate principal amount of senior subordinated notes due 2013 into
variable-rate obligations. The total notional amount of these swaps was $100.0 million and is based on the six-month LIBOR rate in arrears plus a
specified margin, the average of which is 3.9 percent. The terms and conditions of these swaps mirror the interest terms and conditions on our 9.0
percent senior subordinated notes due 2013 and are accounted for as fair value hedges. These swap agreements expire in November 2013. Our
weighted average interest rate for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 was 8.7 percent and 7.8 percent, respectively.

In October 2003, we announced an authorization to repurchase up 10 $25.0 million of our common stock. Any repurchases will be made from
time to time in open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions at our discretion. To date, we have not repurchased any shares of our
common stock under this authorization, Any repurchases will be funded by cash provided by operations or proceeds from short-term borrowings
under our credit facility and will be reported in the Company’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or annual repoert on Form 10-K for the period in
which any such repurchase occurs in accordance with applicable SEC rules.

In 2006, net cash fiows used by investing activities included capital expenditures incurred principally for building new restaurams,

improvements to existing restaurants, new equipment and improvements at our Quality Product Center, and technological improvements at our
restaurant support center. The Company did not finance any capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2006. During the year
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ended December 25, 2005, new equipment financed through capitalized lease obligations was $4.5 million. Capital expenditures for the years
ended December 11, 2006 and December 25, 2005 were as follows:

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
New restaurant capital expenditures $ 31353 3 46,889
Other capital expenditures 22,263 21,889
Total capital expenditures $ 53616 $ 68,778

We expect capital expenditures in 2007 to be between $55.0 million and $60.0 million. As part of our focus on improving results in our
existing restaurants, we plan to develop and open fewer restaurants in 2007 than we have developed prior to 2006. We expect to open between
four and six new company-owned O’Charley’s restaurants, between three and five new Ninety Nine restaurants, and one or two new Stoney
River restaurants in 2007, Qur capital expenditure projections for 2007 include between 20 and 30 ‘Pryfect Rev'Olution’ rebrandings for our
O’Charley’s concept and approximately 30 *Dressed to the Nines® rebrandings for our Ninety Nine concept.

The following tables set forth our capital structure and certain financial ratios and financial data at and for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2006 and December 25, 2005:

December 31, December 15,
2006 2005
$ Yo 3 Yo
{Dollars in thousands)
Revolving credit facility s — 0.0% S 22,000 4.1%
Secured mortgage note payable 102 0.0 25 0.0
GE Capital Financing arrangement 1,197 0.2 1,241 0.2
Note payable to Stoney River managing partners 393 0.0 — 0.0
Capitalized lease obligations 27,665 5.2 37,317 7.0
Total senior debt 29,357 5.4 60,683 1.3
Senior subordinated notes 125,000 23.4 125,000 23.4
Total debt(1)(2) 154,357 28.8 185,683 347
Shareholders’ equity 380,826 71.2 349,588 65.3
Total capitalization $ 535,183 100.0% $ 535,271 100.0%
Adjusted total debt(1)(3) § 419,109 $ 432,555
Adjusted total capitalization(1)3) § 799,935 $ 782,143
EBITDA{1)(4) $ 91,613 $ 79,157
As of and for the vear ended
December 31, December 25,
2006 2005
{$ in thousands)

ERITDA(1)(4) $91,613 $79,157

Ratio of 1otal debt to EBITDA 1.7x 2.3x

Ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, net 6.4x 5.5%

Ratio of total debt to total capitalization 299, 359,

Ratio of adjusted total debt to adjusted total capitalization 529, 559,

(1) We betieve EBITDA, total debt, adjusted total debt and adjusted total capitalization are useful measurements 1o investors because they are
commonly used as analytical indicators to evaluate performance, measure leverage capacity and debi service ability. These measures should
not be considered as measures of financial performance or liquidity under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). EBITDA,
total debt, adjusted total debt and adjusted total capitalization should not be considered in isolation or as alternatives to financial statement
data presented in our consolidated financial statements as an indicator of financial performance or liquidity. EBITDA, total debt, adjusted
total debt and adjusted total capitalization, as presented, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

(2) Total debt represents the long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations, in each case including current portion. The following table

reconciles total debt, as described above, to the long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations, in each case including current portion as
reflected in our consolidated balance sheets:
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Fiscal Years

2006 2005
(in thousands)
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations g 9812 § 10975
Add:
Long-term debt, excluding current portion 126,540 148,299
Capitalized lease obligations, excluding current portion 18,005 26,409
Total debt $ 154357 3 185,683

(3) Adjusted total debt represents the sum of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations, in each case including current portion, plus the
product of {a) rent expense for the 53 and 52 weeks ended December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively, multiplied by (b} eight.
Adjusted total capitalization represents the sum of long-term debt and capitatized lease obligations, in each case including current portion,
shareholders® equity, plus the product of (a) rent expense for the 53 and 52 weeks ended December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005,
respectively, multiplied by (b) eight. The following table reconciles adjusted total debt and adjusted total capitalization, as described above,
to the long-term debt and capitalized lease cbligations, in each case including current portion, shareholders” equity and rent expense as
reflected in our consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements:

Fiscal Years

2006 2005
{in thousands)

Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized leases $ 9812 $ 10,975
Add:

Long-term debt, excluding current portion 126,540 148,299
Capitalized lease obligations, less current portion 18,005 26,409
Total debt 154,357 185,683
Add eight times rent expense 264,752 246,872
Adjusted total debt 419,109 432,555
Add:

Shareholders’ equity 380,826 349,588
Adjusted total capitalization 3 799,935 $ 782,143

{4) EBITDA represents eamings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, asset impairments, and non-operating
charges, as defined in our credit agreement. The following tables reconcile EBITDA, as described above, to net earnings, and to cash flows
provided by operating activities as reflected in our consolidated statements of earnings and cash flows:

Fiscal Years

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Net earnings $ 18,890 11,878
Add:

Income tax expense 7,200 1,904
Interest expense, net 14,401 14,374
Asset impairments 4,508 7,195
Depreciation and amortization 46,614 43,806
EBITDA $91,613 $ 79,157

Fiscal Years

2006 2005
({in thousands)
Cash flows provided by operating activities $ 83,141 $ 62,732
Adjustment for items included in cash provided by operating activities
buit excluded from the calculation of EBITDA:

Deferred income taxes 7,495 3,653

Expense related to share-based compensation (2,635) (485)
Amortization of deferred gain on sale-leasebacks 1,077 1,056

Gain {loss) on the sale of assets held for sale and other assets dispositions 1,835 (358)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (17,425) 1,312

Changes in long-term assets and liabilities {2,114} (2,931)
Tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options — (674)
Income tax expense 7.200 1,904

Interest expense 13,059 12,948

EBITDA $ 91613 § 79,157
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Based upon the current level of operations and anticipated growth for our restaurant concepts, we beligve that cash flow from operations and
borrowings under our Credit Agreement are sufficient to fund our working capital needs over at least the next 12 months, There can be no
assurances that such sources of financing will be available to us or that any such financing would not negatively impact our eamings. Contractual
Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following tables set forth our contractual obligations and commercial commitments at December 31, 2006.

Payments Due by Period

Less More
than than
Totsal 1Yr 1-3Y¥Yrs 3-5Y¥rs S Years
Contractual Obligation (in thousands)
Long-term debt $ 126,692 $ 152 $ 325 $ 302 $125913
Capitalized lease obligations{1) 29,885 10,724 15,424 3,737 —_
Operating leases 429,516 31,631 62,210 59,949 275,726
Unconditional purchase obligations(2) 67,444 32,226 5,553 3,793 5,872
Total contractual obligations $ 653,537 '$ 94,733 § B3512 $ 67,781 $ 407,511
Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period
Less More
Total than than
Other Commercial Commitments Committed 1Yr 1-3 Yrs 3-5 Yrs 5 Years
(in thousands)
Line of credit{3) § 125000 — — § 125,000 -

(1) Capitalized lease obligations include the $2.2 million interest component.

(2) These purchase obligations are primarily foed obligations with fixed volume with variable pricing that can fluctuate within a contracted
range and a fixed beverage contract. In situations where the price is based on market prices, we use the existing market prices at December
31, 2006 to determine the amount of the obligation. Of the total unconditional purchase obligations shown, $49 million is based on variable
pricing.

(3) This pertains to cur revolving credit facility, At December 31, 2006, we had no amounts cutstanding on this revolving credit facility. We
have approximately $9.3 million of cutstanding letters of credit as of December 31, 2006 which reduces the capacity of the revolving credit
facility but is not funded debt. As of December 31, 2006, we have approximately $115.7 million remaining borrowing capacity under our
revolving credit facility. As noted in Footnote 1¢ in the Notes to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements this credit facx[ity was
amended and restated on Qctober 18, 2006 with a maturity date of October 18, 2011,

Joint Ventures and Franchise Arrangements

In connection with our franchising initiative, we moy from time to time enter into joint venture arrangements to develop and operate
O'Charley’s restaurants. For any franchisee in which we have an ownership interest, we may make loans to the joint venture entity and/or
guarantee certain of its debt and obligations.

To date, we have invested in two joint ventures for the development of O'Charley’s restaurants, On August 20, 2004, we invested in a joint
venture for the development of three O’Charley’s restaurants in certain markets in Southern Louisiana. On November 8, 2004, we invested in a
Joint venture for the development of three O°Charley’s restavrants in Wisconsin. Under the terms of the Limited Liability Company Agrecments
for both of the joint ventures, ownership of the joint venture entity is shared equally between us and our joint venture partner. The joint venture
entity is managed by a Board of Managers composed of two individuals designated by the joint venture partner and two individuals designated by
us. The joint venture partner was required to make capital contributions in the aggregate amount of $500,000 to the joint venture entity and we
agreed to make initial loans to the joint venture entity in the maximum principal amount of $750,000, The loans are secured by substantially all of
the assets of the joint venture entity and are partially guaranteed by the joint venture partner.

In order to assist this first joint venture (JFC Enterprises, LLC) to open its restaurants, we decided to make additional loans to the joint
venture, and as of December 31, 2006, we had advanced a total of approximately $8.4 miltion to the joint venture. In addition, the joint venture
has been given access to a $1.2 million loan through GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation which we guarantee. These toans funded most of
the investment in the building and equipment, and the start-up and operating losses incurred in the joint venture's restaurants. Although we are
not obligated to do so, we are likely to fund future operating losses.

In similar fashion to our first joint venture, in order to assist our second joint venture {WI-Tenn Restaurants, LLC) to open its restaurants, we
decided to make additional loans to the joint venture, and as of December 31, 2006, we had advanced a total of approximately $3.5 million to the
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joint venture. This loan funded most of the investment in the building and equipment, and the start-up and operating losses incurred in the joint
venture’s restaurants.

Under FIN 46(R), both joint ventures are variable interest entities, as we do not anticipate them having sufficient equity to fund their
operations. Since we bear a disproportionate share of the financial risk associated with the joint ventures, we are deemed to be the primary
beneficiary of the joint ventures, and in accordance with FIN 46(R), we consolidate the joint ventures in our consolidated financial statements.

On December 30, 2003, we entered into a multi-unit franchise agreement with Meritage Hospitality Group, Inc. (“Meritage™) a franchisee, to
develop and operate O'Charley's restaurants in Michigan. The agreement specifies the franchisee will develop 15 new O’Charley’s restaurants.

The franchising arrangement required us to provide access 10 certain contractual arrangements that we have with our vendors in order for the
franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee were $50,000 each for the first two restavrants and $25,000
each for the remaining 13 restaurants. The franchisee is also required 1o pay a franchise fee and marketing fund fee that are based on a percentage
of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required 1o pay $2i2,500 as development fees at the closing of the agreement, which
represents half of the fees associated with the 15 restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required to pay the other half of the development fee
to us as each new restaurant opens. We recognized in income $25,000, $100,000 and $50,000 in development fees in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004
related to the opening of franchised restaurants. The remaining development fees paid have been deferred and will be recognized in income as
each restaurant opens.

On May 19, 2006, Meritage and centain of its affiliated entities, which franchise five O'Charley’s restaurants in Michigan, filed suit against us
in the United States District Court for the Western District of Michigan. The suit alleged that we engaged in fraud and violations of the Michigan
Franchise Investment Law and Michigan Consumer Protection Act in connection with Meritage becoming a franchisee of our O’Charley’s
restaurant concept. The suit sought rescission of the development agreement and five franchise agreements with us and related damages. During
the first quarter of fiscal 2007, we entercd into a general release with Meritage pursuant to which Meritage agreed to dismiss the litigation filed
by them and we agreed to make certain financial and other accomsmodations to Meritage under the terms of their development and franchise
agreements.

On March 28, 2005, we entered into 2 Development Agreement with Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC and Michael R. Johnson, Under the
terms of the agreement, Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC has the right to develop and operate up to ten new O'Charley’s restaurants over the
next six years in certain markets in lowa, Nebraska, and parts of Topeka, Kansas and Eastern South Dakota.

The franchising arrangermnent requires us to provide access to certain contractual arrangements that we have with our vendors in order for the
franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50.000 each for the first two restaurants and $25,000
each for the remaining eight restaurants. The franchisee is also required to pay a franchise fee and marketing fund fee that are based on a
percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $100,000 as development fees at the closing of the
agreement, which represents a portion of the fees associated with the ten restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required to pay the remaining
amount of the development fees to us as each new restaurant opens. The development fees paid have been deferred and will be recognized in
income as each restaurant opens. .

On May 18, 2005, we entered into a Development Agreement with O’Candall Group, Inc. and Sam Covelli. Under the terms of the
agreement, O'Candall Group, [nc. and/or certain of its affiliates have the right to develop and operate up to 50 new O’Charley’s restaurants over
the next eight years, with a minimum of three new O'Charley’s restaurants expected to be open by the end of 2007. The initial development plans
are expected to focus on the Tampa, Florida, Orlando, Florida, Western Pennsylvania and Northern Ohio markets.

The franchising arrangement requires us to provide access to certain contractual armangements that we have with our vendors in order for the
franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50,000 cach for the first two restaurants and $25,000
each for the remaining restaurants in each of its four granted areas. The franchisee is also required to pay a franchise fee and marketing fund fee
that are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $500,000 as development fees at the
closing of the agreement, which represents a pontion of the fees associated with the 50 restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required to pay
the remaining amount of the developmen fees 1o us as each new restaurant opens. The Company recognized in income $50,000 in development
fees in fiscal 2006 related 10 the opening of a franchised restaurant. The remaining development fees paid have been deferred and will be
recognized in income as each restaurant opens.
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Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The preparation
of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions thar affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period {see Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements). Actual results could differ from those estimates. Critical accounting
policies are these that management believes are both most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and operating results, and require
management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain. We base our estimates on historical experience, outside advice from parties believed to be experts in such matters, and on
varicus other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the
application of those policies may resuit in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.
We consider the following policies to be most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing our consolidated financial
statements.

Our critical accounting policies are as follows:

*+  Lease accounting

+  Share-based compensation

«  Property and equipment

*  Goodwill and trademarks

*  Impairment of long-lived assets

+  Tax provision and related financial statement items
Lease Accounting

On February 7, 2005, the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC issued a letter to the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
expressing its views regarding certain accounting principles relating to three aspects of lease accounting: the period of time used for the
amortization of leasehold improvements; the recognition of rent expense when the lease term in an operating lease contains a period of free or
reduced rents commonly referred to as a “rent holiday™; and accounting for landlord improvement incentives to tenants. In October 2005, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period.” The FASB concludes
in this FSP that rental costs associated with ground or building operating leases that are incurred during a construction period should be expensed.

Qur policy for lease accounting involves recognizing rent on a straight-line basis from the time we are committed to a leased property, which
is when all contingencies associated with the delivery of the property by the landtord are taken care of, to the end of the leasc term, inclusive of
one renewal period. The term, for purposes of straight-line remt calculations and the useful life over which leasehold improvements are
depreciated, is the shorter of the estimated useful life of the leased property or the base lease term, inclusive of one renewal period. We also
recognize tenant allowances as a deferred rent liability and amortize them over the lease term, inclusive of one renewal period.

Share-Based Compensation

Prior to the adoption of SFAS [23R, we did not record stock option expense and presented a proforma disclosure. We did however record
the expense of restricted (non-vested) awards. Effective December 26, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004}, “Share-Based
Payment,” (“SFAS 123R"), which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation cost at fair value for all share-based payments
including stock options, We have adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method of adoption. As a result, share-
based compensation for fiscal 2006 includes compensation expense, recognized over the applicable vesting periods, for share-based awards
granted prior to, but not vested as of December 25, 2005, as well as compensation cost for new share-based awards granted during 2006.

Under the Black-Scholes Merton option-pricing model we estimated volatility using only historical share price performance over the
expected life of the option. Results of prior periods do not reflect any restated amounts upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R under the modified
prospective method. The Company’s policy is 10 recognize compensation cost for restricted awards with only service conditions and a graded
vesting schedule on a straight-line basis over the requisite scrvice period for the entire award. In addition, SFAS No. 123R also requires that
compensation expense be recognized for only the portion of options and restricted awards that are expected to vest. Thercfore, an estimated
forfeiture rate derived from historical employee terminations is applied against share-based compensation expense. The forfeiture rate is applied
on a straight-line basis over the service (vesting) period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was in-substance,
multiple awards. We have retained a third party to estimate our forfeiture rate. In addition, upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R we began
expensing the discount associated with our employee stock purchase plan based on the actual discount received.

Property and Equipment
The Company has $464.1 million of property and equipment net of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2006. As discussed in Note |
to the consolidated financial statements, our property and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following

estimated useful lives: building and improvements-30 yecars; furniture, fixtures and equipment-3 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the lesser of the asset’s estimated useful life or the expected lease term, inclusive of one renewal period. Equipment under capital
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leases is amortized to its expected value at the end of the lease term. Gains or losses are recognized upon the disposal of propenty and equipment,
and the asset and related accumutated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts. Maintenance, repairs and betterments that do
not enhance the value of or increase the life of the assets are expensed as incurred.

Inherent in the policies regarding property and equipment are certain significant management judgments and estimates, including usefu life,
residual value to which the asset is depreciated, the expected valee at the end of the lease term for equipment under capital leases, and the
determination as to what constitutes enhancing the value of or increasing the life of assets. These significant estimates and judgments, coupled
with the fact that the uliimate useful life and economic value at the end of a lease are typically not known until after the passage of time, through
proper maintenance of the asset, or through continued development and maintenance of a given market in which a restaurant operates can, under
certain circumstances, produce distorted or inaccurate depreciation and amortization or, in some cases result in 2 write down of the value of the
assets under SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. See Critical Accounting Policy “Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets” below.,

We belteve that our accounting policy for property and equipment provides a reasonably accurate means by which the costs associated with
an asset are recognized in expense as the cash flows associated with the asset’s use are realized.

Goodwill and Trademarks

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statemenis, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS Ne. 142, SFAS Ne. 142 also requires that intangible assets with definite
useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SfiAS No. 144,

At December 31, 2006, we have $93.4 million in goodwill and $25.9 million in indefinite life intangible assets shown on our conselidated
balance sheets related primarily to the acquisition of Ninety Nine restavrants. The detcrmination of the estimated useful lives and whether these
assets are impaired involves significant judgments based upon shont and long-term projections of future performance. Centain of these forecasts
teflect assumptions regarding our ability to successfully integrate the Ninety Nine concept 2nd to maintain the financial performance that this
concept has experienced over its recent history. We have relied on the judgments of cutside valuation experts in cvaluating the carrying value of
our goodwill and other intangible assets. Changes in strategy, new accounting pronouncements and/or market conditions may result in future
impairment of recorded asset balances.

On January 27, 2003, we acquired Ninety Nine restaurants for $116 million in cash and approximately 2.34 million shares of our common
stock. We completed a valuation of the assets and liabilities of Ninety Nine and allocated the purchase price to the acquired tangible and
intangible assets and liabilities, including $25.9 million related to wrademarks, with the remaining amount of $93.1 million being allocated to
goodwill. We selected the first day of each new fiscal year as the date on which we will test the goodwill and trademarks for impairment, We
completed a valuation of the goodwill pursuant to SFAS No. 142 as of January 1, 2007, the first day of fiscal 2007 and our valuation showed that
the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its net book value and no impairment charge was needed.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

As discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial statements, SFAS No, 144 requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net
undiscounted cash flows expected 10 be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets 1o be disposed of are reporied at
the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

The judgments made related to the ultimate expected useful tife and our ability to realize undiscounted cash flows in excess of the carrying
value of an asset are affected by such issues as ongoing maintenance of the asset, continued development of a given market within which a
restaurant operates, including the presence of traffic generating businesses in the area, and our ability to operate the restaurant efficiently and
effectively. We assess the projected cash flows and carrying values at the restaurant level, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the long-lived assets associated with a restaurant may not be recoverable.

We believe that our accounting policy for impairment of long-lived assets provides reasonable assurance that any assets that are impaired are
written down to their fair value and a charge is taken in operating earnings on a timely basis. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we took
an impairment charge of $4.5 million for three O*Charley’s restaurants that we plan to close and for one O Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety
Nine restaurants that will remain open. We also recorded charges for purchased software that is not longer in use and for asset write-offs relating
to our *Project RevOr'lution’ and ‘Dressed to the Nines' rebranding efforts. The $4.5 million charge in 2006 was offset by a net gain of 52.4
million on assets held for sale and assets sold or otherwise settled that were not held for sale. During the year ended December 25, 2005, we took
an impairment charge of $7.2 million for eight O'Charley's restaurants and a corporate aircraft.

Tax Provision and Related Financial Statement Items

We must make estimates of certain items that comprise our income tax provision and the related current and deferred tax liabilities. These
estimates include employer tax credits for items such as FICA taxes paid on employce tip income, Work Opportunity and Welfare to Work
credits, as well as estimates related to centain depreciation and capitalization policies. These estimates are made based on the best available
information at the time of the provision and historical experience. We file our income tax returns many months after our year end. These returns
are subject to audit by various federal, state and local governments several years after the returns are filed and could be subject to differing
interpretations of the tax laws. We then must assess the likelihood of successful legal proceedings or reach a settlement, either of which could
result in material adjustments to our consolidated financial statements.
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As part of the computation of the income tax provision, we identify and measure deferred tax assets and liabilities, We weigh available
evidence in determining the realization of deferred tax assets. Available evidence includes historical, current and future financial performance of
the Company. We also consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. [f we determine it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be recognized, the
deferred tax asset will be reduced by a valuation allowance. At December 31, 2006, the Company had deferred tax valuation allowance of $4.3
million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On March 28, 2006, the FASB issucd EITF 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should
Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross versus Net Presentarion)” that clarifies how a company discloses its recording of taxes
collected that are imposed on revenue producing activities. EITF 06-3 is effective for the first interim reporting period beginning after December
31, 2006. The adoption of EITF 06-03 is not expected to have a material impact on our 2007 results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASRB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement
Ne. 109" (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertain tax positions, as defined. FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in
practice associated with cenain aspects of the recognition and measurement related 1o accounting for income taxes. This interpretation is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December [5, 2006. We have not yet determined the impact this interpretation will have on our 2007 results of
operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fuair Value Measurements”, (“"FAS 157"). This Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those
fiscal years. We have not yet determined the impact SFAS No. 157 will have on our 2008 results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bultetin No. 108 (SAB 108), “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financizl Statements.” SAB 108 provides guidance regarding the consideration given to prior
year misstatements when determining materiality in current year financial statements, and is effective for fiscal years ending afier November 15,
2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have an impact on cur 2006 results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position {“FSP”) American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide
(“*AUG AIR-1™) “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities” (FSP AUG AIR-1). FSP AUG AIR-1 amends the guidance on the
accounting for planned major mainienance activities; specifically it precludes the use of the previously acceptable “accrue in advance™ method.
FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The implementation of this standard is not expected to have a
material impact on our 2007 consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value QOption for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” ("SFAS No.
159%). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and financial linbilitics at fair value. Unrealized gains and
losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No, 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007. We have not yet determined the impact SFAS Ne. 159 will have on our 2008 results of operations or financial position.

Impact of Inflation

The impact of inflation on the cost of food, labor, equipment, land construction costs, and fuel/energy costs could adversely affect our
operations. A majority of our employees are paid hourly rates related to federal and state minimum wage laws. Several states are considering
changes to their minimum wage and/or benefit related laws which, if enacted, could have an adverse impact on the Company's payroll and
benefit costs. As a result of increased competition and the low unemployment tates in the markets in which our restaurants are located, we have
continued to increase wages and benefits in order to attract and retain management personnel and hourly employees. In addition, most of our
leases require us to pay taxes, insurance, maintenance, repairs and utility costs, and these costs are subject to inflationary pressures. Commodity
inflation has had a significant impact on our operating costs. We also believe that increased fuel costs over the past 18 months have had a
negative impact on consumer behavior and have increased the cost of operating our Quality Product Center. We attempt to offset the effect of
inflation through periodic menu price increases, economies of scale in purchasing and cost controls and efficiencies at our restaurants,




Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We arc subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on our financing, investing, and cash management activities.
We utilize a balanced mix of debt maturities along with both fixed-rate and variable-rate debt to manage our expesures to changes in interest
rates, Our fixed-rate debt consists primarily of capitalized lease obligations and senior subordinated notes and our variable-rate debt consists
primarily of our revolving credit facility.

As an additional method of managing our interest rate exposure on our credit facility, at certain times we enler into interest rate swap
agreements whereby we agree to pay over the life of the swaps a fixed interest rate payment on a notional amount and in exchange we receive a
floating rate payment calculated on the same amount over the same time period, The fixed interest rates are dependent upon market levels at the
time the swaps are consummated. The floating interest rates are generally based on the monthly LIBOR rate and rates are typically reset on a
monthly basis, which is intended to coincide with the pricing adjustments on our revolving facility. At December 31, 2006, the Company did not
have any swaps outstanding to manage the interest rate exposure of our credit facility.

At December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, we had interest rate swap agreements with a financial institution that effectively converted a
portion of the fixed-rate indebtedness related 1o our $125.0 million senior subordinated notes due 2013 into variable-rate obligations. The total
notional amount of these swaps is $100.0 million and is based on six-month LIBOR rates in arrears plus a specified margin, the average of which
is 3.9 percent. The terms and conditions of these swaps mirror the interest terms and conditions on the notes. These swap agreements expire in
November 2013,
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
O’Charley’s Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of O’Charley’s Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2006 and
December 25, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of eamings, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for
each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the consclidated financial statements,
we have also audited financial statement schedule II, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
O’Charley’s Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and Decemnber 25, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for share based payments in
2006 and changed its method of accounting for certain asset retirement obligations in 2005.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0}, and our report
dated March 14, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and an adverse opinion on the effective operation of,
intenal control over financial reporting.

/s KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
March 14, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $175 in 2006 and $107 in 2005
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Assets held for sale
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property and Equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible Asset
Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Federal, state and local taxes
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations

Total current liabilities
Deferred Income Taxes
Other Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, less current portion
Capitalized Lease Obligations, less current portion

Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock—No par value; authorized, 50,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 23,654,745

in 2006 and 22,988,401 in 2005
Unearned compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Retained eamings

Total shareholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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December 31,

2006

December 25,

2005

(dollars in thousands)

$ 19923 $ 5699
14,503 12,852
30,895 45,629
8,269 9,338
1,962 5,708
4,797 4,399
80,749 84,125
464,107 464,048
93,381 93,074
25,921 25,921
22,354 20,442

$ 686,512 $ 687,610

$ 17,548 $ 21,874
21,267 19,132
24,515 22,308
19,765 21,393
17,436 10,713
9,812 10,975
110,343 106,395

— 7,407
50,798 49,512
126,540 148,299
18,005 26,409
193,690 185,374

— (4,027

— (5)
187,136 168,246
380,826 349,588

S 686,512 $ 687,610




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Year Ended
December 31, December 25, December 26,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues:
Restaurant sales $ 978,751 $ 921,329 864,259
Commissary sales 10,345 8,498 7,035
Franchise revenue 428 361 92
989,524 930,188 871,386
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of restaurant sales:
Cost of food and beverage 291,759 277,391 260,846
Payroll and benefits 328,809 318,513 291,098
Restaurant operating costs 185,938 172417 157,732
Cost of commuissary sales 9,065 7,716 6,646
Advertising and marketing expenses 27,917 25470 25,656
General and administrative expenses 52,211 42,823 38,401
Depreciation and amontization, property and equipment 46,614 43,806 39,798
Asset impairment and disposals 2,098 7,335 16
Pre-opening costs 4,628 6,271 5,908
949,039 901,742 826,101
Income from Operations 40,485 28,446 45,285
Other Expense / (Income);
Interest expense, net 14,401 14,374 12,604
Other, net {6 42 —
14,395 14,416 12,604
Earnings Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle 26,090 14,030 32,681
Income Taxes 7,200 2,001 9,362
Eamings Before Cumutative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle 18,890 12,029 23,319
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax — (151 —
Net Eamings $ 18,890 3 11,878 23,319
Basic Earnings Per Common Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle $ 0.81 $ 0.53 1.05 |
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax — (0.01) —
Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 0.81 b3 0.52 $ 1.05
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle 3 0.80 $ 0.52 1.03
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax — {0.01) —
Diluted Eamings Per Common Share $ 0.80 s 0.51 $ 1.03

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated
Other
Common Stock Unearned Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Compensation Loss, net Earnings Total
(in thousands)

Balance, December 28, 2003 22,118 $170,008 $(2,351) $(519) $133,049  3300,187
Comprehensive income:
Net earnings — _— -—_ — 23,319 23,319
Unrealized change in market value of derivatives, net of

tax — — — 295 — 295
Total comprehensive income 23,614
Exercise of employee stock options including

tax benefits (net of shares tendered) 248 2,495 — — — 2,495
Shares issued under CHUX Ownership Plan 147 2,136 — — —_ 2136
Restricted share issuances ' 8 2,249 (2,249) — — —
Restricted stock compensation expense —_ 1,237 034 — — 2171
Donation of stock 8 137 — — — 137
Balance, December 26, 2004 22,529 178,262 (3,666) (224) 156,368 330,740
Comprehensive income:
Net eamings e — — — 11,878 11,878
Unrealized change in market value of derivatives, net of

tax —_ — — 219 — 219
Total comprehensive income 12,097
Exercise of employee stock options including

tax benefits (net of shares tendered) 286 4,135 —_— — — 4,135
Shares issued under CHUX Ownership Plan 146 2,131 — — 2.131
Restricted share issuances 27 1,490 (1,490} — - —
Restricted stock compensation expense — (644) 1,129 — — 485
Balance, December 25, 2005 22,988 185,374 4,021 {5 168,246 349,588
Comprehensive income;
Net carnings — — — — 18,890 18,890
Unrealized change in market value of derivatives, nct of

tax — — — 5 — 5
Total comprehensive income 18,895
Exercise of employee stock options including

tax benefits (net of shares tendered) 502 7,879 — — — 7.879
Shares issued under CHUX Ownership Plan 126 1,809 _ _ 1,809
Reversal of unearned compensation based upon the

adoption of SFAS No. 123R — (4,027} 4,027 — — —
Share-based compensation expense 10 2,655 - _ _ 2,655
Falance, December 31, 2006 23,655 §193,690 §— 5 — $187,136 $380,826

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
December 31, December 15, December 26,
2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net earnings $ 18,890 $ 11,878 § 23319
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment 46,614 43,806 39,798
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,342 1,426 1,449
Deferred income taxes {7,495) (3,653) (464)
Share-based compensation 2,655 485 2,17
Amortization of deferred gain on sale-leasebacks (1,077 (1,056) {1,055)
Loss on the sale and involuntary conversion of assets 139 233 215
Asset impairment and disposals 2,534 7,335 16
Donation of stock — — 137
Changes in assets and habilities:
Accounts receivable (2,051) (3,274) (734)
Inventories 14,734 (12,006) (11,612)
Other current assets (398) 377 (1,078)
Trade accounts payable (4,326) 7615 (1,128)
Deferred revenue (1,628) 2,183 3,768
Accrued payroll and other accrued expenses, and federal, state and focal
Taxes 11,094 3,778 10,426
Other long-term assets and liabilities 2,114 2,931 4,046
Tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options — 674 1,224
Net cash provided by operating activities 83,141 62,732 70,498
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment {53,616) (68,778) (60,491)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 7,917 3,364 1,943
Other, net (177 1,987 3.246
Net cash used in investing activities {45,876) (63,427) (55.302)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt — 5,885 4.454
Payments on long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations (31,718) {15,85%) (33,799)
Excess tax benefit from share-based payments 818 — —
Proceeds from sale and lease-back transactions — — 12,090
Minority interest in joint vehtures — — 750
Deht issuance costs (1,011) — (900)
Exercise of employee incentive stock options and issuances under stock
purchase plan 8,870 5,592 3,407
Net cash used in financing activities (23.041) (4,378) (13,998)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 14,224 (5,073} 1,198
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the ycar 5,699 10,772 9,574
Cash and cash equivalenis at end of the year $ 19,923 5 5,699 $ 10,772

See accompanying notes 1o the consolidated financial statements
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O’CHARLEY’'S INC,
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

O'Charley’s Inc. (the “Company”) owns and operates 227 (at December 31, 2006) full-service restaurant facilities in 16 Southeastern and
Midwestern states under the trade name “Q’Charley’s”, 114 full-service restaurant facilities in nine Northeastern states under the trade name
“Ninety Nine Restaurants”, and ten full-setvice restaurant facilities under the trade name “Stoney River Legendary Steaks.” As of December 31,
2006, the Company had six franchised O"Charley’s restaurants including five franchised O'Charley’s restaurants in Michigan and one franchised
O'Charley's restaurant in Ohio. As of December 31, 2006 the Company had three joint venture O"Charley’s restaurants in Louisiana, and one
Joint venture O'Charley's restaurant in Wisconsin, in which the Company has an ownership interest. The Company’s fiscal year ends on the last
Sunday in December. Fiscal years presented were comprised of 53 weeks in 2006 and 52 weeks in 2003 and 2004, Certain reclassifications have
been made to prior year amounts to conferm to the current year presentation.

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and ali of its subsidiaries plus the
accounts of the joint ventures {See note below regarding “Investment in Joint Ventures™). All significant intercompany transactions and balances
have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalens. The Company had cash equivalents of $24.8 million and $3.4 million at
December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively. These cash equivalents consist entirely of ovemnight repurchase agreements of
government securities.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and consist primarily of food, beverages and supplies.

Operating Leases. The Company has land and building fcases that are recorded as operating leases. Most of the leases have rent escalation
clauses and some have rent holiday and contingent rent provisions, In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™}
Technical Bulletin (“FTB") No. 85-3, “dccounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases,” the rent expense under these leases is
recognized on the straight-line basis. The Company uses a lease life or expected lease term that generally is inclusive of one renewal period and
begins on the date that the Company becomes legally obligated under the lease.

Cenrtain leases provide for rent holidays, which are included in the lease life used for the straight-line rent calculation in accordance with FTB
No. 88-1, “Issues Relating to Accounting for Leases.” Rent expense and an accrued rent liability are recorded during the rent holiday periods,
during which the Company has possession of and access to the property, including the pre-opening period during construction, but is typically not
required or obligated to, and normally does not, make rent payments.

Certain leases provide for contingent rent, which is determined as a percentage of gross sales in excess of specified levels, The Company
records a contingent rent liability and corresponding rent expense when sales have been achieved in amounts in excess of the specified levels.

The same lease life is used for reporting future minimum lease commitments as is used for the straight-line rent calculation.

Pre-opening Costs represent costs incurred prior to a restaurant opening and are expensed as incurred. These costs also include straight-line
rent related to leased properties from the period of time between when the Company has waived any contingencies regarding use of the leased
property and the date on which the restaurani opens.

fnvestment in Affiliated Company. The Company has an approximate 8 petcent ownership interest in a joint venture to operate a restaurant
concept in Chicago, [linois. The Company is not the primary beneficiary as defined by FASB Inierpretation (FIN) No. 46(R), Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, and accounts for i1s investment using the equity method,

Investment in Joint Ventures. The Company has a 50 percent interest in two joint ventures to operate O’Charley’s restaurants. Under FIN
No. 46(R), the joint ventures (JFC Enterprises, LLC and Wi-Tenn Restaurants, LLC) are considered variable interest entities, Since the Company
currently bears a disproportionate share of the financial risk associated with the joint ventures, it has been deemed to be the primary beneficiary
of the joint ventures and, in accordance with FIN 46(R), the Company consolidates the joint ventures in its consolidated financial statements.
The JFC Enterprise, LLC, joint venture partner has neither the obligation nor the ability to contribute their proporticnate share of expected future
losses. Such losses may require additional financial support from the Company. The Wi-Tenn Restaurants, LLC, joint venture partner relied on
the Company to assist it in funding the construction and development of its first restaurant. In addition, subsequent to the opening of its first
restaurant during the fourth quarter of 2006, and in accordance with the agreement with the joint venture partner, the Company has provided a
revolving credit agreement which the joint venture can use to operate its first restaurant.

Property and Equipment are stated ot cost and depreciated on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: buildings
and improvements-30 years; furniture, fixtures and equipment-3 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the asset’s
estimated useful life or the expected lease term, inclusive of one renewal period. Equipment under capitalized leases is amortized to its expected
residual value to the Company at the end of the lease term. Gains or losses are recognized upon the disposal of property and equipment, and the
asset and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts. Maintenance, repairs and betterments that do not
enhance the value of or increase the life of the assets are expensed as incurred.

Asset Retirement Obligations. The Company has determined that it has potential obligations for certain of its restaurant-level assets.

Specifically, the Company has the obligation to remove certain assets from its restaurants at the end of the lease term and therefore records asset
retirement obligations. In 2005, the Company adopied FASB Interpretation No.47 which clarifies the term conditional asset retirement obligation
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as used in SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. As a result, we incurred an afler-tax charge of $0.2 million, or $0.01 per
diluted share, which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for 2005.

Managing Partner Program for Stoney River. The Company has established a “managing parter program” for the general managers of its
Stoney River restaurants pursuant to which each general manager had the opportunity to acquire a six percent interest in the limited liability
company that owns the restaurant that the general manager manages in exchange for a capital contribution to that subsidiary. The general
managers at four of the Stoney River restaurants each acquired a six percent interest in their restaurant for a capital contribution of $25,000. Upon
the fifth anniversary of the managing partner’s capital contribution to the subsidiary, the Company has the option, but not the obligation, to
purchase the managing partner’s six percent interest for fair market value, Under the terms of the agrecments between the Company and each
managing partner, fair market value would be determined by negotiations between the parties. 1f such negotiations did not result in an agreement
on value, a third-party appraisal process would be used to determine fair market value. :

On a quarterly basis, the managing partner receives an allocation and distribution of six percent of the operating profit of his or her
restaurant, Upon termination, a managing partner’s interest would be repurchased by the Company at the value of the managing partner’s capital
account under the terms of the agreement between the Company and each managing partner, which is generally based on the managing partner’s
capital contributions plus respective allocations of the operating profit or losses of his or her restaurant as described above less distributions to the
Tespective managing partner, Otherwise, the managing partmers may net withdraw or receive 2 return of contributions.

During 2006, the Company has purchased two of the four managing partner’s interest. The Company accounted for those transactions using
the purchase method as proscribed for the repurchase of minonity interests in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 141,
“Business Combinations™, As part of the repurchase of two of the minority interest during 2006 the Company recorded approximately 50.3
million in goodwill. The managing partner’s minority interest, which totals $50,000 for the remaining two managing partners, is recorded on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet as an other liability. The quarterly profit distributions to the managing partners are recorded on the
Company's consolidated statement of earnings as a minority interest in earnings, which is included in payroll and benefits expense.

During 2006, the Company implemented a new “managing partner program™ which is a five year operating agreement between the Company
and the general manager that allows the general manager o receive five percent of their restaurant’s profit each quarter and one percent of the
profit in all the restaurants participating under this new program. The Company also accrues an additional five percent of the restaurant’s profit
and one percent of the participating restaurant’s profit in the program each quarter to be paid upon the fifth anniversary of the agreement in
exchange for a $25,000 cash investment by the general manager. The cash investments made under the new managing partner program are
recorded and shown in the consolidated balance sheet as an other liability. At December 31, 2006, the Company had two managing partners
under the original “managing partner program” and five general managers under the new “managing partner program’”.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets represents the excess of costs over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets
acquited in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead tested for impairment
at least annually, Intangible assets with estimated useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual
values, and reviewed for impairment. :

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, and purchased intangibles subject to amortization are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge
is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the assel. Assets to be disposed of are separately
presented in the consolidated balance sheet and reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer
depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed group classificd as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and
liability sections of the consolidated balance sheet. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company took an impairment charge of $4.5
million for three O"Charley's restaurants that it plans 1o close and for one O’Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety Nine restaurants that will
temain open. The Company also recorded impairment charges for purchased sofiware that is no longer in use and for asset write-offs relating to
the Company’s *Project RevQ’lution’ and *Dressed to the Nines® rebranding efforts. The $4.5 million charge in 2006 was partially offset by a net
gain of $2.4 million on assets held for sale and other assets that were sold. During the year ended December 23, 2005, the Company took an
impairment charge of $7.2 million for eight O’Charley’s restaurants and a corporate aircraft.

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested annually for impairment, and are tested for impairment more frequently if events and
circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired, An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill and
indefinite life intangible assets exceeds their implied fair value. This determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps.
First, the Company determines the fair value of 2 reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount. Second, if the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over
the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a
manner similar to a purchase price allocation, in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. The residual fair value after this
altocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill.

‘The Company has selected the first day of each new fiscal year as the date on which it will test the goodwill for impairment. The Company
completed 2 valuation of the goodwill as of January 1, 2007, and the valuation showed that the fair value of the goedwill exceeded the carrying
value and no impairment charge was needed. Also, as a part of this valuation, the Company reviewed the carrying value of the trademarks, an
indefinite life intangible asset, and found that no impairment charge was needed.

Revenues consist of Company-owned and joint venture restaurant sales and, to a lesser extent, commissary sales and franchise revenue.
Restaurant sales include food and beverage sales and are net of applicable state and local sales taxes and discounts. Commissary sales represent
sales to outside parties consisting primarily of sales of O’ Charley's branded food items, primarily salad dressings to retail grocery chains, mass
merchandisers, wholesale clubs and franchisees. Franchise revenue consists of development fees and royalties on sales of franchised units. Our
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development fees for franchisees in which we do not have an ownership interest are generally $50,000 for the first two restaurants and $25,000
for each additional restaurant opened by the franchisee. The development fees are recognized during the reporting period in which the developed
restaurant begins operation. The royaities are recognized in revenug in the period comresponding to the franchisees’ sales. Revenue resulting from
the sale of gift cards is recognized in the period redeemed.

Vendor Rebates. The Company receives vendor rebates from various non-alcoholic beverage suppliers, and to a lesser extent suppliers of
food products and supplies. Rebates are recognized as reductions 1o cost, in the cost of food and beverage line, in the same period as the related
food and beverage expense.

Advertising and Marketing Cost. The Company expenses advertising and marketing costs as incurred, except for ceriain advertising
production costs that are initially capitalized and subsequently expensed the first time the advertising takes place.

Income Taxes are accounted for in accordance with the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
Tespective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the consolidated statement of eamings in the period that includes the
enactment date.

Share-Based Compensation. The Company adopted SFAS 123R “Share-Based Paymenr” on December 26, 2005. Prior to December 26,
2005, the Company accounted for its share-based compensation under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles
Board (*APB") Opinion Ne. 23, *Aeccounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations (“APB Opinion No. 25™), the disclosure-
only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and the disclosures required by SFAS No. 148, “Acconnting for
Siock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure.' In accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, no share-based compensation cost was
reflected in the Company’s prior year net income for grants of stock options to employees because the Company granted stock options with an
exercise price equal to the market value of the stock on the date of grant.

During the Company’s evaluation of SFAS 123R on its consolidated financial statements, management made a decision that was approved
by the Board of Directors to accelerate the vesting of certain unvested “oui-of-the-money” stock options previously awarded under its 1990
Employee Stock Plan and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. The acceleration of these stock options was done to minimize future compensation expense
under SFAS 123R. As a result of the acceleration, approximately 1,124,000 stock options with a range of exercise prices between $15.25 and
$24.19 per share, of which approximately 12 percent are held by named executive officers and one director, became exercisable on November 15,
2005. Aside from the scceleration of the vesting date, the terms and conditions of the stock option agreements governing the underlying stock
options remain unchanged. As a result of the acceleration, the Company reduced the pretax stock-based employee compensation expense it
otherwise would have been required to record. The table below reflects a deduction of $11.6 million for stock-based employee compensation
expense determined wnder fair-value-based methed for all awards, net of tax which included the acceleration of certain stock options. Had the
Company used the fair value based accounting method for share-based compensation expense prescribed by SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net
earnings and net earnings per basic and diluted common share for the years ended December 23, 2005 and December 26, 2004 would have been
reduced to the pro-forma amounts as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Year Ended

December 25, December 26,
2005 2004

Net earnings, as reported $ 11,878 $ 23319
Add stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

earnings, net of tax 416 1,550
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair-value-based method for all awards, net of tax (11,619) (4,509)
Pro forma net eamings b 675 $ 20,360
Eamings per share:
Basic—as reported $ 0.52 $ 1.05
Basic-—pro forma g 0.03 $ 0.91
Diluted—as reported 3 0.51 $ 1.03
Diluted—pro forma $ 0.03 $ 0.90

Upon the adoption SFAS 123R, the Company began recording compensation expense under the medified-prospective method. Total share
based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2006, was approximately 32.7 million before tax and was comprised of costs associated
with stock options, restricted stock and the employee stock ownership plan.

Per Share Data. Basic eamnings per common share have been computed by .dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during cach year presented. Diluted ¢arnings per common share have been computed by dividing net earnings by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the ditutive effect of options and restricted shares outstanding during the applicable
periods. Basic and diluted earnings per share also include the dilutive effect of shares remaining to be issued to the prior owners of Ninety Nine
due to the fact that the timing of issuance is related solely 1o the passage of time.

Stock Repurchase. Under Tennessee law, when a corporation purchases its common stock in the open market, such repurchased shares
become authorized but unissued. The Company reflects the purchase price of any such repurchased shares as a reduction of common stock.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the fair
values of most on- and off-balance sheet financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value, The scope of SFAS No. 107
excludes certain financial instruments such as trade receivables and payables when the carrying value approximates the fair value, employee
benefit obligations, lease contracts, and all nenfinancial instruments such as land, buildings, and equipment. The fair values of the financial
instruments are estimates based upon current market conditions and quoted market prices for the same or similar instruments as of December 31,
2006 and December 25, 2005.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. All dertvative instruments are recognized on the conselidated balance sheet at their fair value.
On the date the derivative contract is entered into, the Company designates the derivative as either a hedge of the variability of cash flows to be
paid related to a recognized liability or as a hedge of the fair value of a recognized liability. For all hedging relationships, the Company formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item,
the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the hedge risk will be assessed, and a description of
the method of measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair-value and cash-flow hedges to
specific liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair value of the hedged items. The Company also
determines how ineffectiveness will be measured. Changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument that is highly effective and that is
designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive income, until earnings are affected by the variability in cash
flows of the designated hedged item. Changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument that is highly effective and that is designated and
gualifies as a fair value hedge, along with the loss or gain on the hedged liability, arc recorded in earnings. I it is determined that a derivative is
ineffective as a hedge, the Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective fair-value hedge, the
Company continues to carry the derivative on the balance sheet at its fair value and no longer adjusts the hedged liability for changes in fair
value. The adjustment of the carrying amount of the hedged liability is accounted for in the same manner as other components of the carrying
amount of that liability. In all other situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the Company continues to carry the derivative at its fair
value on the consolidated balance sheet and recognizes any subsequent changes in its fair value in camings.

Comprehensive Income. SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, establishes rules for the reporting of comprehensive income and
its components. Comprehensive income, presented in the consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, consists of
net eamnings and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives designated as a cash flow hedge, net of tax. Other comprehensive income, net of tax, for
2006 was approximatcly $5,000.
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Operating Segments. Due 1o similar economic characteristics, as well as a single type of product, production process, distribution system and
type of guest, the Company reports the operations of its three concepts on an aggregated basts and does not separately report segment
information. Revenues from external customers are derived principally from food and beverage sales. The Company dees not rely on any major
customer as a source of revenue. As a result, separate segment information is not disclosed.

Use of Estimates. Management of the Company has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the peried o prepare these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of property and equipment, intangibles and goodwill;
valuation allowances for receivables, gift card breakage, inventories and deferred income tax assets; workers’ compensation and general liability
insurance liabilities; valuation of derivative instruments; and obligations related to employee benefits. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements.

On March 28, 2006, the FASB issued EITF 06-3, “How Tuxes Collected from Customers and Remitied to Governmental Authorities Should Be
Presented in the Income Statement  (That is. Gross versus Net Presentation)” that clarifies how a company discloses its recording of taxes
callected that are imposed on revenue praducing activities, EITF 06-3 is effective for the first interim reporting period beginning after December
31, 2006. The adoption of EITF 06-03 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s 2007 results of operations.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 197 (“FIN 48"}, which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertain tax
positions, as defined. FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and measurement related
to accounting for income taxes. This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company has not yet
determined the impact this interpretation will have on its 2007 results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fuair Value Measurements”, ("FAS 157"). This Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS No. 157 js effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those
fiscal years. The Company has net yet determined the impact SFAS No. 157 will have on its 2008 results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff’ Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108), “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
when Quantifying Misstaternents in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB 108 provides guidance regarding the consideration gtven to prior
year misstatements when determining materiality in current year financial statements, and is effective for fiscal years ending after November 13,
2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have an impact on the Company’s 2006 results of operations or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP"Y American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide
(“AUG AIR-1") “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities” (FSP AUG AIR-1). FSP AUG AIR-1 amends the guidance on the
accounting for planned major maintenance activities; specifically it precludes the use of the previously acceptable “accrue in advance™ method.
FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The implementation of this standard is not expected to have a
material impact on the Cempany’s 2007 consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (SFAS No.
159). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial assets and financial labilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses
on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company has not vet determined the impact SFAS No. 159 will have on its 2008 results of operations or financial
position.

2. Impairment of and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets related to each restaurant to be held and used in the business, including any other assets or
allocated tntangible assets subject 1o amortization, quarterly for impairment, or whenever events or changes in citcumstances indicate that ihe
carrying amount of a restaurant may not be recoverable. Based on the best information available, the Company writes down an impaired asset to
its estimated fair market value, which becomes its new cost basis. The Company measures estimated fair market value by discounting ifs
estimated future cash flows, and the estimated market value of the asset, net of costs associated with marketing and/or selling the asset. In
addition, when the Company decides to close a restaurant it is reviewed for impairment and depreciable lives are adjusted based on the expected
disposal date. The impaimment evaluatien is based on the estimated cash flows from continuing use through the expected disposal date plus the
expected terminal value.

Costs associated with closing a restaurant are generally expensed as incurred unless the restaurant is considered as discontinued operations.
Additionally, at the date the Company ceases using a property under an operating lease, it records a liability for the net present value of any
remaining lease obligations, net of cstimated sublease income, if any. If the Company decides to sell the underlying assets of a restaurant, such
assets are ne longer depreciated and are classified as assets held for sate on the consolidated balance sheet at the lower of their cost or estimated
fair market value. To the extent the Company sells such assets, primarily land, associated with a closed restaurant, any gain or loss upon that sale
is recorded in asset impairment and disposals.

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the Board of Directors approved management’s plan to close three under performing O’Charley’s
restaurants. In addition 1o impairment charges on these three restaurants, recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company took impairment
charges for one O’Charley’s restaurant and two Nincty Nine restavrants that will remain open, for purchased software no longer in use, and for
asset write-offs relating to the Company’s rebranding efforts. The impairment charge taken on the Q’Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety Nine
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restaurants that remain open was based on the Company’s normal review for asset impairment. These decisions followed a review of historical
and projected cash flows of the Company’s restaurants in view of the economic environment in which the Company is operating and the
Company’s current strategic plans, The impairments of the purchased sofiware and assets related to the Company's rebranding cfforts were taken
as the Company discontinued those assets in 2006.  As a result of these actions, the Company recognized a charge during 2006 for asset
impairment and disposals totaling $4.5 million. This amount includes an asset impairment charge of approximately $1.6 million related to the
three planned O’Charley’s restaurant closures, $1.9 million relating to one O’Charley’s restaurant and two Ninety Nine restaurants that are
impaired but are not expected to be closed and $1.0 million relating to the impairment of purchased software and assets related to the Company’s
rebranding efforts. The $4.5 million charge in 2006 was offset by a net gain of $2.4 million on assets held for sale and assets sold that were not
held for sale. In 2005, the Company recorded impairment charges of $7.2 million related to six restaurant closures, a corporate aircraft and two
restaurants that remain open. This impairment charge was in addition to losses of $0.1 million taken on the disposal of assets during 2005. With
respect to the asset impairment charges, fair value was determined by projected future discounted cash flows for each location, and the estimated
market value of the asset, net of costs associated with marketing and/or setling the asset

3. Exit and Disposal Costs

The Company recorded exit and disposal costs related 1o the closure of six O'Charley’s restaurants in the fourth quarter of 2005. The
Company recorded a liability at the “cease use™ date for $4.1 miltion for the six restaurants that were closed. This liability was offset by estimated
sublease income of $4.0 million as of December 25, 2005. The net expense of $0.1 millien is recorded in the consolidated statement of earnings
as a component of asset impairment and disposals. The Company did not incur any one-time termination benefits or other associated costs as a
result of exit and disposal activities. During 2006, the Company adjusted its liability by approximately $29,000 as certain of the Company’s
assets held for sale were sold during the year.

4. Share-Based Compensation

Prior to December 26, 2003, the Company accounted for its stock-based compensation under the recognition and measurement principles of
APB Opinion Ne. 25, and adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123 and No. 148. In accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, no
stock-based compensation cost was reflected in net eamings for grants of stock options prior to December 26, 2005, because the Company
granted stock options with an exercise price equal to the market valuc of the stock on the date of grant. The Company did, however, record
restricted stock expense priot 10 December 26, 2005 in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25.

Effective December 26, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123R, which requires the measurement and recognitien of compensation cost at
fair value for all share-based payments. The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified prospective method of
adoption, As a result, share-based compensation for fiscal 2006 includes compensation expense. recognized over the applicable vesting periods,
for share-based awards granted prior to, but not vested as of December 25, 2005, as well as compensation cost for new share-based awards
granted during 2006. Total share-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $2,655,000 (31,923,000
net of tax), and consisted of expense associated with stock options, restricted {non-vested) stock and the Company’s employee share purchase
plan. Total share-based compensation expense for the year ended December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004 was approximately $485.000 and
$2.171,000, respectively and consisted of expense associated with restricted stock. As of December 31, 2006, there were approximately 501,000
remaining shares available for issuance pursuant to the O'Charley’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. The Company recognized a tax benefit of
approximately $818,000, $674,000 and $1,224,000 during the years ended December 31, 2006, December 25, 2005, and December 26, 2004
respectively, related to the exercise of stock options.

{a} Stock Options

’Fhe Company has various incentive stock option plans that provide for the grant of both statutory and nonstatutory stock options to officers,
key team members and nonemployee directors of the Company. Options are granted at 100 percent of the fair market vatue of common stock on
the date of the grant, expire ten years from the date of the grant and are exercisable at various times as previously determined by the Board of
Directors. As described below, the Company discontinued issuing stock options during fiscal 2004, The fair value of the Company’s stock
options is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. As previously disclosed, the Company accelerated the vesting of all
its outstanding stock options with an excrcise price of $15.25 per share and higher during the fourth quarter of 2005 in anticipation of the
adoption of SFAS 123R. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately 85,000 unvested stock options outstanding of which
approximately 73,000 are expected to vest. As of December 31, 2606, the total compensation cost related o stock option awards not yet
recognized was $303,322. Stock option transactions during the year ended December 31, 2006 were as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Number of Exercise  Contractual  Intrinsic

Options Price Life (Years) Value
Options outstanding at December 25, 2005 2,782,296 § 17.62
Granted _
Exercised (502,240) 14.38
Forfeited (40,793) 12.76
Expired (273,657) 20.68
Options outstanding at December 31, 2006 1,965,606 18.12 440 $ 6,483,319
Options vested and exercisable at December
31, 2006 1,880,461 $ 18.37 444 § 5751970
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The intrinsic value of stock options exercised was approximately $2,083,000, $1,716,000 and $3,151,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006,
December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively.

(b) Restricted (Non-Vested) Stock Awards

During 2004, the Company changed its approach to share-based compensation and discontinued issuing stock options, choosing to only issue
restricted (non-vested) stock. This change impacted the Company’s eamnings as the accounting for restricted stock differs from the accounting for
stock optiens. The accounting for restricted stock is based on the vesting schedule for the shares. i the vesting schedule is based merely on the
passage of time and continued employment (time-based), the accounting treatment requires expensing from the grant date to the expected vesting
date based on the number of shares expected to vest and the stock price on the date of grant. The Company recognizes expense on a straight-line
basis for the time-based awards with a forfeiture rate applied. 1f the vesting is based on performance criteria {performance-based) thal could cause
the awards to vest over varying periods of time, or to not vest at all, the accounting treatment requires expensing from the grant date to the
expected vesting date at the stock price on the date of grant using a graded vesting approach for those awards that the Comipany determines are
probable of vesting. During 2004 and 2005, the Company granted both time-bascd and performance-based restricted stock awards that vest over
periods ranging from three to five years. For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company issued only time-based grants that vest ratably
over periods ranging frem three 1o five years. During 2006, the Company granted approximately 383.500 shares of restricted stock to certain
members of senior management, its board of directors and other employecs. The Company recognized net compensation expense of
approximately $1,399,000 related to these restricted stock awards during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Upon the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company applied an estimated forfeiture rate of 7.01 percent for its restricted stock awards which
resulted in a curulative reduction to expense of $358,008 before taxes which was reflected in the Company’s consolidated statement of camnings
during 2006. The forfeiture rate was calculated for the Company by a third party using the prier history of the Company's restricted stock grants.
The fair value of the restricted stock awards was determined by using the closing market price for the Company’s stock on the date of grant for
each restricted stock award.

The following tabie sets forth the restricted stock activity during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Number of Weighted

Restricted Average
Stock Grant Date
Awards Fair Value

Restricted Stock Awards outstanding at

December 25, 2005 697,025 § 8351
Granted 383,350 16.66
Vested (52,395) 15.69
Forfeited {190.601) 8.50

Restricted Stock Awards outstanding at )

December 31, 2006 837379 § 11.57

During 2006, the Company recognized pretax restricted stock expense for alt restricted stock awards of approximately $2,128,000 net of the
cumulative adjustment for the forfeiture rate applied to restricied stock awards issued and outstanding prior to December 25, 2005. As of
December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related to time-based restricted stock awards not yet recognized was approximately $7.7 million
and the weighted average period over which it is expected to be recognized is 2.2 years. The Company has 249,805 performance-based restricted
shares outstanding included in the 837,379 restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 2006. The Company does not expect these performance-
based awards to vest due to the Company’s recent and projected performance in comparison to vesting targets for those awards and accerdingly
has not recognized any share-based compensation expense. The expense associated with the vesting of all these performance-based restricted
shares would be approximately $4.6 million.

(c) Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has established the CHUX Ownership Plan for the purpose of providing an opportunity for eligible team members of the
Company to become shareholders in the Company. The Company has reserved 1,350,000 common shares for this plan. The CHUX Ownership
Plan is intended to be an employee stock purchase plan, which qualifies for favorable tax treatment under Secticn 423 of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Plan allows participants to purchase common shares at 85 percent of the lower of 1) the closing market price per share of the
Company’s common stock on the last trading date of the plan period or 2} the average of the closing market price of the Company’s common
stock on the firsi and the last irading day of the plan period. Contributions of up 1o 15 percemt of base salary are made by each participant through
payroll deductions. As of December 31, 2006, 871,793 shares have been tssued under this plan. During 2006, the Company recorded pre-tax
expense of approximately $377.000 associated with this plan as required by the adoption of SFAS 123R,
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5. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company recorded an asset retirement obligation as of December 25, 2005, based on its adoption of FASB Interpretation No. 47 which
clarifies the term conditional asset retirement obligation as used in SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. The Company
has determined that it has potential obligations for certain of uts restaurant-level assets. Specifically, the Company has the obligation to remove
certain assets from its restaurants at the end of the lease term. The following is a breakdown of the retirement obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 and a proforma disclosure as if the interpretation had been recorded as of December 26, 2004,

(in thousands)

Asset Retirement Obligation as of December 26, 2004 (proforma) $ 522
Accretion expense on the present-valued liability 18
Property additions requiring recognition of a liability 55

Asset Retirement Obligation as of December 25, 2005 595
Accretion expense on the present-valued liability 29
Property additions requiring recognition of a liability 16

Asset Retirement Obligation as of December 31, 2006 $ 640

In calculating the present value of the asset retirement obligation, the Company used the 10-year treasury yield plus the margin that the
Company pays above LIBOR in its revolving credit facility. The 10-year treasury yield was 4.4 percent and the spread over LIBOR was 1.3
percent.

6. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following:
December 31, December 25,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Land and improvements $ 76,784 8 74,990 !
Buildings and improvements 162,014 142,730 !
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 197,430 187,286
Leasehold improvements 185,658 181,252
Equipment under capitalized leases 86,621 74,549
Property leased to others 1,004 1,888
Construction in progress 9,656 13,003
719,167 675,698
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization {255,060) (211,650)

5 464,107 § 464,048

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment was $46.6 million, $43.8 million and $3%.8 million for the years ended December
31, 2006, December 25, 2005 and December 26, 2004, respectively.

49



7. Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale consist of the following:

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005

(in thousands)

Land s 801 $2,047
Buildings and improvements 3,693 6,501
Other assets 1,939 3,585
Less accurnulated depreciation and amortization (4471) (6,425)
§ 1962 $5,708

The amount shown in assets held for sale as of December 31, 2006 on the consolidated balance sheet consists of assets related to three
Company-owned O’Charley’s restaurants that were closed during the fourth quarter of 2005 and that are still held for sale and certain other non-
operating assets classified as held for sale during 2006. In 2005, the Company decided to close six under-performing restaurants as part of a plan
to improve existing restaurants, The Company has ceased recognizing depreciation expense for all of these assets while they are being held for
sale. During 2006, the Company sold assets held for sale including restaurants, a corporate aircraft and other non-operating assets. As a result of
those sales, the Company recorded a net gain of $2.4 million that is included in asset impairment and disposals in the 2006 consolidated statement
of eamnings.

8. Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following:
December 31,  December 25,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Supplemental executive retirement plan asset § 8983 $  BA04
Liquor licenscs 3,348 2,351
Deferred compensation — 1,000
Prepaid interest and finance costs 6,007 6,302
Notes receivable 205 160
Deferred tax asset 1,653 —_
Other assets 2,158 2,225

3 22,354 $ 20442

The increase in the supplemental executive retirement plan asset shown above is primarily related to earnings on insurance policies offset by
trust expenses and policy withdrawals during 2006. The increase in liquor licenses in 2006 of approximately $1.0 million represents the addition
of approximately four liquor licenses during 2006.

9. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31, December 25,
2006 1005
(in thousands)

Accrued insurance expenses $ 10,042 $ 11,206
Accrued employee benefits 3,317 3,437
Accrued interest 2,461 1,904
Other accrued expenses 8,695 5,761

§ 24515 § 22,308

The amount for accrued insurance expenses shown above includes primarily liabilities for workers® compensation, general liability, and
liquor liability claims for amounts that fail under the Company’s deductibles on each of the respective insurance polictes. Included in accrued
employee benefits are liabilities assoctated with the Company’s self-insured health insurance programs. The total of the accrued self-insured
health insurance liabilities at December 31, 2006 was approximately $2.9 million.
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10. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

December 31, December 25,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Revolving line of credit $ _ $ 22,000
9% senior subordinated notes due 2013 125,000 125,000
Financing arrangement 1,197 1,241
Note payable to Stoney River Managing Partners 393 —
Secured mortgage note payable 102 125

$126,692 $148,366
Less current portion of long-term debt {152) (67)
Long-term debt, less current portion $ 126,540 $ 148,299

The Company entered into 2 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreemen, dated as of October 18, 2006 (the “Credit Agreement”). The
Credit Agreement amended and restated the Company’s existing senior secured credit facility entered into on November 4, 2003. The Credit
Agreement provides for a five-year, $125.0 million revolving credit facility and permits the Company 10 request an increase in the principal
amount of the facility of up to $25 million. At December 31, 2006, the Company had no amounts outstanding on the revolving credit facility
except for approximately $9.3 million in letters of credit which reduced the capacity of the credir facility. The interest rates per annum
applicable (o loans outstanding under the Credit Agreement will, at the Company’s option, be equal to either a base rate or a LIBOR rate, in each
case plus an applicable margin (0.0 percent to 0.5 percent in the case of base rate loans and 0.75 percent to 1,25 percent in the case of LIBOR rate
loans), depending on the Company’s senior secured leverage ratio. In addition to the interest payments required under the Credit Agreement, the
Company is required to pay a commitment fee on the aggregate average daily unused portion of the credit facility cqual 10 0.25 percent to 0.375
percent per annum, depending on the Company's senior secured leverage ratio.

The Credit Agreement includes certain customary representations and warranties, negative covenants and events of default. It requires the
Company to comply with certain financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with such covenants at December 31, 2006, The
Company's obligations under the Credit Agreement are secured by liens on substantially all of its assets, including a pledge of the capital stock of
the Company’s material subsidiaries {but excluding real property acquired afier November 3, 2003). Except as otherwise provided in the Credit
Agreement, the Credit Agrecment will mature on October 18, 2011,

At December 31, 2006, the amount available under the revolving credit facility, after consideration of the Company’s outsianding letters of
credit, was approximately $115.7 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company amended and restated its credit facility and issued 5125 million aggregate principal amount of
notes. The proceeds from the notes were used to pay off a term loan and to repay a portion of the revolving credit loan under the Company’s bank
credit facility. Interest on the notes accrues al the stated rate of § percent and is payable semi-annually on May | and November 1 of each year
commencing May 1, 2004. The notes mature on November 1, 2013. The notes are unsecured, senior subordinated obligations and rank junior in
right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and future senior debt (as defined in the indenture governing the notes).

On November 11, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation. Under the terms of the
Program Agreement, GE Capital will provide financing to certain qualified franchisees of the Company’s O'Charley's restaurants (typically those
in which the Company has an ownership interest) in a maximum aggregate amount of $75,000,000. In consideration of GE Capital’s agreement
to make financing available under the program to certain of the Company's franchisees and joint venture partners, the Company has agreed,
subject to limitations, to guarantee payment to GE Capital for any ultimate net Josses it may suffer in connectton with loans under the program.
On May 31, 2006, this financing agreement expired and the Company made the decision not to renew it, however the Company will remain as
guarantor for the one loan outstanding under the program. As of December 31, 2006, $1.2 million in loans had been provided and is still
outstanding to an O’Charley’s joint venture under this financing ammangement. The 15 year loan requires monthly paymenls with an annual
interest rate of 8.3 percent. Furthermore, the Company has decided to assist this joint venture in opening its restaurants and has made additional
loans from the Company to the joint venture. Under FIN 46(R), the joint venture is a variable interest entity, as the Company does not anticipate
it having sufficient equity to fund its operations. Since the Company bears a disproportionate share of the financial risk associated with the joint
venture, it has deemed itself to be the primary beneficiary of the joint venture, and in accordance with FIN 46(R), must consolidate the joint
venture in its consolidated financial statements. As a result, this obligation of the joint venture partner with GE Capital has been consolidated on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

During fiscal 2006, the Company purchased minority interests of two Stoney River restaurants in which the managing partner held an
interest. The Company owes approximately $393,000 that will bear interest at 4.84 percent and is payable in five annual installments.

The secured mortgage note payable at December 31, 2006 bears interest at 10.5 percent and is payable in monthly installments, including
interest, through June 2010. This debt is collsteralized by land and buildings having a depreciated cost of approximately $389,000 at December
31, 2006.

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2006 were: $152,000-2007; $158,000-2008; $167,000-2009; $156,000-2010;
$146,000-2011: and $125.913,000 thereafter.
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T, Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, December 25,
2006 2005

(in thousands)

Deferred gatn on sale leaseback transactions $ 17,839 $ 18916
Deferred rent 17,201 13,976
Supplemental executive retirement plan liability 10,369 10,454
Deferred compensation liability 44 1,071
Other long-term liabilities 5,345 5,095

$ 50,798 $ 49512

12. Lease Commitments

The Company has various leases for certain restaurant land and buildings under operating lease agreements. These leases generally contain
renewal options ranging from five to 15 years and require the Company to pay all executory costs such as taxes, insurance and maintenance costs
in addition to the lease payments. Ceriain leases also provide for additional contingent rentals based on a percentage of sales in excess of a
minimum rent. The Company leases certain equipment and fixtures under capital lease agreements having lease terms from five to seven years.
The Company expecis to exercise its options under these agreements to purchase the equipment in accordance with the provisions of the lease
agreements,

As of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, approximately $32.1 million and $41.9 million, respectively, net book vatue of the

Company’s property and equipment is under capitalized lease obligations. Interest rates on capitalized lease obligations range from 3.8 percent to
7.3 percent.

Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Capitalized
Equipment Operating
Leases Leases
{in thousands)
2007 $ 10,724 $ 31,631
2008 9,300 31,345
2009 6,124 30,865
2010 1,758 30,285
2011 1,979 29,664
Thereafter — 275,726
Total minimum lease payments 29,885 S 429,516
Less amount representing interest (2,220)
Net minimum lease payments 27,665
Less current portion (9,660)
Capitalized lease obligations, net of current portion $ 18,005
Rent expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 for operating leases is as follows:
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Minimum reatals $ 33,094 $ 30438 $ 29485
Contingent rentals 401 421 410
3 33495 $ 30,859 $ 29,895

13. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

The Company has interest-rate-related derivative instruments to manage its exposure on its debt instruments. The Company does not enter
into derivative instruments for any purpose other than cash-flow-hedging and fair-valuc-hedging purposes. That is, the Company does not
speculate using derivative instruments.

By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, the Company exposes itself to credit risk and
market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract. When the fair value of a derivative
contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Company, which creates credit risk for the Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract
is negative, the Company owes the counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The Company minimizes the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions with established counterparties.
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Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that resuits from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated
with interest-rate contracts is managed by establishing and monitoring paramcters that limit the types and degree of market risk that may be
undertaken.

The Company periodically uses variable-rate debt to help finance its operations. The debt obligations expose the Company to variability in
interest payments due 1o changes in interest rates. Management believes it is prudent 10 limit the variability of a portion of its interest payments.
To meet this objective, management periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements 1o manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from
interest rate risk. These swaps change the variable-rate cash flow exposure on the debt obligations to fixed-rate cash flows. Under the terms of the
interest rate swaps, the Company receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed interest rate payments, thereby creating the equivalent
of fixed-rate debt. The swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges.

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments that effectively offset the variability of cash flows
associated with variable-rate, long-term debt obligations are reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax. These amounts
subsequently are reclassified into interest expense as a yield adjustment of the hedged debt obligation in the same period in which the related
interest affects eamings. At December 31, 2006, the Company did not have any cash-flow-hedging derivative instruments outstanding.

The Company assesses interest rate cash flow risk by continually tdentifying and monitoring changes in interest rate exposures that may
adversely impact expected future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opportunities. The Company maintains risk management control systems
to monitor interest rate cash flow risk attributable 1o both the Company’s outstanding or forecasted debt obligations as well as the Company's
offsetting hedge positions, The risk management control systems involve the use of analytical techniques, including cash flow sensitivity
analysis, (o estimate the expected impact of changes in interest rates on the Company’s future cash flows.

The Company also uses fixed-rate debt to finance its operations. The debt obligations expose the Company to variability in the fair value of
the fixed-rate debt due to changes in interest rates. Management believes that it is prudent to limit the variability of the debt’s fair value. To meet
this abjective, management enters inlo interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in fair value resulting from changes in interest rates,
These swaps change the {ixed-rate cash flow on the debt obligations to variable cash flows. Under the terms of interest rate swaps, the Company
receives fixed interest rate payments and makes variable interest rate payments, thereby creating the equivalent of variable rate debt.

Changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments that efiectively offset the variability of fair value
associated with fixed rate, long-term debt obligations, along with the loss or gain on the hedged liability, are recorded in eamings.

At December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the Company had interest rate swap agreements with a financial institution that effectively
converted a portion of the fixed-rate indebtedness related to its $125.0 million senior subordinated notes due 2013 into variable-rate obligations,
The total notional amount of these swaps is $100.0 million and is based on six-month LIBOR rates in arrears plus a specified margin, the average
of which is 3.9 percent. The terms and cenditions of these swaps miror the interest terms and conditions on the notes. These swap agreements
expire in November 2013.

On December 25, 2005, the Company had interest rate swap agreements with a financial institution that effectively converted a portien of the
variable-rate revolving line of credit into a fixed-rate obligation. The notional amount of these swaps was $10.0 million and was based on one
month LIBOR plus a specified margin ranging from 1.25 percent to 2.25 percent, The interest terms of these swaps mirror the interesi terms on
the debt, These swap agreements expired in January 2006, As of December 25, 2005, $5,000 of unrealized losses, net of tax, on the swaps were
included in accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax and at December 25, 2005, the total fair value of all swap agreements was a
liability of $8,631, which was included as a component of other long-term liabilities. During 2006, the debt was repaid and the swaps expired.
Accordingly the $5,000 of deferred losses on derivative instruments accumulated in other comprehensive income was reclassified to earnings.

14. Income Taxes
The total income tax expense (benefit) for each respective year is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
{in thousands}

Income taxes attributable to:

Eamings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 7,200 $ 2,001 § 9,362
Tax effect of cumulative effect of accounting change — 97} —
Shareholders’ equity, tax change in market value of derivative instruments 3 53 189
Shareholders’ equity, tax benefit derived from
non-statutory stock options exercised (818) (674) (1,224)
Total income taxes $ 6,385 $ 1,283 $ 8,327
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Income tax expense (benefit) related to eamings before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle for each
respective year is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)
Current $ 14,695 $ 5,654 $ 9826
Deferred (7495 (3.653) (464)
$ 7,200 § 2,001 $ 9362

Income tax expense attributable to eamnings before income taxes and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle differs from the
amounts compuled by applying the applicable U.S. federal income tax rate to pretax eamings as a result of the following:

2006 2005 2004
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
[ncrease (decrease) in taxes due to:
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 7.6 8.6 4.9
Tax credits, primarily FICA tip credits (18.0) (28.5) (11.0)
Federal and state income tax contingency accruals, net of federal tax benefit 3.1 — —
Other &3] (0.8) (0.3)
27.6% 14.3% 28.6%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at each of
the respective year ends are as foliows:

December 31,  December 25,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

[nventories, principally due to uniform capitalization $ 1,172 $ 856
Accrued expenses 412 42
Workers' compensation, general liability, and employee health insurance accruals 7,275 2911
Accrued compensation 8,240 4,228
Restricted stock 1,679 357
Asset impainment and exit cost 4,863 2,292
Deferred gift card revenue 2,152 1,079
Tax credits, primarily FICA tip credits 7434 4,836
State net operating loss carry forwards 4,389 2,993
Other 122 —
Total gross deferred tax assets 37,738 19,594
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance (4,288) (2961
Total net deferred tax assets 33,450 16,633
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation and amortization 7,697 7,865
Goodwill 15,831 6,278
Other _ 59
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 23,528 14,202
Net deferred tax asset § 9922 § 2431

The net deferred tax assets are classified as follows:

2006 2005
(in thousands)
Deferred income taxes, non-current asset {liability) $ 1,653 § (7.407)
Deferred income taxes, current asset 8,269 9,838

$ 9922 $ 2431

The Company has gross state net operating loss carry-forwards of $101 million to reduce future tax liabilities, which begin 1o expire at
various times starting in 2009 and federal general business tax credits of $7,434,000 which begin to expire at various times starting in 2025.
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The Company has established a valuation allowance of $4,288,000 and $2,961,000 as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2003,
respectively, for state net operating loss carry-forwards not expected to be utilized prior to their expiration, The change in the deferred tax
valuation allowance was approximately $1,327,000, $1,186,000 and $1,258,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. In assessing the realization
of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
these temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future
taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits
of these deductible differences, net of the existing valuation allowance.

15. Shareholders’ Equity

In October 2003, the Company announced an authorization to repurchase up to $25.0 million of the Company’s common stock. Any
repurchases will be made from time to time in open market transactions or privately negotiated transactions at the Company's discretion. To date,
the Company has not repurchased any shares of common stock under this authorization. Any repurchases will be funded with borrowings under
the Company’s bank credit facility or through cash flow generated through operations.

The Company's charter authorizes 100,000 shares of preferred stock which the Board of Directors may, without shareholder approval, issue
with voting or conversion rights upon the occurrence of certain events. At December 31, 2006, no preferred shares had been issued.

On January 27, 2003, the Company issued 941,176 shares of common stock to the former owners of Ninety Nine as part of the purchase
price of the acquisition of Ninety Nine Restaurants. The Company issued an additional 390,586 shares in January 2004, 407,843 shares in
January 2005, 407,843 shares in January 2006, 94,118 in Janvary 2007 and the Company is required to issue an additional 94,118 shares in
January 2008. The issuance of the shares to the former owners of Ninety Nine was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities
Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,

16. Earnings Per Share and Weighted Average Shares

The fellowing is a reconciliation of the weighted average shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Net eamings $18,890 $11,878 $23,319
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 23,323 22,837 22,290
Incremental shares 265 259 357
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 23,588 23,096 22,647
Basic eamings per common share 30.81 $0.52 $1.05
Diluted earnings per common share $0.80 50.51 $1.03

For fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, the number of anti-dilutive common stock equivalents excluded from the diluted weighted average
shares calculation was approximately 1,033,000, 2,200,000, and §,741,000, respectively,

17. Team Member Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k} salary reduction and profit-sharing plan calied the CHUX Savings Plan (the Plan). Under the Plan, team
members can make contributions up to 15 percent of their annual compensation. The Company contributes annually to the Plan an amount equal
to 50 percent of team member contributions, subject to certain limitations. Additional contributions are made at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. Company contributions vest at the rate of 20 percent each year beginning after the team member's initial year of employment.
Company contributions were approximately $1,107,000 in 2006, $1,126,000 in 2005 and $942,000 in 2004,

The Company maintains a supplemental executive retirement plan for a select group of management team members to provide supplemental
retirement income benefits through deferrals of salary and bonus. Participants in this plan can contribute, on a pre-tax basis, up to 50 percent of
their base pay and 100 percent of their bonuses. The Company contributes annually to this plan an amount equal to a matching formula of each
participant’s deferrals. Company contributions were approximately $383,000 in 2006, $340,000 in 2005 and $280,000 in 2004, The amount of
the supplemental executive retirement plan liability payable to the participants at December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 was approximately
$10,369,000 and $10,454,000, respectively, and is recorded in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
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18. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Cash paid for interest $ 14311 § 13,660 $ 12,782
Additions to capitatized lease obligations — 4,510 10,810
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 10,083 5,161 9,693
Other non-cash transactions:
Transfer of assets between assets held-for-sale and property and equipment, net 3 (198 ) $ 5,708 $ —_

19. Litigation and Contingencies

In September 2003, the Company became aware that guests and employees at one of its O'Charley’s restaurants located in Knoxville,
Tennessee were exposed to the Hepatitis A virus, which resuited in a number of its employees and guests becoming infected. As of the date of
this filing, all of these cases have been settled and dismissed. The Company has insurance that provides coverage, subject to limitations, for lost
income at its restaurants whose results of operations were adversely affected by the Hepatitis A incident. The Company submitted a claim
pursuant fo its insurance policy for this type of loss, but its carrier disagreed with the Company’s claim. On July 11, 2005, certain underwriters at
Lloyd’s, the Cempany's insurance carrier, filed suit against the Company in the Circuit Court for Knox County, Tennessee seeking declaration by
the court regarding certain limits in this policy which would effectively limit its recovery under the policy to $100,000. During the first quarter of
fiscal 2007, the Company entered into a release and settlement agreement with Lloyd’s, which will be included in our results of operations for the
first fiscal quarter of 2007, As the settlement will result in a gain, it was not recognized until the settlement was certain, which was during the
first fiscal quarter of 2007,

The Company has been involved in an arbitration in the matter of Ballantyne Village, LLC v. O'Charley’s Inc. filed in April 2005.
Ballantyne Village, LLC has alleged that the Company breached a lease for retail space for a proposed Stoney River Legendary Steaks restaurant
in Charlotte, North Carolina. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company entered into a settlement and release agreement with the
plaimiff. The amount of the Company’s settlement was included in its resulis of operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006,

On May 19, 2006, Meritage Hospitality Group, Inc. and certain of its affiliated entities {“Meritage™), which franchise five O’Charley's
restaurants in Michigan, filed suit against the Company in the United States District Court for the Western District of Michigan. The suit alleged
that the Company engaped in fraud and violations of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law and Michigan Consumer Protection Act in
connection with Meritage becoming a franchisee of its O’Charley's restaurant concept. The suit sought rescission of the development agreement
and five franchise agrecments with the Company and related damages. During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company entered into a
general release with Meritage pursuant to which Meritage agreed to dismiss the litigation filed against the Company and the Company agreed to
make certain future financial and other accommeodations to Meritage under the terms of their development and franchise agreements.

In addition, the Company is a defendant and plaintiff {rom time to time in varous other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of its
business, including claims relating to injury or wrongful death under “dram shop™ laws that allow a person to sue the Company based on any
injury caused by an intoxicated persen who was wrongfully served alcoholic beverages at one of its restaurants; claims relating to workplace and
employment matters, discrimination and similar matters; claims resulting from “slip and fall” accidents; claims relating to lease obligations;
claims with respect to insurance recoveries; and claims from guests or employees alleging illness, injury or other food quality, health or
operational concems.

The Company does not believe that any of the legal proceedings pending against it as of the date of this report will have a material adverse
effect on its liquidity or financial condition. The Company may incur liabilities or accrue expenses relating to future legal proceedings in a
particular fiscal quarter which may adversely affect its results of operations.

20. Franchising Arrangements
Meritage

On December 30, 2003, the Company entered into a multi-unit franchise agreement with a franchisee, Meritage Hospitality Group, Inc.to
develop and operate O’ Charley’s restaurants in Michigan. The agreement specifies the franchisce will develop 15 new O’Charley’s restaurants.

The franchising arrangement requires the Company to provide access to certain contractual arrangements that the Company has with its
vendors in order for the franchisee to benefit from those contracts, The development fees for the franchisee are $50,000 each for the first two
restaurants and $25,000 each for the remaining 13 restaurants. The franchisee is also required to pay a franchise fee and marketing fund fee that
are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $212,500 as development fees at the closing
of the agreement, which represents half of the fees associated with the 15 restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required to pay the other half
of the development fee to the Company as each new restaurant opens, The Company recognized in income $25,000, $100,000 and $50,000 in
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development fees in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the opening of franchised restaurants, The remaining development fees
paid have been deferred and will be recognized in income a5 each restaurant opens. '

Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC

On March 28, 2005, the Company entered into a Development Agreement with Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC and Michael R. Johnson.
Under the terms of the agreement, Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC has the right to develop and operate up 1o ten new O°Charley’s restaurants
over the next six years in certain markets in the states of lowa, Nebraska, Topeka, Kansas and Easiern South Dakota.

The franchising arrangement requires the Company to provide access to certain contractual arrangements that the Company has with its
vendors in order for the franchisee to benefit from these contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50.000 each for the first two
restaurants and $25,000 each for the remaining cight restaurants. The franchisee is also required to pay @ franchise fee and marketing fund fee
that are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $100,000 as development fees at the
closing of the agreement, which represents a portion of the fees associated with the ten restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required 1o pay
the remaining amount of the development fee to the Company as each new restaurant opens. The developmeni fees paid have been deferred and
will be recognized in income a5 each restaurant opens.

©*Candall Group, Inc.

On May 18, 2005, the Company entered into a Development Agreement with O’Candall Group, Inc. and Sam Covelli. Under the terms of
the agreement, O’Candall Group, Inc. and/or certain of its affiliates have the right to develop and operate up to 50 new O’Charley's restaurants
over the next eight years, with a minimum of eight O"Charley’s restaurants expected to open by the end of 2007. The initial development plans
are expected to focus on the Tampa, Floride, Orlando, Florida, Western Pennsylvania, Northwest West Virginia and Northern Ohio markets.

The franchising arrangement requires the Company to provide access to certain contractual arrangements that the Company has with its
vendors in order for the franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50,000 each for the first two
restaurants and $25,000 cach for the remaining restaurants in each of its four granted areas. The franchisee is zlso required 10 pay a franchise fee
and marketing fund fee that are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $500,000 as
development fees at the closing of the agreement, which represents a portion of the fees associated with the 50 restauramis agreed upon. The
franchisee is required to pay the remaining amount of the development fees to the Company as each new restaurant opens. The Company
recegnized in income $50,000 in development fees in fiscal 2006 reiated 1o the opening of franchised restaurant. The remaining development
fees paid have been deferred and will be recognized in income as each restaurant opens.

21. Quarterly Financial and Restzurant Operating Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of certain quarterly results of operations data for each of the last two fiscal vears. Fiscal year 2006 consisted of

53 weeks and fiscal year 2005 consisted of 52 weeks. As a result, some of the variations reflected in the following table are attributable to the
different lengths of the fiscal quarters.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(doliars in thousands, except per share data)

2006
Revenues $ 306450 § 223642 5§ 218981 % 240450
[ncome from operations $ 14320 8§ 9,722 % 6,103 § 10,340
Eamings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle s 7199 § 4393 § 2,146 § 5,152
Net earnings $ 7,199 § 4393 § 2,146 § 5,152
Basic earnings per common share 3 031 % 019 3 009 % 0.22
Diluted earnings per common share 3 031 § 019 § 009 § 0.22
Company-owuned restaurants in operation, end of quarter 343 347 348 351
2005
Revenues § 290491 § 214249 § 211,759 § 213,689
Incame (loss) from operations g 18930 % 10310 § B3 3 4,523
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of charnge in accounting principle $ 10,114 8§ 4966 $ {4,689) 3 1,638
Net eamings (loss} (1) 3 10,114 4966 S (4,689) $ 1,487
Basic earnings (loss) per common share (1) $ 045 § 022 § 0200 § 0.06
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share (1) 3 044 8 021 ¢ (0.20y % 0,06
Company-owned restaurants in operation, end of quarter 331 334 341 341

{1) Represents net earnings and basic and ditwted earnings per share afier the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 25, 2005

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary  Consolidating
Company Guarantors _ Adjustments  Consclidated

P

ASSETS
Current Assets (Liabilities):
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,611 % 3072 8§ 16 $ 5,699
Accounts receivable - 5,268 7.542 ‘ 42 12,852
Intercompany receivable (payable) ' (132,173) 141,466 (9,293) —
Inventories ! 3.923 41,169 537 45,620
Deferred income taxes 9454 384 — 9,838
Assers held for sale 3.541 2,167 — 5,708
Other current assets 2,502 3,233 (1,336) 4,399
Total current assets (liabilities) (104,874) 199,033 (10,034) 84,125
Property and Equipment, net 323,827 134,622 5,599 464,048
Goodwill — 93,074 - 93,074
Intangible Asset — 25921 — 2592t
Other Assets 217,397 28,558 (225513) 20,442
Total Assets (Liabilities) : ) § 436350 § 481,208 § {229948) % 687,610
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities: .
Trade accounts payable b 12412 § 16,515 § (7,053) 8 21,874
Accrued payrotl and related expenses ! 12,880 5,858 394 19,132
Accrued expenses 13,543 10,671 {1,506) 22,308
Deferred revenue 9,466 11,881 46 21,393
Federal, state and local taxes (6,020) 16,669 64 10,713
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 10,559 372 .M 10,975
Total current liabilities ) 52,840 61,966 » T (8411) 106,395
Deferred Income Taxes 8,191 (784) - 7,407
Other Liabilities 30,248 18,145 1,119 49,512
Long-Term Debt, less current portion 164,827 — (16,528) 148,299
Capitalized Lease Obligations, less current portion 25127 1,283 (1) 26,409
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit): '
Common stock 185,374 203,101 - (203,101) 185,374
Unearned compensation (4,027) — — (4,027)
Accurmulated other comprehensive loss net of tax ) — — (5)
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (26,225) 197,497 {3,026) 168,246
Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) ¢ 155,117 400,598 {206,127) 349,588 .
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit) - $ 436350 § 481208 § . (229948)§ 687,610
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development fees in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, related to the opening of franchised restaurants. The remaining development fees
paid have been deferred and will be recognized in income as each restaurant opens.

Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC

On March 28, 2003, the Company entered into a Development Apreement with Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC and Michaet R. Johnsen.
Under the terms of the agreement, Four Star Restaurant Group, LLC has the right to develop and operate up to ten new O’Charley’s restauranis
over the next six years in certain markets in the states of lowa, Nebraska, Topeka, Kansas and Eastern South Dakota.

The franchising arrangement requires the Company to provide access to certain contractual arrangements that the Company has with its
vendors in order for the franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50,000 each for the first two
restaurants and $25,000 each for the remaining eight restaurants. The franchisee is also required to pay a franchise fee and marketing fund fee
that are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required to pay $100,000 as development fees at the
closing of the agreement, which represents a portion of the fees associated with the ten restaurants agreed upon. The franchisee is required to pay
the remaining amount of the development fee to the Company as each new restaurant opens. The development fees paid have been deferred and
will be recognized in income as each restaurant opens.

O’Candall Group, Inc.

On May 18, 2005, the Company entered into a Development Agreement with O°Candall Group, Inc. and Sam Covelli, Under the terms of
the agreement, O’Candall Group, Inc. and/or certain of its affiliates have the right to develop and operate up to 50 new O’Charley’s restaurants
over the next eight years, with a minimum of eight O’Charley's restaurants expected to open by the end of 2007. The initial development plans
are expected to focus on the Tampa, Florida, Orlando, Florida, Western Pennsylvania, Northwest West Virginia and Northern Ohio markets.

The franchising arrangement requires the Company 10 provide access to certain contraciual arrangements that the Company has with its
vendors in order for the franchisee to benefit from those contracts. The development fees for the franchisee are $50,000 each for the first two
restaurants and 325,000 each for the remaining restaurants in each of its four granted areas. The franchisee is also required to pay a franchise fee
and marketing fund fee that are based on a percentage of sales. Pursuant to the arrangement, the franchisee was required 1o pay $500,000 as
development fees at the closing of the agreement, which represents a portion of the fees associated with the 50 restaurants agreed upon. The
franchisee is vequired to pay the remaining amount of the development fees to the Company as each new restaurant opens. The Company
recognized in income $50,000 in development fees in fiscal 2006 related to the opening of franchised restaurant. The remaining development
fees paid have been deferred and will be recognized in income as each restaurant opens.

21. Quarterly Financial and Restaurant Operating Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of certain quarterly results of operations data for each of the last two fiscal years. Fiscal year 2006 consisted of

53 weeks and fiscal year 2005 consisted of 52 weeks. As a result, some of the variations reftected in the following table are attributable to the
different lengths of the fiscal quarters.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(dellars in thousands, except per share data)

2006
Revenues § 306451 § 223642 5 218981 § 240450
Income from operations 8 14320 § 9,722 § 6,103 § 10,340
Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 7,199 3% 4393 % 2,146 % 5,152
Net earnings $ 7199 § 4,393 § 2,146 § 5,152
Basic earnings per common share $ 031 § 0.19 § 009 8§ 0.22
Diluted earnings per common share 3 031 3 0.1% § 009 & 0.22
Company-owned restaurants in operation, end of quarter 343 347 348 351
2005
Revenues $ 290,491 3 214,249 § 211,759 % 213,689
Income (loss) from operations 8 18930 % 10,310 § (5317) $ 4,523
Earnings (loss} before cumnulative effect of change in accounting principle b3 10,114 % 4,966 $ (4,689) $ 1,638
Net earnings (loss) (1) 5 10,114 § 4966 § (4,689) $ 1,487
Basic earnings (loss) per common share (1) 3 045 % 022 % (0.20) $ 0.06
Diluted eamings (loss} per common share (1) $ 044 % 021 3% (0.20) $ 0.06
Company-owned restaurants in operation, end of quarter 33 334 341 341

{1) Represents net earnings and basic and diluted earnings per share after the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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22. Commitments

The Company has purchase commitments with various vendors through 2015. Outstanding commitments as of December 31, 2006 were
approximately $67.4 million and consist primarily of purchase commitments for beef, pork, poultry and other food products related to normal
business operations.

23. Supplementary Condensed Consolidating Financial Information of Subsidiary Guarantors

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company issued $125 million aggregate principal amount of 9 percent Senior Subordinated Notes due
2013, The obligations of the Company under the Senior Subordinated Notes are guaranteed by all of the Company’s subsidiaries, with the
exception of certain minor subsidiaries. The guarantees are made on a joint and several basis. The claims of creditors of the non-guarantor
subsidiaries have pricrity over the rights of the Company te receive dividends or distributions from such subsidiaries. Presented below is
supplementary condensed consolidating financial information for the Company and the subsidiary guarantors as of December 31, 2006 and
December 25, 2005 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006.
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Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of Decémber 31, 2006
Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary  Consolidating
Company Guarantors Adjustments  Consolidated
ASSETS
Current Assets {Liabilities):
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,069 % 16,524 § 330 § 19,923
Accounts receivable 6,715 8,434 (246) 14,903
[ntercompany receivable (payable) (217,762) 188,466 29,296 —
[nventories 3,673 27,135 87 30,895
Deferred income taxes 7,885 384 —_ 8,269
Assets held for sale 1,912 50 — 1,962
Other current assets 2,216 2,531 50 4,797
Total current assets (tiabilities) (192,292) 243,524 29,517 80,749
Property and Equipment, net 303,817 149,849 10,441 464,107
Goodwill — 93,381 — 93,381
Intangible Asset — 25921 — 25,921
Other Assets 219,395 30,153 (227,194} 22,354
Total Assets (Liabilities) $ 330,920 § 542828 § {187,236) 3 686,512
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable $ 16,058 § 6951 § (5.461) § 17,548
Accrued payroll and related expenses 17,019 4,244 4 21,267
Accrued expenses 17,606 7,295 (386) 24,515
Deferred revenue —_— 20,242 @7 19,765
Federal, state and local taxes {8,578) 25911 103 17,436
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 9,296 468 48 9,812
Total current liabilities : 51,401 65,111 (6.169) 110,343
Deferred Income Taxes — - — —
Other Liabilities 27,441 22,445 912 50,798
Long-Term Debt, less current portion 144,115 314 (17,889) 126,540
Capitalized Lease Obligations, less current portion 16,502 1,503 — 18,005
Sharcholders' Equity (Deficit):
Commen stock 150,923 343,430 (300,663) 193,690
Uneamed compensation — — — v
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax - — — —
Retained eamnings (accumulated deficit) (59.462) 110,025 136,573 187,136
Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) 91,461 453,455 {164,090) 380,826
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Equity (Deficit) $ 330920 § 542,828 § (187,236) 3 686,512
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Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 25, 2005

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary  Censolidating
Company  Guarantors _ Adjustments  Consolidated

ASSETS
Current Assets (Liabilities):
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,611 § 3072 § 16 § 5,699
Accounts receivable 5,268 7,542 42 12,852
Intercompany receivable (payable) (132,173) i41,466 (9,293) —
Inventories 3,923 41,169 537 45,629
Deferred income taxes 9,454 384 — 9,838
Assets held for sale 3,541 2,167 — 5,708
Other current assets 2,502 3,233 (1,336) 4,399
Total current assets (liabilities} (104.874) 199,033 {10,034) 84,125
Property and Equipment, net 323,827 134,622 5,599 464,048
Goodwill -— 93,074 —_ 93.074
[ntangible Asset — 25921 — 25,921
Other Assets 217,397 28,558 (225,513) 20,442
Totat Assets (Liabilities) $ 436350 § 481208 § (229948) § 687,610
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
Trade accounts payable g 12412 § 16,515 § (1,053) § 21874
Accrued payroll and related expenses 12,880 5,858 394 19,132
Accrued expenses 13,543 10,671 (1,906) 22,308
Deferred revenue 9,466 11,881 46 21,393
Federal, state and local taxes (6,020) 16,669 64 10,713
Current portion of long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations 10,559 372 44 10,975
Total current liabilities 52,840 61,966 (8,411) 106,395
Deferred Income Taxes 8,191 (784) — 7,407
Other Liabilities 30,248 18,145 1,119 49,512
Long-Term Debt, less current portion 164,827 _ (16,528) 148,299
Capitalized Lease Obligations, less current portion 25,127 1,283 n 26,409
Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit):
Common stock 185,374 203,101 (203.101) 185,374
Unearned compensation (4,027} -_ — (4.027)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax (5) —_ — (5)
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (26,225) 197,497 {3,026) 168,246
Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) 155,117 400,598 (206,127) 349,588
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Equity {Deficit) $ 436,350 5 481,208 § (229.948) % 687,610
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary Consolidating
Company Guarantors Adjustments Consolidated
{in thousands)

Revenues:
Restaurant sales $ 556,472 % 395983 $ 26296 $ 978,751
Commissary sales — 300,205 (289,860) 10,345
Franchise revenues 710 — (282) 428
557,182 696,188 (263,846) 989,524
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of restaurant sales:
Cost of food and beverage 177,023 118,639 (3,903) 291,759
Payroll and benefits 195,941 141,452 {8,584) 328,809
Restaurant operating costs 98,595 66,851 20,492 185,938
Cost of commissary sales — 284,493 (275,428) 9,065
Advertising and marketing expenses — 27,722 195 27917
General and administrative expenses 6,567 45,425 219 52,211
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment 27,339 18,886 389 46,614
Asset impairment and disposals 2,021 77 — 2,098
Pre-opening costs 1,751 2,206 671 4,628
509,237 705,751 (265,949) 949,039
Income (Loss) from Operations 47,945 (9,563) 2,103 40,485
Other Expense (Income):
Interest expense, net 17,111 (3,140} 430 14,401
Other, net : 69,597 (69,603) — (&)
86,708 (72,743) 430 14,395
{Loss) Eamings Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle (38,763) 63,180 1,673 26,090
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense (6,801) 13,538 463 7,200
(Loss) Earnings Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle (31,962) 49,642 1,210 18,890
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax — — —
Net (Loss) Earnings $ (31962) % 49642 $ 1,210 $ 18,890
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 25, 2005

Revenues:
Restaurant sales
Commissary sales
Franchise revenues

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of restaurant sales:

Cost of food and beverage

Payroll and benefits

Restaurant operating costs
Cost of commissary sales
Advertising and marketing expenses
Generel and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment
Asset impairment and disposals
Pre-opening costs

Income (Loss) from Operations

Other Expense (Income):
Interest expense, net
Other, net

(Loss) Eamings Before Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

{Loss) Earnings Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, net of tax

Net {Loss) Eanings

62

Minor
Subsidiaries
and

Parent Subsidiary Consolidating

Company  Guarantors Adjustments Consclidated
(in thousands)

$ 547326 § 353,088 $ 20915 $ 921,329
— 253,994 (245,496} 8,498
482 — (121) 361
547,808 607,082 {224,702) 930,188
176,635 107,828 (7.072) 271,391
196,646 117,374 4,493 318,513
98,067 69,437 4913 172,417
— 237,321 (226,605} 7,716
— 25,470 — 25470
5,859 36,744 220 42,823
31,038 12,573 195 43,806
6,235 1,100 — 7,335
3,531 2,432 308 6,271
518,011 610,279 {226,548) 901,742
29,797 (3,197) 1,846 28,446
13,392 753 229 14,374
54,530 (54,488) — 42
67,922 (53,735) 229 14,416
(38,125) 50,538 1,617 14,030
(5.437) 7,207 231 2,001
(32,688} 43,331 1,386 12,029
(151} — — (151)
$ (32,839) % 43,331 $ 1,386 § 11,878




Revenues:

Restaurant sales
Commissary sales
Franchise revenues

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of restaurant sales:
Cost of food and beverage
Payroll and benefits
Restaurant operating costs

Cost of commissary sales

Advertising and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 26, 2004

Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment

Asset impairment and disposals

Pre-opening costs

Income (Loss) from Operations

Other Expense (Income):
[nterest expense, net
Other, net

{Loss) Earmings Before Income Taxes

Income Tax (Benefit) Expense

Net (Loss) Earnings

Minor
Subsidiaries
and

Parent Subsidiary Consolidating

Company Guarantors Adjustments Consolidated
(in thousands)

$ 526485 § 320,114 $ 17,660 $ 864,259
— 189,429 (182,394) 7,035
109 — {17) 92
526,594 509,543 {164,751) 871,386
164,867 99,169 (3,190) 260,846
184,312 163,519 3,267 291,098
91,268 62,193 4,271 157,732
- 178,570 {171,924) 6,646
—_ 25,656 — 25,656
4,373 33,997 31 38,401
29,358 10,419 21 39,798
16 — 16
4,165 1,504 239 5,908
473,343 515,043 {167,285) 826,101
48,251 (5,500) 2,534 45,285
11,692 894 18 12,604
52,474 (52.474) — —
64,166 (51,580) 18 12,604
(15,915} 46,080 2,516 32,681
{4,051) 12,718 695 9,362
$ (1,84 § 33362 $ 1,821 $ 23319
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Consclidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net (loss) earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes
Expenses related to equity based compensation
Amortization of deferred gain on sale leaseback
Loss on the sale and involuntary conversion of assets
Asset impairment and disposals
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Trade accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued payroll and other accrued expenses, and federal, state and
local taxes
Other long-term assets and liabilities
Tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options

Net cash (used in} provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of assets
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations
Excess tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options
Debt Issuance Costs :

Exercise of employee incentive stock options and issuances under stock
purchase plan

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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Parent

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Subsidiary  Consolidating

Company Guarantors Adjustments Consolidated
(in thousands)
$(31,962) § 49,642 $ 1,210 318,890
27.339 18,886 389 46,614
1.342 — — 1,342
{7.495) — — (7,495)
2,655 — — 2,655
{1,077 — — (1,077)
139 — — 139
2,534 —— — 2,534
(1,447 (832) 288 (2,051)
250 14,034 450 14,734
286 702 (1,386} {398)
3,646 (9,564) 1,592 (4,326)
(9,466) 8,361 (523) (1,628)
7,355 2,370 1,169 11,094
(3,943) 4,584 1,473 2,114
(9,644) 88,123 4,662 83,141
(14,336) (34,113) (5,167) (53.616)
7,917 — — 71917
39,562 (40,558) g19 (177
33,143 (74,671) (4,348) (45,876)
(31,718) — — (31,718)
318 — — 818
(1,011 — — (1,011)
8.870 — — 8.870
(23,041) — e {23,041)
458 13,452 314 14,224
2,611 3,072 16 5,699
$3,069 3 16,524 3 330 $19,923




Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 25, 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net {loss} earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) eamnings to net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Deferred income taxes
Expenses related to equity based compensation
Amottization of deferred gain on sale leaseback
Loss on the sale and involuntary conversion of assets
Asset impairment and disposals
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Trade accounts payable
Deferred revenue

Accrued payrol] and other accrued expenses, and federal, state and

local taxes
Other long-term assets and liabilities
Tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of assets
Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Preceeds from long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations

Exercise of employee incentive stock options and issuances under stock

purchase plan
Net cash used in financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary  Consolidating
Company Guarantors Adjustments Consolidated
(in thousands)
$(32,839) § 43,33 $ 1,386 $11,878
31,038 12,573 195 43 806
1,426 - — 1,426
(3,653) — _ (3,653)
485 - — 485
(1,056) — - (1,056)
218 15 — 233
6,235 1,100 — 7,335
(1,833) (1413) (28) (3.274)
(604) (11,377) (25} (12,006)
(2,790) 1,132 2,035 377
5,816 5,176 3,377 7,615
1,022 1,127 34 2,183
3,836 1,232 (1,290) 3,778
3,790 1,963 {2,822) 2,931
674 — — 674
11,765 54,859 (3,892) 62,732
(14,805) (47.,088) (6,885) (68,778)
3,364 — — 3,364
4,112 {12,371) 10,246 1,987
(7,329) (59,459) 3,361 (63,427)
5,885 — -— 5,885
(15,855) — - (15,855)
5,592 — — 5,592
(4.378) — — (4,378)
58 (4,600) (531) (5,073)
2,553 7,672 547 10,772
$2,611 3 3,072 3 16 $5,699

65




Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 26, 2004

Minor
Subsidiaries
and
Parent Subsidiary  Consolidating
Company Guarantors _Adjustments  Consolidated
(in thousands)
Cash Flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) camings $ (11864) § 33,362 $ 182 § 23319
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) earnings to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, property and equipment 29,358 10,419 21 39,798
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,449 — — 1,449
Deferred income taxes (464) — — (464)
Compensation expense related to restricted stock plans 2,171 —_ -— 2171
Amortization of deferred gain on sale and leaseback (1.055) e — (1,055)
Loss on the sale and involuntary conversion of assets 207 8 — 215
Asset impairment and disposals — 16 — 16
Donation of stock 137 — — 137
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 550 (1.271) (13) (734)
Inventories 317) (11.272) (23) (il.612)
Other current assets 1,264 (2.449) 107 (1,078)
Trade accounts payable (245) (967) 84 (1,128)
Deferred revenue 1165 2,589 14 3.768
Accrued payrolt and other accrued expenses, and federal, state and
local taxes 4,084 6,588 (246) 10,426
Other long-term assets and liabilities 2,627 (152) 1,571 4,046
Tax benefit derived from exercise of stock options 1,224 — — 1,224
Net cash provided by operating activities 30,291 36,871 3,336 70,498
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment (34,507 (23,999) {1,985) (60,491)
Procecds from the sale of assets 1,928 15 — 1,943
Other, net 15,893 {11,843) (804 3,246
Net cash used in investing activitics (16.686) (35.827) (2,789 (55,302)
Cash Flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 4,454 — — 4454
Payments on long-term debt and capitalized lease obligations (33,799) — — (33,799
Proceeds from sale and lease-back transactions 12,000 — — 12,090
Minority interest in joint ventures 750 — — 750
Debt issuance costs {900) — — {900}
Exercise of employce incentive stock options and issuances under stock
purchase plan 3.407 — — 3.407
Net cash used in financing activities (13,998} — — {13,998)
{Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (393) 1,044 547 1,198
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,946 6,628 — 9,574
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 2,553 § 7,672 ) 547 $ 10,772
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Schedule [1 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Additions
Balance at  charged to  Charged to Balance
beginning  costs and other at end
Description of period expenses accounts Deductions of period

(Dollars in thousands)
Valuation allowance for state net operating loss
carry-forwards

Year ended December 31, 2006 $2,961 § 1,340 $ — $13 $ 4,288
Year ended Decernber 25, 2005 1,715 1,234 — 48 2,961

Year ended December 26, 2004 517 1,258 — — 1,775

See accempanying report of the independent registered public accounting firm.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Cur Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. We identified a
material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting and, as a result of this material weakness, we concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2006.

(b) Management’s Annual Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with U.S8. generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the polictes or procedures may deteriorate,

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, In making this
assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

A materinl weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control over financial
reporting. As of December 31, 2006, the Company identified the following material weakness:

The Company had insufficient persennel with appropriate qualifications and training in accounting for income taxes to allow for the timely
preparation of an accurate income tax provision. [n addition, management’s oversight and review related to certain income {ax accounts and
analyses was not effective. These deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting resulted in misstatements in the Company’s 2006
income tax accounts, and resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the Company’s income tax accounts would not
be detected or prevented. The misstatements wete corrected prior to issuance of the Company's 2006 consolidated financial statements, included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

As a result of the aferementioned material weakness, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006 was not effective.
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The Company's independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, has issued a report on management’s assessment of the
Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting.

(c) Management’s Corrective Actions
During the first fiscal quarter of 2007, management tock the following steps to address the material weakness identified in Item SA(b):

«  Evaluated the existing tax personnel and decided to make the necessary changes in staffing to improve its interal controls in this
area.

s  Evaluated its existing relationships with tax service firms and made changes where necessary to allow for a greater exchange of
information in the area of income tax accounting.

. Purchased software to facilitate a better, more thorough work paper process to allow for more accurate and timely information
and for more time for review,

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during our fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have matenially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial repenting.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
O'Charley’s Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report On Internal Control Qver
Financial Reporting (liem 9A(b)), that O’Charley’s [nc. (the Company) did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in fnrernal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the cffectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other
precedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s intenal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fajrly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, ar
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal contro! over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been
identified and included in management's assessment;

The Company had insufficient personnel with appropriate qualifications and training in accounting for income taxes to allow for the
timely preparation of an accurate income tax provision. In addition, management’s oversight and review related to certain income tax
accounts and analyses was not effective, These deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting resulted in misstatements in
the Company’s 2006 income tax accounts, and resulted in more than a remote likelihoed that a material misstatement of the
Company's income tax accounts would not be detected or prevented.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetsight Board (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of O'Charley’s Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and December 23, 2005 and the related consolidated
statements of eamings, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2006. The aforementioned material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in
our audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 14, 2007, which expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in /aternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Alse, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material
weakness described above on the achigvement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO),

/s/ KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
March 14, 2007
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Iternt 9B. Other Information.

None.
PART I

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The Proxy Statement issued in connection with the shareholders meeting to be held on May 17, 2007, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6(b), contains under the captions “Corporate Governance,” “Election of Directors™ and “Section
16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reperting Compliance™ information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
Pursuant to Genera! Instruction G(3), certain information concerning executive officers of the Company is included in Part | of this Form 10-K,
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The Proxy Statement issued in connection with the shareholders meeting to be held on May 17, 2007, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6(b), contains under the captions “Director Compensation™ and “Executive Compensation™
information required by [tem 11 of Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The Proxy Statement issued in connection with the shareholders meeting to be held on May 17, 2007, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6(b)}, contains under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners,” “Election of
Directors” and “Equity Compensation Plans” information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
1tem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The Proxy Statement issued in connection with the shareholders meeting to be held on May 17, 2007, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6(b), contains under the caption “Certain Transactions™ information required by ftem 13 of Form 10-
K and is incorporated herein by reference.

[tem 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The Proxy Statement issued in connection with the shareholders meeting 10 be hetd on May 17, 2007, to be filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 14a-6(b), contains under the caption “Fees Billed to the Company by KPMG LLP During 2006 and
2005" information required by Item §4 of Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
{a} |.Financial Statements: See ltem 8
2. Financial Statement Schedules: See Item 8
3. Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans and Arrangements
¢ (Charley’s Inc. 1985 Stock Option Plan (included as Exhibit 10.6)
*  O'Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (included as Exhibit 10.7)
+ First Amendment to O'Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (included as Exhibit 10.8)
+ Second Amendment to O*Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (included as Exhibit 10.9)
* Third Amendment to O'Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (included as Exhibit 10.10)
* Fourth Amendment to O’Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (included as Exhibit 10.11)
*  (’Charley’s 1991 Stock Option Plan for Qutside Directors, as amended (included as Exhibit 10.12)
+ CHUX Ownership Plan, as amended (included as Exhibit 10.13)
+ O’Charley’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan {included as Exhibit 10.14)

* Amended Restated Severance Compensation Agreement, dated February 22, 2007, by and between O’Charley’s Inc. and Gregory
L. Bums (inchuded as Exhibit 10.15)

* Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (included as Exhibit 10.31)

« Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement {(included as Exhibit 10.32)

* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Employees (Time-Based Vesting) (included as Exhibit 10.33)

* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Employees (Performance-Based Vesting) (included as Exhibit 10.34)

* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Directors (included as Exhibit 10.35)

* Letter Agreement, dated November 11, 2004, between O’Charley’s Inc. and Lawrence E, Hyatt (included as Exhibit 10.46)

» Non-Compete/Severance Letter Agreement, dated November |1, 2004, between Lawrence E. Hyatt and O’ Charley’s Inc. (included
as Exhibit 10.46)

* Severance Compensation Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2004, between O'Charley’s Inc. and Lawrence E. Hyatt (included
as Exhibit 10.47)

¢ Summary of Director and Executive Officer Compensation (included as Exhibit 10.49)
*  O'Charley’s Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended) (included as Exhibit 10.50)
= Amendment to CHUX Ownership Plan (included as Exhibit 10.51)

* Severance Agreement and General Release, dated January 1, 2006, by and between Steven J. Hislop and O’Charley’s Inc.
(included as Exhibit 10.52)

* Severance Agreement and General Release, dated January 1, 2006, by and between Richard D. May and Q’Charley’s [ne.
(included as Exhibit 10.53)

* Letter Agreement, dated August 25, 2005, between O’Charley’s Inc. and Randall C. Harris (included as Exhibit 10.54)

* Non-Compete/Severance Letter Agreement, dated October 3, 2005, between Randalt C. Harris and O"Charley’s Inc. (included as
Exhibit 10.55)

+ Severance Compensation Agreement, dated as of October 3, 2005, between OCharley’s Inc. and Randall C. Harris (included as
Exhibit 10.56)

* Letter Agreement, dated January 22, 2006, between O’Charley’s Inc. and Jeffrey D. Wame (included as Exhibit 10.57)
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4. Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number

Severance Compensation Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2006, between O"Charley’s Inc. and Jeffrey D. Wamne (included as
Exhibit 10.58)

Severance and Consulting and General Release, dated July 6, 2006 between Herman A. Moore, Jr. and O’Charley’s Ine. (included
as Exhibit 10.59)

Severance Compensation Agreement, dated July 7, 2006 between O’Charley’s Inc. and John R. Grady (included as Exhibit 10.60)

Description

2.1

22

31

32

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

0.3

10.4

10.5

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among O"Charley’s Inc., 99 Boston, Inc., 99 Boston of Vermont, Inc., Doe Family i1
LLC, and each of William A. Doe, 1lI, Dana G. Doc and Charles F. Doe, Jr. {(Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K,
the schedules and exhibits to this agreement are omitted, but will be provided supplementally te the Commission upen
request.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on November 1, 2002)

Merger Agreement by and ameng O'Chatley’s Inc., Volunteer Acquisition Corporation, 99 West, Inc., and each of William
A. Doe, [11, Dana G. Doe and Charles F. Doe, Jr. (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits
to this agreement are omitted, but will be provided supplementally to the Commission upon request.) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Company's Curreni Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on November 1, 2002}

Restated Charter of the Company (restated electronically for SEC filing purposes only and incorpoerated by reference to
Exhibit 3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissien on December 27, 2000)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 22, 2001)

Form of Certificate for the Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 5-1, Registration No. 33-35170)

Rights Agreement, dated December 8, 2000, between the Company and First Union National Bank, as Rights Agent
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 of the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on
December 27, 2000}

Participation Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2000, among O'Charley’s Inc., as Lessee, First American Business Capital,
Inc., as Lessor, AmSouth Bank, as Agent, Bank of America, Firstar Bank, N.A,, First Union National Bank and SunTrust
Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000)

First Amendment to Participation Agreement, dated July 9, 2001, among O’Charley’s Inc., as lessee, First American
Business Capital, Inc., as lessor, AmSouth Bank, as agent, Bank of America, N.A., Firstar Bank, N.A., First Union National
Bank and SunTrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Ferm 10-Q for
the quarter ended July £5, 2001}

Lease, dated as of October 10, 2000, by and between First American Business Capital, Inc., as Lessor, and O’Charley’s Inc.,
as Lessee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000)

Lease, dated October 10, 2000, by and between First American Business Capital, Inc., as Lessor, and O'Charley’s Inc., as
Lessee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000)

First Amendment to Lease, dated July 9, 2001, by and between First American Business Capital, Inc., as lessor, and
O'Charley’s Inc., as lessee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended July 15, 2001)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.6

10.7

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

16.21

Exhibit
Number

O'Charley’s Inc. 1985 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 33-35170)

O’Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit’ 10.26 of the Company’s Registration
Statemnent on Form S-1, Registration No. 33-35170)

First Amendment to O'Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 1991)

Second Amendment to O'Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 26, 1993)

Third Amendment to O’Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 27, 1998}

Fourth Amendment to O’Charley’s Inc. 1990 Employee Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 1, 2000)

O'Charley’s Inc, 1991 Stock Option Plan for Qutside Directors, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended October 1, 2000)

CHUX Ownership Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report en Form
10-Q for the quarter ended July 9, 2000)

O’Charley’s 2000 Steck Incentive Plan (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form t0-Q for the quarter ended July 9, 2000)

Amended and Restated Severance Compensation Agreement, dated February 22, 2007, by and between O'Chariley’s Inc. and
Gregory L. Burns

Master Lease, dated December 4, 2001, by and between Double 9 Property I LLC and Doe Family Il L1LC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.33 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Assignment and Assumption of Lease and Acknowledgement of Master Lease Assignment and Subordination,
Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement, dated January 27, 2003, by and among Doe Family 1l LLC, 99 West, Inc.,
Double 9 Property | LLC, 99 Remainder 1 LLC and GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation {incomporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.34 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Master Lease, dated December 4, 2001, by and between Double 9 Property 11 LLC and Doe Family Il LLC {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.35 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

First Amendment 1o Master Lease, dated February 1, 2002, by and between Double 9 Property 1 LLC and Doe Family 1§
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 of the Company’s Annual Repont on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 29, 2002)

Assignment and Assumption of Lease and Acknowledgement of Master Lease Assignment and Subordination,
Nondisturbance and Attornment Agreement, dated January 27, 2003, by and among Doe Family il LLC, 99 West, Inc.,
Double 9 Property Il LLC, 99 Remainder 11 LLC and GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.37 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Master Lease, dated December 4, 2001, by and between Double 9 Property 111 LL.C and Doe Family Il LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhtbit 10.38 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Description

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Assignmemt and Assumption of Lease and Acknowledgement of Master Lease Assignment and Subordination,
Nondisturbance and Attomment Agreement, dated January 27, 2003, by and among Doe Family Ii LLC, 99 West, Inc.,
Double 9 Property 11i LLC, 99 Remainder 111 LLC and GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporation {incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.39 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form {0-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Master Lease, dated December 4, 2001, by and between Double 9 Property IV LLC and Doe Family 1 LL.C (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.40 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

First Amendment to Master Lease, dated February 1, 2002, by and between Double 9 Property IV LLC and Doe Family 11
LLC {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4] of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 29, 2002)

Assignment and Assumption of Lease and Acknowledgement of Master Lease Assignment and Subordination,
Nondistutbance and Attornment Agreement, dated January 27, 2003, by and among Doe Family {I LLC, 99 West, Inc,,
Double ¢ Property IV LLC, 99 Remainder [V LLC and GE Capital Franchise Finance Corporatien (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.42 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 29, 2002)

Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2003, by and among O’Charley's Inc., various direct and indirect subsidiaries
of O'Charley’s Inc., Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and Morgan Joseph & Co. Inc. {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 5, 2003)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. .

0’CHARLEY’S INC.
Date: March 14, 2007 By: /s/ GREGORY L. BURNS

Gregory L. Burns
- Chief Execurive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s GREGORY L. BURNS Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board March 14, 2007
Gregory L. Burns (Principal Executive Officer)
is/ LAWRENCE E. HYATT Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer March 14, 2007
Lawrence E. Hyatt (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ R. JEFFREY WILLIAMS Chief Accounting Officer and Corporate Controller March 14, 2007
R. Jeffrey Williams (Principa]lAccounling Officer)
/st RICHARD REISS, IR Director . . March 14, 2007
Richard Reiss, Jr.
/s/ G. NICHOLAS SPIVA Director : March 14, 2007
G. Nicholas Spiva ‘
/sf H, STEVE TIDWELL Ditector March 14, 2007
H. Steve Tidwell
/s/ SHIRLEY A. ZEITLIN Director March 14, 2007
Shirley A. Zeitlin
/s/ ROBERT J. WALKER Director March 14, 2007
Robert J. Walker
/5! DALE W. POLLEY Director March 14, 2007
Dale W. Polley
/s/ WILLIAM F. ANDREWS Director March 14, 2007
Willtam F. Andrews
fs/ JOHN E. STOKELY Director . March 14, 2007

John E. Stokely
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EXRBIBIT 23

The Board of Directors
O’Charley’s Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 33-39872, No. 33-51316, No. 33-51258, No. 33-83172, No.
33-69934, No. 333-63495, No. 333-59484, No. 333-126221 and No. 333-129783 on Form 5-8) of O'Charley's Inc. of our reports dated March 14,
2007, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of O'Charley's Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of eamings, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the fiscal years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006 and the related financial statement schedule, management's assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, which reports appear in the December 31, 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K of O'Charley's Inc,

Our report on management's assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of
intemnal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, expresses our opinion that O'Charley’s Inc. did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 because of the effect of a material weakness on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states that management has not
implemented effective controls over the accounting for income taxes. The Company had insufficient personnel with appropriate
qualifications and training in accounting for income taxes to allow for the timely preparation of an zccurate income tax provision. In
addition, management’s oversight and review related 1o certain income tax accounts and analyses was not effective.  These
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting resubted in misstatements in the Company’s 2006 income tax accounts, and
resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the Company's income tax accounts would not be detected or
prevented.

Our report on the consolidated financial statements refers to a change in accounting for share-based payments in 2006 and certain asset
retirement obligations in 2005.

fsIKRPMGLLP

Nashville, Tennessee
March 14, 2007
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
[, Gregory L. Bumns, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of O’Charley’s Inc;

2. Based on my knowtedge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements wete made, not misleading with respect 1o the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other centifying officer(s) and 1 are respensible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢} and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(1)) for the registrant and have:

(2) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating 1o the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's interal
contro! over financial reperting,.

Date: March 14, 2007
/s/ GREGORY L. BURNS
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Lawrence E. Hyatt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of O'Charley’s Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue siatement of a material fact or omit to state a material faci necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)} and intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have;

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controfs and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, {o ensure that materiai information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonzble assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that oceurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intetnal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit comminee of the registrant's board of directors (ar persons performing the equivalent functions):

(2) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability 1o record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whethet or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2007
/s/ LAWRENCE E. HYATT
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of O'Charley's Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2007 (the "Report”), I, Gregory L. Bums, Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presemts, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ GREGORY L. BURNS
Gregory L. Bums

Chief Executive Qfficer
March 14, 2007
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of O'Charley's Inc. (the "Company™} on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2006, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14, 2007 (the "Report"), I, Lawrence E. Hyatt, Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1} The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resuits of operations of
the Company.

/s/ LAWRENCE E. HYATT
Lawrence E. Hyatt
Chief Financial Officer
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O'Charley’s Inc. 2006 Awards

O'Charley’s Operator of the Year
David Cox

Operations Director

East Tennessea

O'Charley’s General Manager of the Year
Eric Woehl

General Managing Portaer

Daylan, Chio

O'Charley’s Inc. Chairman’s Award
Jean Lorton

Execulive Assistant fo the CEQ
O'Charley's Inc.

O'Charley’s Inc. Driver of the Year
Darwyn Norris
Quality Product Center

Len Carpenter Operator of the Year Award**
David Weisberg

Operations Director

Greater Boston Area

Ninety Nine Restaurant of the Year
Ray Desmarais

Genercl Managing Partner

Fall River, Massachusetts

Founder's Aword

Len Carpenter**

Vice President of Operclions
Ninety Nine Restaurant

Corporate Data

Restaurant Support Center

O'Charley's Inc.

3038 Sidco Drive

Nashville, Tennessee 37204
{615 256-8500

Transfer Agent

American Siock Transfer & Trust Company
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038

(866] 668-6650

Independent Auditors

KPMG LLP
Nashville, Tennessee

Form 10-K

The Form 10-K, including the financial
statemenss for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006, as well as other
information about O'Chartey's Inc., may
be obtgined without charge by wriling to
lawrence E. Fyatl, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer, ai the Company's
home office.

Annual Meeting

2:00 o.m. CDT

May 17, 2007

O'Cherley’s Home Office
3038 Sidco Drive
Nashville, Tennessee 37204

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return®

Among O'Chorley’s Inc., the NASDAQ Composile Index
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e (¥ Cherley's Inc.

12/28/C0

—— NASDAQ Composite
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G 5&P Restaurants

*$100 invested on 12/22/C1 in slock or on 12/31/01 in indexincluding reinvestment of dradends.

Indexes colevlated on montvend basis,

Copynght © 2067, Standard & Poor's, o division of The McGrawHill Companies, Inc All rights reserved

wwaw researchdategroup. com/S&P htm

**len Carpenter, who for 25 yeors provided unwovering loyally and leadership that helped MNinety Nine
grow from a local concept with 10 restourants I o powerhouse in the Northeost with 114 locations, retired
from his position as vice president of operations in April 2007, His tenure, which was distinguished by his
wisdom, grace ond strength, has made a lasling impact on the Minety Nine and O'Charley’s Inc.

Market and Dividend Information

Cur common stock irades on the
NASDAQ National Market under the
symbol "CHUX." As of March 9, 2007,
there were approximately 3,134
shareholders of record of our common
stock. The following table shows quarterly
high and low bid prices for cur common
stock for the periods indicoted, as reported
by the NASDAQ Naticnal Market.

High Low

Fiscal 2006

First Quarter $1885 $1507
Second Quorter 17.58 15.49
Third Quarter 19.57 14,97
Fourth Quarter 22.31 18,19
Fiscal 2005

First Quarter $22.89 $17.62
Second Quarter 22.56 16,32
Third Quarter 19.70 13.97
Fourth Quarter 15.77 12.69

We have never paid a cosh dividend on
our common stock, and we presenily intend
1o retain our cash to finance the growth and
development of our business. Our credil
tacility limits the payment of cash dividends
on our common stock withou! the consent of
the participating banks.

Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the statements we make in this
Annual Report are forward-ooking. Forward-
locking siatements are generally identifiable
by the use of the words “onlicipate,” “will,”
"believe,” “eslimate,” "expect,” “plan,” “intend”
"seek” or similar expressions. These forward-
locking statements include all stalements
that are not historical statements of fact ond
those ragarding our intent, belief, plans or
expectations including, but not limited to,
the discussions of cur operating and growth
strategy, projections of revenue, income or
loss, in\formoﬁon regurding future restaurant
openings and capital expenditures, potential
increases in food and other operaling costs,
ond our development, expansion, franchising
and joint venture plans and future operations.
Forwarddooking statements involve known
and unknown risks and uncertainties that
may couse octual results in fulure periods 1o
differ materially from those anticipated in the
forward-looking slatements. Those risks ond
uncertainties include, omong others, the risks
and uncertainties discussed below. Although
we believe that the assumplions underlying
the forwardlooking stclements coniained
hetein are reasonable, any of these
assumptions could prove to be inaccurate,
and, therefore, there can be no assurance
that the forward-looking statements included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K will prove
lo be accurate. In fight of the significant
uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking
statements included herein, you should not
regard the inclusion of such information as o
represeniation by us or any other person thal
our objectives ond plans will be echieved.
We do nol undertake any obligation to
Fublic!y release any revisions to any forward-
ooking stotements coniained herein o reflect
events and circumstances occurring alier the
date hereof or lo reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated evenis.
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